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Newton County, Georgia 2022
Appropriations Request
Appropriation
DFCS
Library System
View Point Health
Board of Health
Economic Development
Alcovy CASA
McIntosh Trail Head Start
Community Partnership
Hwy 278 CID
Washington Street
Nelson Heights
Total

2020
Budget

2021
Budget

2022
Request

Requested
Increase

109,619
916,452
234,320
187,550
239,850
15,666
4,147
18,430
30,000
38,800
38,800

109,619
916,452
234,320
187,550
350,000
15,666
4,147
18,430
30,000
44,800
38,800

109,619
926,452
254,282
187,550
400,000
15,666
4,500
18,430
30,000
46,750
39,000

‐
10,000
19,962
‐
50,000
‐
353
‐
‐
1,950
200

1,833,634

1,949,784

2,032,249

82,465
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Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form

Agency Name:

Newton County Division of Family & Children Services (DFCS)

Project Name:

Support for the prevention of Child Abuse/Neglect & Supporting Foster Children

Contact Person:

Kenya S. Wooden, M.Ed. (Newton DFCS Director)

Address:

4117 Mill Street, Covington, GA 30016

Email:

Kenya.Wooden@dhs.ga.gov

Phone Number:

(770) 331‐2830

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022: $ 109,619
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 73.33 %
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your
budget they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Enter name of funding source here

% of Budget

Enter name of funding source here

% of Budget

Enter name of funding source here

% of Budget

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past.
If so, please
indicate how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years. FY19‐$109,619, FY20‐
$109,619, FY21‐$109,619
5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? The Newton County Department of Family &
Children Services is currently serving 109 foster children that are in the legal custody of the
Department due to maltreatment. The Department is responsible for addressing the safety, well‐
being, and permanency needs of these children to ensure that they can either be safely returned to
their homes of origin or if not possible that the Department works towards another permanent
permanency plan for these children. The Department is currently servicing 54 families through Child
Protective Services investigations where abuse and neglect have been alleged in addition to 31
[AUTHOR NAME]
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6.

7.
8.

9.
10.

Family Preservation Services cases where abuse and neglect has been substantiated or there are risk
factors assessed in the home where the Department is providing services and resources to the family
in an effort to preserve the family unit and prevent the removal of the child/children and placement
into foster care. With the support of county funding provided by the Newton County Board of
Commissioners the Department has been able to continue to meet the needs of our children and
families to address such prevalent issues as poverty, homelessness, substance abuse issues of
parents and children, mental health issues of parents and children, domestic violence issues, and the
growing challenge of the CHINS (Children in Need of Services) population in the county. These
children are often serviced through the Department due to their many behavior issues that pose
threats to either themselves, their families, or the community. Without the additional support
funding from the county many of the critical services to children and families in the community, our
foster children, and our foster parents would become more challenging to deliver.
Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. The Newton County
Department of Family and Children Services (DFCS) provides support to individuals and families in
Newton County through the Office of Family Independence and the Office of Child Protective
Services. The mission of the Department of Human Services statewide is to strengthen Georgia’s
families by supporting their self‐sufficiency and helping them protect vulnerable children and adults
by being a resource to their families, not a substitute. Programs administered include TANF, a time‐
limited cash assistance program; SNAP (formerly Food Stamps), a nutritional subsidy program;
Medicaid, income‐based medical insurance for children and adults; and, Child Welfare‐Social
Services, services which prevent child abuse and neglect, protect children from further abuse and
neglect, and promote expeditious permanency for children within their own families or with kinship
or adoptive families when birth parents are not willing or able to assume their parental
responsibilities. Newton County DFCS continuously collaborates with community partners to fulfill
the agency’s vision of building stronger families for a stronger Georgia. Such partners that are
consistent partners with the Department are the Covington Police Department and the Newton
County Sheriff’s Department, the local CASA, the local Foster Parent Association Committee, Prevent
Child Abuse Newton & Rockdale, the Newton County Juvenile Court, the local Department of Juvenile
Justice, and the Covington Area Alumnae Chapter of the Greek sorority Delta Sigma Theta.
Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place.
If
so, please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding? ? It is
anticipated that Newton County DFCS would need the additional funding to support its business
operations on an annual basis.
What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding? The
Director works with the State and Regional office to identify projected budget trends and needs.
Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations. Some examples of how funds were used are as follows: Clothing
for foster children, daycare for foster children, and some medical expenses for our foster children to
assist foster parents caring for foster children in Newton County. The Department has utilized
funding to support one PRN positions through temp agency Dover to support the understaffed foster
care team to ensure that all foster children needs were met. Some funding was utilized to support
older foster care youth with senior dues and other items that were not covered by State funds to
[AUTHOR NAME]
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11.
12.

13.

14.

support their educational attainment. Funding was utilized to partner with and support the Newton
County Sheriff’s Annual Back to School event. Newton County DFCS has been an annual partner for
this event. This is an important partnership for the purpose of continuing to chip away at the
negative perception of Law Enforcement and Child Welfare in the community and to continue to
build the bridge of support to the community and Newton County citizens.
Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. Please be specific
How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens? There are
hundreds of families that come to the agency’s attention each year due to allegations of child abuse
and neglect as well as families struggling with poverty and financial distress. These allegations are
thoroughly assessed by the agency’s case management staff and assistance is provided to children
and families to prevent children from placement into foster care and State oversight. Many of these
children and families are facing serious issues such as substance abuse, mental health challenges,
family violence, homelessness and eviction, and medical challenges of children. The Department
assists these children and families to ameliorate these stressful and challenging life situations as well
as help to stabilize families. There are also individuals and parents facing such issues as
unemployment, food insecurity and lack of food as well as lack of quality medical insurance. Through
the agency’s TANF, SNAP, and Medicaid programs citizens in Newton County can obtain assistance
in these areas in order to help improve the quality of their lives.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year. In light of Covid‐19,
the Newton County DFCS office has sponsored or participated in some activities throughout the
calendar year 2020 that has made a positive impact in supporting children and families in Newton
County. The Newton County DFCS office partnered with the Newton County Sherriff’s Department
to sponsor its annual Back to School/Community Health Fair, this year due to the pandemic it was a
drive thru event. The Newton County DFCS office partnered with Eastside High School to complete
the annual Christmas Party for our foster children. The school partners with the agency on an
annual basis to promote this fun party for our children. Due to the pandemic this was a drive thru
event. Funds were used to support foster children by providing clothing, paying for dues and other
expenses for high school seniors in foster care. Funds were used for staff appreciation events to
help boost morale which impacts turnover in county staff. Funds were used for staff supplements
to help with staff retention and morale. Funds were used to support and strengthen families in the
community by assisting with utilities, exterminators, substance abuse treatment, medications.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County
One goal is to continue to move children to permanency as quickly as possible and to
reduce the number of children in foster care. Our goal at the end of FY21 is to continue to
have below 100 children in foster care in Newton County. This will be accomplished
through more regular case staffing’s with our SAAGs and working with our court
Stakeholders thereby reducing the need for delinquent and CHINS youth being placed into
the foster care system. Other goals are to increase the number of children that are free
for adoption and moving those adoptions to finalization timely.
[AUTHOR NAME]
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b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals

Due to the myriad of challenges faced by families that interface with the Newton County Department
of Family & Children Services our foster care caseload has had a slight increase we currently have 109
children in foster care. The Department will continue to remain steadfast with its goal of reducing the
number of children in foster care while continuing to address the safety, permanency, and well‐being
needs of those children already in care.

15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following
for fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support? Funds
will be used to support the following projects and programs: Meeting the tangible needs of
foster children and foster parents to include clothing, medicine, haircuts, daycare,
emergency needs, etc. Funds will be used to help strengthen families that encounter us by
helping them through difficulties time with assisting them with utilities, substance abuse
treatment, rental assistance, medication assistance etc. The funds will be utilized for
supplements for Social Services staff to boost morale and help with staff retention. The
Department will utilize the funds to host a foster parent appreciation event, a Child Abuse
Prevention Month event in April 2021, an event for National Adoption Month in November
2021, the annual partnership with the Sheriff’s Department in July 2021 for the annual Back‐
to‐School event, an event in 2021 to show appreciation for our many volunteers that
support the Department at various times throughout the year, various Staff Appreciation
Events.

b.

What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2021? One goal is to continue to
move children to permanency as quickly as possible and to reduce the number of children in
foster care. Our goal at the end of FY21 is to have below 100 children in foster care in Newton
County. Our Goal is to have an increase in our Family Preservation cases, providing the
necessary services and tools to families keeping the family unit together while receiving

[AUTHOR NAME]
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services. Other goals are to increase the number of children that are free for adoption and
moving those adoptions to finalization timely.
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives? The goals support the
County’s Strategic Objectives through working with children and families with challenging and
difficult life situations, thus helping them achieve a quality of life that many enjoy living in a
small town. Family relationships will be strengthened, and parents will be better equipped to
meet the well‐being and safety needs of their children without the need for children to enter
the foster care system. Parents will also be able to meet the health needs of their children to
include the mental health needs of children and parents. The Department’s work with
children and families also strengthens the parents’ abilities to meet the educational needs of
their children.
d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds? Success will be measured through data elements documenting such
outcomes as the percentage of children that achieve permanency in FY21, meaning those
children where the Department was able to successfully reunify the child or children with
their families or finalize the adoption of a child free for adoption. Success will also be
measured through our attainment of reaching 95% substantial conformity in our federal
mandates.
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe
"what we do."
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver."
3. Outcomes: the medium‐term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve."
4. Impacts: the results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing
poverty and creating jobs.

[AUTHOR NAME]
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Newton County-107
County Expense Reports
FY21

NEWTON COUNTY DFCS
COUNTY BUDGET-FY21
July

August

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

March

April

May

June

Totals

Budget

Balance

% Spent

Admin Exp

$

Board Travel

10.00

$

20.00

$

20.00

$

$
$

19.09
39.09

$
$

$

20.00

$

50.00

$

1,000.00

$

950.00

5.00%

20.00

$

20.00

62.20
82.20

$
$

68.26
88.26

-

$
$
$
$

60.00
604.84
664.84

$
$
$
$

1,000.00
600.00
3,000.00
4,600.00

$
$
$
$

940.00
600.00
2,395.16
3,935.16

6.00%
0.00%
20.16%
14.45%

-

$
$
$
$

2,139.15
2,139.15

$
$
$
$

1,000.00
500.00
3,000.00
4,500.00

$
$
$
$

1,000.00
500.00
860.85
2,360.85

0.00%
0.00%
71.31%
47.54%

$
$
(218.62) $

5,000.00
644.00

5,000.00
644.00
2,218.62

0.00%
0.00%
#DIV/0!
-10.93%

Foster Care
Clothing
Medical
Incidentals
Total F/C

$
$

256.74
256.74

$
$

58.80
58.80

$
$

69.14
69.14

$
$

70.61
70.61

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

Foster Cr-ILP
Clothing
Medical
Incidentals
Total F/C

$
$

40.00
40.00

$
$

40.00
40.00

$
$

50.00
50.00

$

-

$
$

1,350.00
1,350.00

$
$

(380.85) $
(380.85) $

1,040.00
1,040.00

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

$
$
$
$

Contracts-ABACUS
Happy Faces
General Assist

$

Supplies

(218.62)

Contracts-Dover Staffing

$

2,560.00

$
$

3,840.00
236.00

$
$

5,120.00
1,154.00

$
$

3,456.00
1,249.20

$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

5,550.00
394.61
825.00
57.17
7,100.00
514.81

$ (5,550.00)
$
(394.61)
$
(825.00)
$
(57.17)
$ 12,200.00
$
865.44

4,503.02
14.95

$

16.10

Other Op

$

231.85

$

583.00

Cnty CM (201) Sal Supp

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,175.00
82.21
1,850.00
131.82
4,503.30

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,225.00
85.82
300.00
20.46
1,700.00
121.69
4,503.30
32.20

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

600.00
42.03
75.00
5.05
850.00
60.38
4,503.15
33.35

$

8,451.65

$

8,848.10

$

8,659.61

$ 12,201.06

$

18,864.24

$

9,134.88

$

9,134.92

$

9,134.92

$

$

18,269.84

Cnty CM (201) FICA
Cnty CM (207) Sal Supp
Cnty CM (207) FICA
Cnty (450) Salary Suppl
Cunty (450) Salary Supp FICA
County Salary
County Travel
Total Expenses

$

8,270.92

Cnty Advance

$

4,503.00

$
$

9,134.92

3,840.00
311.64

$ 11,538.56

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Cnty Adv Intrst

$

Lapse Expense

-

2,000.00

$
$
$
$

$
$

18,816.00
3,765.69

$
$

11,664.38
10,000.00

$
$

(7,151.62)
6,234.31

161.31%
37.66%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

3,000.00
210.06
375.00
25.51
23,700.00
1,694.14
22,515.77
96.60

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

3,000.00
210.06
375.00
25.56
24,000.00
2,300.00
40,000.00
300.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

0.01
0.05
300.00
605.86
17,484.23
203.40

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.81%
98.75%
73.66%
56.29%
32.20%

$

76,834.14

$ 109,619.00

$

32,784.86

70.09%

$

54,809.48

$

-

$

-

$ (22,024.66)

$
Lapse Funds FY20

$

1,930.17

Cnty Svgs+ Intrst

$

78,025.17

$

0.42

$

0.42

$

0.41

$

0.42

$

0.41

$

0.42

$

1,930.17

$

78,027.67

1,930.17

.
$

Fund Bal Expen

-

.
Fund Bal+ Intrst

$ 155,004.11

$

10.12

$

6.00

$

6.08

$

6.82

$

6.60

$

6.82

$ 155,046.55
$ 233,074.22

Total Fund Bal

8

$ 155,046.55
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Agency Name:

Newton County Public Health Department

Project Name:

SFY2022 Newton County Funding Request

Contact Person:

Shawnda Jones, CFO

Address:

8203 Hazelbrand Road Covington, Georgia 30014

Email:

Shawnda.Jones@GNRHealth.com

Phone Number:

770‐339‐4260

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022

$ 187,550

2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 7.8 %

3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:

% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Prior Year Program Income

44%

Georgia Department of Public Health Grant‐In‐Aid

33%

Georgia Department of Public Health Federal WIC GIA

12%

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past. ☒ If so, please indicate
how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years.
2021 187,550
2020 187,550
2019 187,550

1
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5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced?
The current Covid‐19 pandemic has accentuated the importance of Public Health in our local
communities. Our public health staff are vital to the Covid‐19 response activities while maintaining
mandated program services and inspections. Newton County Public Health Department would be
severely impacted by the loss of Newton County funds, with the potential of Clinical staff reductions,
affecting the number of clinical and program services, including Covid response efforts. Newton
County Environmental Health could also see staff reductions, which would limit the number of
inspections for restaurants, hotels, public pools, septic systems and septic tank complaints.
6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions.
Newton County Public Health offers Clinical and Environmental Health services to all citizens of
Newton County. The federal Women, Infants & Children Nutritional program and Children First
program are among the various programs available at the County Health Department Clinic.
Epidemiology investigates infectious disease outbreaks and HIV programs are available to Newton
residents. Newton County Public Health and the Emergency Preparedness program continue to
support Covid‐19 emergency response activities with Gwinnett & Rockdale Public Health
Departments.
7. Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place. ☒
If so, please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
Please see attached GNR District Strategic Plan.
8. How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding?
All Counties in Georgia are mandated to provide County participating funds to support their local
County Health Departments.
9. What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding?
County participating funds for local Public Health Departments are mandated by the Georgia
legislature. The Newton County Health Department continues to rely on earned fee income to
support clinical and environmental health services for Newton County citizens. Revenue streams
include Medicaid, Medicare, self‐pay, and qualified reduced sliding scale fees for the uninsured. Our
Public Health Clinic also bills private insurance companies. The GNR District billing staff ensures that
between 96% to 100% of all claims billed are paid. One hundred percent of all fees collected are
recorded and included in the Newton County Health Department budget.
10. Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations.
All Newton County funding is utilized to support all program services provided by the Newton County
Public Health Clinic and the Newton County Environmental Health office.
2
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11. Please provide an explanation for any change in your request.
The Newton County Board of Health is requesting level funding for SFY2022.
12. How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens?
Newton County Public Health plays an increasingly important role in the health care delivery system.
Newton County Public Health Clinic addresses the health of the whole community and provides a
variety of unique services and programs needed to meet the health care needs of Newton County’s
diverse population. We maintain healthcare services that are accessible within the community,
serving the elderly and the poor, the most vulnerable of Newton’s population. We also offer
Immunization services, Child Health, Family Planning, and Breast Cancer screenings. We continue to
offer the Federal “Women, Infants and Children” nutritional services, offering support for mothers
and children. Newton Public Health investigates infectious diseases including tuberculosis, and
works with community health care providers who provide TB services in private clinics, managed care
organizations, HIV clinics, correctional facilities and hospitals in the county. Newton County Public
Health staff assist emergency response efforts, with our current focus on Covid‐19 testing and
vaccinations, under the direction of the District Emergency Preparedness team.
Newton County Environmental Health is responsible for ensuring all restaurants, hotels/motels,
public pools, and septic systems do not pose a risk to the public or the environment. The safety of
these locations is ensured through a robust, nationally recognized program. Environmental Health
staff conduct inspections of all regulated facilities multiple times a year and investigate each
complaint called into our office. In addition, staff members provide community based education for
food safety and swimming pool operations. Newton County Environmental Health staff are also
assisting with our district‐wide Covid‐19 Emergency Response efforts.

The Health Department continuously monitors the health status of the community to identify health
problems. Many of our work units focus on diagnosing and investigating health problems and
hazards in Newton County.
The Health Department informs and educates the public on ways to reduce risks and promotes better
health through individual contact and media interactions. We regularly participate in and mobilize
community groups to develop policies and action plans to improve the health of the people of
Newton County.
The Health Department enforces laws, regulations, and ordinances that protect health and ensure
safety. We identify populations with barriers to personal health services and link individuals to the
services they need. We work diligently to ensure our health care workers are trained, capable, and
prepared to perform their daily duties in addition to responding to human caused or natural
disasters that may occur in Newton County, within the state, or the nation. Most importantly, we
gather data in order to analyze all aspects of Public Health in Newton County.

3
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13. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year.

Newton County Health Center
# Visits, Procedures, by Program
Fiscal Year 2020: July 2019- June 2020

Program

# Visits

Immunizations
International Travel Vaccines
WIC (Women, Infants, Children)
Nutrition & Food Program
Family Planning
STD/HIV Testing & Treatment
Pregnancy Tests
Children’s First
Child Health
Breast & Cervical Cancer
Screenings
Perinatal Case Management
PPD Tests
Tuberculosis
Labs Performed
Quest, State Labs, In-house Labs

Totals

# Procedures Performed
5,779
0

22,515
31

9,189

27,593

891

11,669

688

4,233

1,227

1,231

888

895

1,119

3,188

175

525

441

441

677

1,395

29

50

4,117

10,341

25,220

84,107

4
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Newton County Environmental Health
# Services & Inspections
Fiscal Year 2020: July 2019 - June 2020

342

Food Service Inspections

9

Hotel, Motel & Tourist Facilities

46

Public Pool Inspections

514

Septic Tank Permits

28

Septic Complaints

405

Septic Inspections

1,344

Total

14. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County









Provide high quality services to meet our customer’s needs
Focus on Core Public Health Priorities
Improve organizational performance of the Newton Health Department
Evaluate and implement effective and efficient processes
Attract, develop and retain effective performers
Increase revenue
Respond to Public Health emergencies, such as the Covid‐19 pandemic

5
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b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals

Conduct an all staff health equity training to
educate about basic health equity concepts and
inform programs about ways to limit barriers in
accessing services & programs.

A training was delivered at a Clinic & Program
Leadership (CPL) meeting. A cultural humility
training was also conducted.

Based on language line usage data, create a plan
to provide access to medical translator
certification.

Online and in‐person classes were offered as
options, as well as affordable price points for
training.

Meet with at least three local leaders who
support specific vulnerable populations to discuss
collaboration and establish priorities moving
forward.

Met with 11 organizations, briefed and taught
evacuation & building go‐bags to vulnerable
populations.

Initiate 95% of investigations within one business
day of receipt by the EPI team.

97%

Annually complete one review of Epi & EH
foodborne illness data by December 31st to
include all required measures to meet FDA
standard 5.

Epidemiology (Epi) and Environmental Health (EH)
Departments presented their year‐end status
reports at the GNR Educational Symposium.

Ensure 90% of those with recent high‐risk
behavior identified as HIV negative by a GNR
Health Center are referred to HIV prevention
within 30 days of negative results.

100%

Ensure that 93% of newly‐diagnosed TB patients
for which 12 months or less of TB treatment is
indicated complete TB treatment within 12
months.

100%

Create a school employee focused POD training
video by March 31, 2020 to offer for inclusion in
staff in‐service training sessions.

Videos were produced and offered to school
systems for inclusion in staff in‐service training
sessions.

Develop and implement a plan in collaboration
with community partners to host at least 1
farmers’ market at all district health centers.

The Community Health and WIC programs
partnered to host 11 farmers' markets in Rockdale,
Newton, Norcross, and Lawrenceville.

6
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Provide nutrition resources and education
recommended by the Work Healthy Georgia
Toolkit to employees of 3 organizations with
worksite wellness policies.

Conduct at least one healthy meal instruction
session based on the Cooking Matters ® curricula
in conjunction with GNR Health programs to
provide health education to community
members.
Implement an internal diabetes prevention
education intervention and a diabetes self
management referral system in conjunction with
community partners.

Develop biannual reports to communicate
progress towards performance measures to
internal and external stakeholders.

Nutrition resources were provided to 10
businesses and organizations through the
Gwinnett Workplace Wellness Lunch and Learn,
and to High Priority Plumbing to help them work
towards healthy meetings.
Cooking Matters courses were completed at
Covington First United Methodist Church & Buford
OneStop Community Center.

The Community Health program received funding
from DPH to expand diabetes prevention and
control efforts. These funds were used to bring an
individual onboard to provide DPP classes in
Newton and Rockdale counties, and refer
individuals to our community partner for DSMES
classes.
The performance measures for all Breast &
Cervical Cancer Program measures, as well as
those for Immunization, WIC, Children’s Medical
Services, Dental Education, and Early Hearing
Detection & Intervention programs were exceeded
or met. Dental, Family Planning, and Children's
First measures were not met. The Family Planning
measure will be revised, while the Dental and
Children's First measures will be continued. The
performance measure for Children’s First was not
met because of reports not being received from
Babies Can't Wait on the status of eligibility on
many referrals, referrals lost to follow‐up, and
parents declining to participate in the program.
The Family Planning performance measure was
not met because data collection systems would
identify the first visit for each patient during this
time period and not necessarily new patients to
the FP program. Also chlamydia testing of this
population in other programs that may not require
another chlamydia test, and would not be included
in the Family Planning Electronic Medical Record
data collection.
7
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Identify best method to communicate with staff
and develop an internal communication strategy.

All newsletters were migrated to MailChimp, an
online platform that provides analytics, like open
rates and link clicks that will show employee
engagement &help Communications gauge
interest in topics.

Monitor 5‐10 population health outcome
objectives and report to PHAB annually to assist
in their efforts to develop a national database to
monitor health status improvement.

The chosen outcomes to track are those identified
as health priorities in each county and include:
diabetes rate, hypertension rate, infant mortality
rate, suicide rate, adult tobacco use, obesity rates
(adult and child), and HIV prevalence rate.

Expand and improve the current supervisor
training to broaden & strengthen supervisory
skills by providing 3‐5 opportunities for training
to all supervisors.

A new, year‐long supervisor training was
implemented.

Create and conduct a training needs assessment
and use the results to evaluate & improve the
LEAD catalog.

A training needs assessment was created &
disseminated which evaluated components of the
current LEAD catalog & compiled feedback on
learning needs as determined by individual
employees.

Collect 90% of billed services for all payers
(except BCBS) within 90 days of billing.

The percent of reimbursement rate for the
reporting period are Private Insurance ‐ 99% ‐
Medicaid ‐ 96.3% ‐ Medicare ‐ 96.7%

The department Productivity Workgroup will
review staffing levels and establish location
specific staffing benchmarks.

A staffing equation has been created by the
Productivity Workgroup yielding location specific
staffing benchmarks.

Increase capacity of the patient portal by
including additional program modules and
allowing for patient communication and tracking.

The patient portal was completed and is fully
functional.

15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support?
We will continue to work on priority issues as identified in the 2019‐2023 Community Health
Assessment & Community Health Improvement Plan.

8
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b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2021?
The Gwinnett, Newton & Rockdale Strategic Plan includes a detailed description of Goals,
Strategies and Objectives for 2021. Please see attached Strategic Plan for our Public Health
District.
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives?
There is an alignment between our Strategic plan objectives and the work done through the
various programs and initiatives that directly align with the county strategic objectives.
Strategy B‐ Enhanced Quality of Life and
Strategy E‐ Provide for a Safe and Secure community.
d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds?
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe
"what we do."
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver."
3. Outcomes: the medium‐term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve."
4. Impacts: the results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing
poverty and creating jobs.
Performance measures are identified and listed in the attached Strategic Plan
Activity: Conduct and analyze findings from the Public Health Institute health equity program assessment to form
programs about ways to limit barriers in accessing services & programs by December 2021.
Impact: To improve our community’s resilience and emergency preparedness, meet with at least three local
leaders who support specific vulnerable populations to discuss collaboration and establish priorities moving
forward by December 31, 2021.
Impact: To ensure everyone is using the same language, the same message is shared as it relates to the health
equity of high morbidity populations, and staff feel comfortable conveying the message, all staff having contact
with the general population will complete one cultural humility course on Exceed annually.
Output: Revise the GNR Communications Plan to be inclusive of marketing, health promotion, community
education, and internal communications on the roles of the health department by December 2021.

9
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Impact: Improve website functionality & user experience by segmenting audiences in an effort to structure the
website in a way that provides better direction to content relevant to the user by December 2021.
Impact: Improve engagement with the teen/adolescent community and address health issues specific to this
population by developing a teen/adolescent advisory board to inform target audience messaging, and program &
service delivery by December 2021.
Impact: To limit the spread of disease, initiate Epi investigation of 95% of illness complaints received annually
through illness hotline and website complaint reports within one (1) business day of receipt by the EPI team.
Output: Annually complete one review of Epi & EH foodborne illness data by December 31st to include all required
measures to meet FDA standard 5.
Output: Inspectors will be 95% complete with assigned routine food inspections by the end of each 6‐month cycle
per state mandate.
Output: Create an educational program based on analysis of data from FDA standard 9 to help reduce most
commonly reported risk‐factor violations.
Impact: To control the spread of disease the STD team will ensure that 85% of all patients diagnosed with
Chlamydia and gonorrhea will be treated within 14 days of specimen report date.
Impact: To control the spread of TB, ensure that 93% of newly‐diagnosed TB patients for which 12 months or less
of TB treatment is indicated complete TB treatment within 12 months, to be evaluated monthly.
Output: To improve GNR’s effectiveness in responding to mass care/shelter operations in both local operations as
well as when deploying teams, provide training modules to GNR staff who might work in POD & shelters annually.
Outcomes: Ensure that 90% of those identified as HIV negative by a Gwinnett, Newton and Rockdale Health Center
with recent high‐risk behavior will be referred to HIV prevention within 30 days of negative results.
Activity: Provide nutrition resources and education recommended by the Work Healthy Georgia Toolkit to
employees of 3 organizations with worksite wellness policies by December 2021.
Activity: Assess the tobacco policies of at least 3 private sector businesses and conduct presentations to determine
interest in developing or strengthening tobacco free policies by December 2021.
Activity: By December 2021 conduct at least 4 nutrition education instruction sessions based on the Eating
SmartBeing Active curricula to provide health education to community members.
Activity: To address food insecurity in Newton County, partner with Atlanta Community Food Bank to create a
mobile food bank by December 2021.
Activity: By the end of 2021, 900 women seen in a Women’s Health Program, between the ages of 40 and 64, will
be screened for breast cancer using CBE and mammography.

10
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Activity: 80% of BCCP clients will have diagnostic workup completed within 60 days of screening annually.
Activity: During the 12 months prior to the measurement report, 95% of unduplicated Family Planning females in
the age range of 15‐24 will be screened for Chlamydia.
Outcome: Each individual health center will achieve 85% of the state target WIC participation rate monthly.
Outcome: Maintain a 93% immunization vaccine coverage rate for children ages 17‐35 months based on the
4:3:1:3:3:1:4 series determined monthly by the CoCASA instrument.

Thank you for the continued support for Newton County Public Health Department

11

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

Newton
County
Library

33

Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form

Agency Name:

Newton County Library System

Project Name:

Library System

Contact Person:

Lace Keaton

Address:

7116 Floyd Street NE, Covington, GA 30014

Email:

lkeaton@newtonlibrary.org

Phone Number:

770-385-6436

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday March 5, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022: $926,452
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 71%
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Georgia Public Library Service/Board of Regents

21.31%

Newton County School System

0.55%

City of Covington

1.16%

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past.
If so, please indicate
how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years.
FY 2021 $916,452 FY2020 = $916,452
FY2019 = $916,452
5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? Without the County’s funding the Library
System would no longer be able to provide library services to the citizens of Newton County.
Among other things, the library promotes literacy which is critical to economic development as
well as individual and community well-being.
6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. The Newton County
Library System provides materials and services to help community residents from children to

[AUTHOR NAME]
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7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

adults to meet their informational, educational, recreational and cultural needs. Materials are
purchased in a variety of formats to stimulate appreciation of reading and learning.
Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place.
If so,
please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form. See
attached.
How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding? In order
to continue to receive state and federal funding, GA Public libraries require a Maintenance of
Effort funding from local agencies. A letter of support from Georgia Public Library Service can be
provided upon request.
What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding? The
Library System continues to look for ways to increase library generated revenues including fees
for services and grant applications.
Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations. The County funding supports the operations of the Library System
including purchases of materials and resources as well as assistive services, computer services
including copy fax and print services, genealogy services, information services, meeting rooms,
notary public access, test proctoring and voter registration. The Library enables citizens to access
the internet, take a GED class, job searches, and seek referrals to other community resources.
Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. The increase of approximately
$10,000 represents a 1.1% increase over prior year funding and would be the first increase since
FY2008. The increase in funding is requested to buy additional materials for citizens of all ages in
both print and electronic format with an emphasis on increasing beginning reader books and large
print materials.

12. How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens? The Newton
County Library System provides materials and services to help community residents from children
to adults to meet their informational, educational, recreational and cultural needs. Materials are
purchased in a variety of formats to stimulate appreciation of reading and learning. Additionally,
the library provides assistive services, copy ,fax and print services, genealogy services, information
services, meeting rooms, notary, computer access, test proctoring and voter registration. The
Library enables citizens to access the internet, conduct job searches, increase computer skills and
seek referrals to other community resources.
13. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year. Funds received from
the County in fiscal year 2021 were used for operating expenses including programming, supplies,
utilizes, maintenance and repairs, materials and staffing.
14. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.

[AUTHOR NAME]
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a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County




Provide materials and resources through the public library that many citizens do not have
access to through any other avenue.
Promote literacy and lifelong learning.
Improve the quality of life in the Newton County community.

b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals.




Increase in materials circulation.
Participation in programs offered.

15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2022:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support?
Strategy B, “Enhance Quality of Life” – The Library system will provide a variety of
materials and resources with quality programming for patrons of all ages including
assistive services for people with limited vision.
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2022? See attached Strategic
Plan.
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives? NCLS supports Newton
County’s Quality of Life strategy by offering ”lifelong learning” with education programs
for youth, cultural programs for seniors as well as “literacy skills” and career assistance
programs for young and adult patrons.
[AUTHOR NAME]
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d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds?
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe
"what we do." Continue to provide quality programming, internet access,
and quality print and electronic resources for the residents of Newton
County. See attached Strategic Plan.
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver." Continue to
provide a robust selection of materials, in both print and in electronic
formats for all residents of Newton County. See attached Strategic Plan.
3. Outcomes: the medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve." Continue to see active participation in programs, increased
materials circulation and patron visits.
4. Impacts: the results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing
poverty and creating jobs. A solid foundation in literacy can be an essential
aspect of career advancement and job success and is critical to healthy
economic development as well as quality of life in the community.

[AUTHOR NAME]
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STRATEGIC PLAN
2018 – 2021

7116 Floyd Street, Covington, GA 30014
www.newtonlibrary.org
38

GOALS and ACTIVITIES
MISSION STATEMENT
The Newton County Library System supports the community by providing informational,
educational, and recreational resources and services that provide lifelong enrichment.

GOAL 1: STAFFING
The library will provide users with exceptional customer service,
a consistent experience, and accurate information from an increased
number of well-trained and knowledgeable staff.

ACTIVITIES:
1. Update all departmental and personnel policies and procedures.
2. Ensure that all staff members receive an opportunity for continuing education each year.
3. Provide opportunities for additional in-house staff training.

4. Increase library staffing based on state requirements.

GOAL 2: COLLECTIONS
The library will provide a dynamic collection of popular, relevant,
and up to date materials on a wide range of subjects in a variety of formats.

ACTIVITIES:
1. Keep the collection relevant and up to date based on professional standards.
2. Inventory all NCLS collections to ensure the library’s catalog accurately reflects the current library holdings.
3. Explore options to digitize all NCLS historic documents and make the collection available to the public.
4. Increase percentage of library’s annual budget spent on materials, based on state and national standards.
5. Monitor systems reports to ensure the collection accurately reflect current community needs.

6. Update and reorganize the Heritage Room at Covington to facilitate patron usage.
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GOAL 3: FACILITIES
The library will provide safe, comfortable, inviting environments
in strategic locations throughout the county.

ACTIVITIES:
1. Ensure that all library facilities reflect aspects of the heritage of Newton County.
2. Examine service hours of each location to meet the needs of the community.
3. Examine ways of providing maintenance and landscaping service to the Covington and Porter facilities.
4. Examine ways of providing courier service to the Covington, Porter, and Newborn facilities.
5. Improve the visibility and usability of NCLS collections.
6. Renovate Covington location to enhance the user experience, improve staff workflows, and maintain ADA
compliance.
7. Maintain LEED Gold certification at Porter location.
8. Improve internal and external signage to increase usage and awareness.
9. Investigate options to acquire a new, larger library vehicle.

10. Investigate possible additional library locations in Newton County.

GOAL 4: TECHNOLOGY
The library will provide free access to the age-appropriate technologies
needed by users to take advantage of current informational,
educational, and recreational digital resources.

ACTIVITIES:
1. Continue to evaluate new, emerging technologies in order to provide access to the most appropriate
technologies for the community.
2. Provide access and training to the new technologies needed by staff to provide quality service.
3. Update the library’s technology infrastructure.
4. Upgrade and update the library’s website.
5. Investigate resources to add self-checkout technology at Covington location.
6. Update technology-related policies and procedures.
7. Provide most current and accessible, ADA-compliant technologies.
8. Investigate new technologies to increase the lifespan of library materials.
9. Continue to apply for local, state and federal technology grants to update equipment, as available.
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GOAL 5: PROGRAMMING
The library will provide programs that educate, entertain,
and promote literacy in the community.

ACTIVITIES:
1. Increase the number of adult and family-oriented programs.
2. Increase the number of programs that promote literacy and life skills.
3. Increase the number of programs that focus on job skills.
4. Increase the number of programs that reflect the diversity and heritage of the community.
5. Increase the number of programs that reflect contemporary, popular, and cultural interests.
6. Increase the number of programs that involve community partnerships.
7. Increase the number of outreach programs.

GOAL 6: ADVOCACY
The library will cultivate positive community support.

ACTIVITIES:
1. Identify community stakeholders and organizations willing to form partnerships with the library.
2. Create an ongoing dialog with the community to increase the awareness of the library’s role in the community.
3. Promote positive library image within the community.
4. Continue to advocate for increased funding from governmental sources.
5. Continue to explore funding from non-governmental sources.

TAG LINE
Newton County Library System … So Much More
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NEWTON COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Dr. Steve Whatley - Chair
Juanita Stephens - Vice Chair
Barbara Gunner - Secretary
Frank Turner - Treasurer
Sarah Dauby
Carroll Moss
Bobbie Shepherd
Brigette P. Washington
Lace Keaton – Library Director

LIBRARY ADMINISTRATON
Trasi Barkley, Office Manager
John Carocci, IT Manager
Ann Davis, Technical Services Coordinator

PROJECT CONSULTANT
Dr. Robert Burgin, RB Software & Consultant, Inc.

Approved by Newton County Library System
Board of Trustees
August 1, 2018
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NCLS FY22 BOC Funding Request
$10,000 for Materials

$4,000

Children’s Nonfiction

$3,000

Adult Nonfiction

$2,000

Large Print

$1,000

eBooks

www.newtonlibraries.org
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Newton County Library System
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
For three months ending December 31, 2020

Current

YTD

10/1/2020 thru 7/1/2020 thru
12/31/2020
12/31/2020

Annual Budget
6/30/2021

%

Revenues
Local Tax Revenue
Newton County

229,113

458,226

916,452

50%

35,891

35,891

86,746

41%

Board of Education

3,212

5,000

10,000

50%

City of Covington

3,750

7,500

15,000

50%

271,966

506,617

1,028,198

49%

49,039

98,077

196,154

50%

9,333

18,667

37,333

50%

Newton County SPLOST

Total Local Tax Revenue
Grant Revenue
State Salary Grant
State System Services Grant
State Materials Grant
State MRR
Total Grant Revenue

9,927

19,855

39,709

50%

35,891

35,891

86,746

41%

104,190

172,489

359,942

48%

Other Library Revenue
Library Generated Revenue
Total Other Library Revenue
Total Revenues

4,116

8,403

65,000

13%

4,116

8,403

65,000

13%

380,271

687,508

1,453,140

47%

Expenditures
Salaries and Wages

140,550

253,370

704,500

36%

Benefits

60,171

110,829

318,000

35%

Professional Fees

14,825

21,854

68,500

32%

Equip/Bldg Repairs and Maintenance

52,566

77,212

115,450

67%

0

28,216

30,000

94%

9,575

15,266

30,000

51%

Insurance
Communications
Staff Travel
Other Purchased Services
Materials
Supplies and Printing
Utilities
Dues and Fees
Equipment Purchased
Total Expenditures

0

0

11,000

0%

6,598

7,391

54,000

14%

19,147

38,578

65,000

59%

3,223

7,784

19,000

41%

21,249

51,408

140,000

37%

171

1,159

13,000

9%

8,351

8,396

34,587

24%

336,427

621,462

1,603,037

39%

71,781

71,781

173,492

41%

71,781

71,781

173,492

41%

1,588,158

1,588,158

100%

Major Repair & Capital Expenditures
Major Repair/Renovate
Total Major Repair & Capital Expenditures
Beginning Fund Balance
Net Surples/(Deficit)

(27,937)

(5,735)

(323,389)

2%

Ending Fund Balance

(27,937)

1,582,423

1,264,769

125%

Page: 1
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Agency Name:

View Point Health

Project Name:
Contact Person:

Jennifer S. Hibbard, CEO

Address:

175 Gwinnett Drive, Lawrenceville GA 30046

Email:

Jennifer.Hibbard@VPHealth.org

Phone Number:

678-209-2370

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 5, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022: $ 254,282
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 0.4831 %
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and
Developmental Disabilities (DBHDD)

65.25%

Other State Contracts

10.84%

Medicaid Options

17.70%

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past.
If so, please indicate
how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years. $234,320 (Years 2019 – 2021)
5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? The programs supported by the Newton County
Subsidy request currently operate in a deficit position. Losing the funding provided by Newton
County would cause a greater operating deficit, which would lead to a lower number of individuals
being provided much needed care of Behavioral Health services.
6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. View Point Health is a
safety net provider of Behavioral Health care. View Point Health is a Community Service Board

[AUTHOR NAME]
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7.
8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

established under HB100 in 1994. In FY2020, the most recently completed state fiscal year, View
Point Health served 15,892 individuals.
Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place.
If so,
please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding? The
funding provided by Newton County Board of Commissioners is critical to the sustainability of these
programs for View Point Health. We are grateful to have received funding since FY2007, and we are
hopeful to continue to receive the great support from Newton County Board of Commissioners for
years to come.
What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding? As a
safety net provider of behavioral healthcare services, View Point Health serves those individuals
who have no other means of paying for these services. We continue to expand our revenue
diversity, and our clinicians and prescribers are continuing to become paneled on multiple Payor
sources in order to grow this line of revenue.
Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations. View Point Health served 2,692 individuals of Newton County
during CY2020. View Point Health will continue to expand our services within Newton County. The
funding is utilized to fund core outpatient services (mental health and substance abuse). Here,
1,865 Newton County residents were served CY2020. View Point Health also utilizes funding to
support our Day Program (Independent Enterprises) serving adults with Developmental Disabilities.
In CY2020, 35 individuals were served daily.
Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. No change in prior year funding
request. The request is the same as was funded FY2016. In FY2017, View Point Health’s funding
decreased by 7.85%, so our request is the same, and to restore to the FY2016 funded subsidy.
How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens? View Point
Health serves as the safety net provider of behavioral healthcare services for individuals who have
no other means of paying for these much needed services.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year. $211,320 was utilized
in View Point Health’s Newton Outpatient Center, and $23,000 was utilized in View Point Health’s
Independent Enterprises. The funding calculates to approximately $22 quarterly per Newton County
citizen served by View Point Health programs.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County
1.
2.
3.
4.

Maintain a sound, fiscal environment where diversified fund sources support the growth and sustainability of
programs and new initiatives within View Point Health’s programs.
Enhance infrastructure that supports View Point Health’s mission and the individuals served through efficient,
effective, and reliable facilities and systems.
Maximize positive community partnerships that enhance care, creativity, and recovery-focused resources.
Engage individuals in meaningful, personal interactions that inspire hope on day one by offering alternative
choices of high-quality care and respecting their choices.
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b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals

1.
2.
3.
4.

Continued diversification of funding so that more individuals within Newton County can be served by the
outpatient and day program within Newton County.
Investments into an environment that is dedicated to providing safe and healthy outcomes, along with hiring and
training a dedicated staff to care for the citizens of Newton County.
Work together with other Newton County organizations for referrals and for expanded services that benefit the
citizens of Newton County.
Creating an environment of recovery.

15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support? Strategy
B: Enhance Quality of Life; Action Item #10: Support the Community Health Assessment /
Community Health Improvement Plan (which includes Mental Health).
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2021? To continue being the
safety net provider of high quality behavioral healthcare services to the citizens of Newton
County.
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives? View Point Health extends
its reach in Newton County by ensuring that the citizens of Newton County gain easy access
to high quality care.
d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds? View Point Health will measure Outputs and Outcomes by
measuring the number of individuals served under the Newton County programs that are
supported by the Newton County subsidy.
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe
"what we do."
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver."
[AUTHOR NAME]
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3. Outcomes: the medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve."
4. Impacts: the results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing
poverty and creating jobs.
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View Point Health

FY 2020 - 2025 Strategic Plan
7/1/2020-6/30/2025

Printed : 2/15/2021 5:01:59 PM ET

Strategic Goal I-To be a teaching and learning organization that supports entrepreneurial
leaders as well as promotes the growth and development of the Behavioral Health field. Create
a diverse culture that builds caring, engaged, passionate, competent, and entrepreneurial
leaders through education, mentoring and awareness.
Performance Objective A-Develop and implement a new training model for all persons
in leadership positions and potential leaders to enhance leadership skills by year two
(2).
Initiative 1-On an ongoing basis, identify criteria for critical leadership
positions and create development paths to match high-potential leaders with
these positions.
Initiative 2-Implement a process to identify high potential leaders for critical
leadership positions. Annually identify gaps between development of potential
leaders and the future leadership needed for critical positions.
Initiative 3-Within one (1) year, each person in a new leadership position will
be matched with a peer either in one-on-one and/or group with other leaders in
a similar position to be a “go to” person for informal/formal support.
Initiative 4-Employees will be made aware of opportunities for leadership
training outside of VPH on a quarterly basis via email.
Initiative 5-Continue and grow VPH’s Leadership Academy and evaluate
purpose, effectiveness, value and outcomes of training to sustain
learning/development for future trainers by the end of the third (3rd) year.
Consider Leadership Academy Alumni efforts which would include leadership
training, “Leadership Enhancement”, and explore leadership positions.
Initiative 6-Develop a retention program for current and future leaders
(surveys, feedback from executive team, etc).
Performance Objective B-Maintain structured internship and clinical supervision
program for VPH by year two (2).
Initiative 1-Identify an internship & clinical supervision development and
consultation team.
Initiative 2-Develop a flexible framework for clinical supervision program that
includes competencies that are irrespective of professional discipline, practice
setting and service delivery models.
Initiative 3-Identify contract guidelines between intern and organization
including reimbursement options if the terms of the contract are not met by the
supervisee.
Initiative 4-Identify qualified supervisors to provide clinical supervision based
on area of practice or specialty.
Initiative 5-Each program will identify a clinical supervisor to provide
supervision to their program.
Initiative 6-Provide clinical supervision training to clinical supervisors and
offer CEU’s yearly.
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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Initiative 7-Develop marketing collateral and strategies to reach out to
universities, colleges and professional organizations.
Performance Objective C-Improve communication between programs and staff and
program supervisors by the end of year one (1).
Initiative 1-Develop and update quarterly “Phone Tree" that would include
phone and email addresses and disseminate it among staff. House the
Communication Document on the intranet and update quarterly (electronic org
chart). [using Paycom?]
Initiative 2-Create directory of group emails to be housed on the intranet and
maintained by Talent Management.
Initiative 3-Utilize opportunities, such as CQI, Celebrate VPH, Directors
Meetings and Staff meetings for CEO and Executive Team to visit locations
throughout the year and to provide a state of the agency address and to answer
any questions and receive any feedback that the staff may have.
Initiative 4-Within the next two (2) years, develop a more technology-based
centralized application that can quickly disseminate urgent information to all
team leaders.
Performance Objective D-Improve recruitment efforts and on-boarding process for new
hires.
Initiative 1-Expand and improve recruitment efforts, to attract high quality
employees and meet the needs of our various programs.
Initiative 2-Develop a screening tool/process to assess new applicants during
the recruitment process.
Initiative 3-Review effectiveness of screening tool by comparing baseline
retention percentage and first six (6) months after implementing screening tool.
Initiative 4-Develop ways to provide a virtual training for onboarding
employees by 11/16/2020.
Performance Objective E-Continue to build a peer workforce.
Initiative 1-Increase the number of peers on the VPH team by 10% over the
next three (3) years. – Possibly increase the percentage based on CCBHC
requirements.
Initiative 2-Focus recruitment on individuals with lived experience in
additional positions other than just Certified Peer Specialist.
Initiative 3-Include Peers in the Recovery Focused Change team.
Initiative 4-Create peer-led consultation group for Peer Specialist that includes
training component by 7/1/2021.
Performance Objective F-Bring change teams together.
Initiative 1-Merge person-centered, recovery-focused and trauma-informed
principles and domains by the end of year one (1).
Initiative 2-Coordinate efforts for creating a more meaningful and competent
environment for those coming in for treatment.
Initiative 3-Review and revitalize each team reviewing mission and outcomes
within the next 3 months.
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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Performance Objective G-Continue to identify and train staff on evidence-based and
promising practices.
Initiative 1-Create a team that reviews best practices in the industry and outside
that could be implemented within VPH by 7/1/2021.
Initiative 2-VPH staff will be continually surveyed to identify training needs.
Surveys will be administered on an annual basis to assure that all staff
members, including transitioning and new employees, are included.
Initiative 3-Develop a team of individuals with qualifications to facilitate
continued education trainings.
Initiative 4-Market continuing education events to community in an effort to
raise funds for Behavioral Health of GA.
Initiative 5-Review and enhance Annual Training Review for existing staff and
develop an electronic version of the annual training by 12/30/2020.
Performance Objective H-Develop clinical pathways of care and incorporate them into
the Zero Suicide model.
Initiative 1-Develop clinical pathways to incorporating the Zero Suicide Model
into existing organizational practices leading to improved patient outcomes and
better care for those who are at risk.
Initiative 2-Continue to identify processes and best practices to improve care
and safety for individuals who are at risk.
Initiative 3-Increase Zero Suicide program awareness,social media presence,
increase strategic community partnerships.
Initiative 4-Provide educational opportunities for internal and external
stakeholders that improve collaborative links.
Performance Objective I-Continue to engage staff in prioritizing and improving morale
through new and current strategies.
Initiative 1-Establish individual and stratified profit sharing outcome-based
rubric by 12/31/2021.
Initiative 2-Establish work groups to develop and implement work/life balance
whole health initiative by 1/1/2021.
Initiative 3-Continue to increase staff participation in organizational climate
surveys and consistently improve scores in all areas.
Initiative 4-Create directory of change agent work groups and encourage staff
member participation 7/1/2021.
Performance Objective J-Establish a Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Team (DEI).
Initiative 1-Review Annual Training Review packet to assure that it includes
diversity, equity, and inclusion.
Initiative 2-Identify DEI trainings and team members to facilitate trainings.
Initiative 3-Review diversity of VPH employees and community to assure that
the organizations’ diversity matches the diversity of the people that we serve.
Initiative 4-Establish a mechanism to receive concerns and/or provide feedback
from employees.
Initiative 5-Define metrics to evaluate and track diversity and inclusion
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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throughout the organization.
Action Step a-https://cultureplusconsulting.com/2018/10/16/meaningmetrics-for-diversity-and-inclusion/
Action Step b-Review VPH employee diversity and create data sheet to
provide to recruiters and VPH partners.
Strategic Goal II-Maintain a sound, fiscal environment where diversified fund sources support
the growth and sustainability of programs and new initiatives within agency.
Performance Objective A-Explore and implement at least two (2) potential growth
opportunities per year (ex. Acquisition, RFP’s, new contracts) to continue to increase
cash on hand (KPIs).
Initiative 1-Continue to network and build potential funding streams.
Initiative 2-VPH will develop a team to work with programs in responding to
federal, state and foundation grants and to garner donations by 6/30/2023.
Initiative 3-Explore two (2) partnerships to grow our client base and diversify
our programs and revenue streams by 6/30/2021.
Initiative 4-Leverage Behavioral Health of Georgia to increase funding and
support for View Point Health services.
Initiative 5-Maintain and increase funds given by counties where VPH is
located.
Initiative 6-Continue to expand relationships with external providers (VA,
FQHC, etc.).
Performance Objective B-Every program will set and implement a plan to become
sustainable and break even by 6/30/2022.
Initiative 1-CFO will develop a SOP for budget review rollouts by end of
CY2020, creating consistency throughout service lines in deployment.
Initiative 2-CFO will provide budget and finance education to all staff who
oversee program and/or organizational budgets.
Initiative 3-CFO will evaluate the financial literacy of program staff and
provide access to financial tools/software needed to effectively manage
program budgets.
Initiative 4-Conduct monthly analyses of program budgets to determine which
budgetary commitments/conditions need to change, and which should be
sustained, grown, or repositioned.
Initiative 5-Create a financial mentorship program led by peer leaders.
Initiative 6-Create a diverse committee representative of VPH service lines to
provide report development and enhancements in existing accounting software
(Multiview) that are meaningful to budget leaders.
Initiative 7-Develop workflow for monitoring financials and resources made
available to users. (Create consistency throughout service lines).
Performance Objective C-Develop financial foundation/data stream to support the
CCBHC model.
Initiative 1-Develop systems to have data-ready elements available in real time.
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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Initiative 2-Ensure revenue cycle processes and systems are adequate for billing
under the CCBHC model.
Initiative 3-Develop systems for cost modeling and cost reporting.
Initiative 4-(Need to pull more details from readiness assessment guidelines to
develop strategy-see Org Infrastructure Dev section).
Performance Objective D-In partnership with DBHDD, pilot outcome-based pay model
for community-based programs by June 30, 2025.
Initiative 1-Provide technical assistance for best outcome based model to
measure community-based programs.
Initiative 2-Participate in two (2) pilot initiatives.
Performance Objective E-Reduce overtime pay for 24/7 programs by 50% by end of
year one (1).
Initiative 1-Continue to track overtime pay for 24/7 programs.
Initiative 2-Develop and pilot strategies that decrease turn over in these
programs.
Initiative 3-Focus on recruitment and retention of employees at 24/7 programs.
Initiative 4-Develop a PRN pool for 24/7 programs.
Initiative 5-Create/utilize “staff board” for internal pool across programs.
Initiative 6-Reduce call-outs for 24/7 programs.
Initiative 7-Create/utilize a system / process / tool for data tracking that
provides indicators attributing to overtime.
Initiative 8-Continue to monitor staffing for lean and effective scheduling.
Performance Objective F-Improve billed claims rate by 10% points.
Initiative 1-Streamline reconciliations and lower failed claims and activities.
Initiative 2-Engage and train front office staff to complete point of entry and
verify source (insurance verification process).
Performance Objective G-Support fundraising efforts for Behavioral Health of GA.
Initiative 1-Development plan for Behavioral Health of GA.
Initiative 2-Develop and Implement marketing to ‘push’ program education
into community (stakeholders) and into other VPH programs (internal).
Performance Objective H-Be prepared for the unexpected.
Initiative 1-Perform Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats (SWOT)
analysis to:
Action Step a-Gain an understanding of greatest financial and service
delivery risks.
Action Step b-Develop plan for cash reserves above current DBHDD
requirement.
Action Step c-Develop Continuation of Operations plan.
Action Step d-Maintain an infrastructure and separate accounting
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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reporting to support changes in operations that may be caused by
unexpected circumstances.
Performance Objective I-Complete research, analysis, and planning for expanding
services by year three (3).
Initiative 1-Develop a Satellite location in Rockdale within the next two (2)
years.
Initiative 2-Addition of a Detox Unit and Medication Assisted Treatment
(MAT) through partnership with a DCO and/or within GRAN Recovery by
June 30, 2023.
Initiative 3-Expand permanent and transitional housing options in metro area
(DeKalb & Fulton area) and to offer for the Reentry Population.
Initiative 4-In collaboration with DBHDD and DCH, enhance autism services
for children and youth across the state.
Performance Objective J-Atlanta Supportive Housing Care Coordination.
Initiative 1-Develop strategies to enhance our service capacity within the
Community of Care by June 30, 2022.
Strategic Goal III-: Enhance the organization’s infrastructure that supports our mission and the
individuals we serve through efficient, effective and reliable facilities and systems.
Performance Objective A-Implement & maximize functionality of new Talent
Management System, Paycom, to integrate HR and payroll functions by 6/30/21 .
Initiative 1-Time & Attendance/payroll, include accrual mgmt. start 9/1/20; full
implementation 12/31/20.
Initiative 2-Personnel Action Forms 10/31/20.
Initiative 3-Applicant tracking system 11/30/20.
Initiative 4-Document Management (employee trainings, perf. mgmt.) 2/28/21.
Initiative 5-FMLA (non-PTO) leave tracking 10/31/20.
Initiative 6-Scanning of HR paper employee files/documents 6/30/21.
Initiative 7-Evaluate/activate use of employee directory via Paycom 6/30/21.
Performance Objective B-Improve functionality within Carelogic, to include enhance
real-time data and reporting, efficiency of documentation, streamlining workflows, and
overall user ease by end of 2022.
Initiative 1-Utilize MTM/CCBHC gap analysis and readiness assessment to
direct our focus and needs.
Initiative 2-Explore additional functionality in Carelogic or other EHRs (e.g.
Vital Interaction; Client Messaging; web portal for clients).
Initiative 3-Hire/train position for Business Analytics (business intelligence,
certified coders, data analysis).
Initiative 4-Establish reliable/better system to run reports and develop new
reports based on needs.
Initiative 5-Establish real-time Dashboards.
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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Initiative 6-Implement client portal when available to improve client access to
VPH staff & services.
Initiative 7-Explore better use of EHR and technology (e.g. electronic options
for intake/pre-appointment for all programs, use of tablets, reduction of paper
forms to decrease cost of CL document library storage, reduce redundancy of
data collection/entry) .
Performance Objective C-Improve clients accessibility to VPH services, appointments,
scheduling by end of 2021.
Initiative 1-Conduct a needs assessment of access. (further strategies in
description).
Initiative 2-Increase answer rate for incoming calls.
Initiative 3-Develop a robust phone system/phone tree so callers can be routed
to the correct program/person.
Performance Objective D-Develop a telework plan to reduce overall infrastructure
costs by end of 2021.
Initiative 1-Evaluate the impact of CCBHC on the structure of our facilities and
include into our analysis.
Initiative 2-Assessment of property and leases to reduce expenses (combine
offices?)
Initiative 3-Conduct a telework assessment to identify which programs/team
members can work remotely and provide a cost analysis of technology needs
(electronic equipment).
Initiative 4-Develop contingency plans if direct service telehealth phases out.
Performance Objective E-Enhance brand knowledge to reflect a more diverse,
inclusive, and flexible organization by the end of 2023.
Initiative 1-Add team members to Marketing Committee-tasks include:
design/review flyers, advertisements, rack cards; update website, monitor &
increase social media presence.
Initiative 2-Create welcome video on the website for prospective employees
and clients.
Initiative 3-Update building signage to create a more modern & newer look that
is consistent across locations.
Initiative 4-Create artistic ‘diversity wall’ at all sites to show who we are and
who we serve.
Strategic Goal IV-Maximize community partnerships that enhance positive outcomes through
recovery-focused care.
Performance Objective A-Increase impactful partnerships each year by 5% with
advocacy groups, elected officials, state & federal agencies, and other key stakeholders
to achieve VPH’s mission and vision.
Initiative 1-Executive Team will identify areas of growth that are beneficial to
VPH and Behavioral Health of Georgia, including partnerships that are more
readily available in the CCBHC model.
Initiative 2-Executive Team will monitor existing partnerships for their valuehttps://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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added worth toward the VPH mission and vision.
Initiative 3-Executive Team will enhance existing partnerships to better
develop Emergency Preparedness model and workflow.
Initiative 4-CEO (or designee) will invite elected officials to tour facilities and
speak with team members and individuals served about their overall
experience.
Initiative 5-Marketing team will highlight VPH, Behavioral Health of Georgia
and community partners’ relationships and successes achieved through website,
social media, handout materials and community events.
Performance Objective B-Create and sustain partnerships with Designated
Collaborating Organizations (DCO) to achieve desired and required outcomes under
the CCBHC model.
Initiative 1-Executive Team and Service Line Directors will identify areas of
need in the CCBHC model and potential DCO partnerships.
Initiative 2-CEO, CFO and Service Line Directors will establish and maintain
DCO relationship and continually monitor progress and outcomes.
Initiative 3-Executive Team will monitor, continually discuss and review the
cost benefit of DCO relationships and possibilities of transitioning work to
VPH.
Performance Objective C-Strengthen existing community partnerships by increasing
overall positive response on stakeholder survey in two or more areas, and increasing
communication through measured-means such as annual reports, social media posts,
and direct contact communication.
Initiative 1-Marketing team will develop consistent & transparent
communication strategies that promote programming and invite constructive
feedback – especially as it relates to the CCBHC model.
Initiative 2-Marketing team will enhance and monitor strategies to use social
media outlets to communicate with internal and external stakeholders.
Initiative 3-Executive Team will send out Stakeholder Survey annually to all
partners who have a working relationship with VPH.
Initiative 4-Executive Team will develop annual strategies based on the
feedback and results of the Stakeholder Survey.
Initiative 5-CEO and Service Line Directors (or designee) will remain active
with community partners in assisting them in meeting their mission and vision.
Initiative 6-Executive Team will implement strategies to engage partners in a
more meaningful way including learning opportunities, shared events and
public recognition of partnership successes.
Performance Objective D-Build relationships with advocacy groups and organizations
who serve diverse populations by two or more per year.
Initiative 1-Identify advocacy groups and organizations which are active in the
community serving diverse populations, and join them as “change agents” in
this work.
Initiative 2-Establish and sustain relationships with Equity Officers (or such
liaisons) with each school district and criminal justice system to better support
and monitor equity outcomes.
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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Initiative 3-Establish and sustain relationships with faith-based organizations to
create direct access approach to VPH services.
Initiative 4-Highlight and promote community awareness events, including
internal outreach to better understand the need for equity and celebrate cultural
diversity.
Initiative 5-Collaboratively work with agencies which support diverse
populations with financial assistance and legal (i.e., immigration status)
services.
Strategic Goal V-Engage individuals in meaningful, personal interactions that inspire hope on
day one by offering alternative choices of high quality care, respecting their choices and
resulting in improved outcomes.
Performance Objective A-One hundred percent (100%) of individuals have been
offered options to meet their needs.
Initiative 1-Through the Recovery Focused Change Strategy, Healthy, Happy &
Here, continue to move forward in piloting the new intake process and
expanding to all clinics within year one (1).
Action Step a-Explore intake packet across all VPH programs to ensure
efficiency, updated information and to reduce use of paper forms.
Action Step b-Annual review of intake packet to ensure relevant
information is included and to assess need for additional language
translation based on community served.
Action Step c-Phase 2 of intake improvements includes Financial
Intake and Clinical Intake/Assessment. (see description for further
strategies)
Action Step d-Create resources outlining available services and
programs to educate individuals, team members , stakeholders and the
community. (see description for further strategies)
Action Step e-Provide advocacy training to equip staff to balance
between clinical best practices, person-centered care and recoveryfocused models. (see description for further stategy)
Performance Objective B-Develop an agency-wide satisfaction survey and evaluation
tool to assess experiences of care on an annual basis.
Initiative 1-Develop a client satisfaction survey and develop strategies for the
annual plan on how to address needs that have been identified. (see description
for further strategies)
Performance Objective C-Reduce no-show rate for diagnostic assessments and follow
up appointments
Initiative 1-Involve family members in treatment, where appropriate.
Initiative 2-Expand accessibility to services across programming.
Initiative 3-Establish alternatives to regular services and programs to engage
individuals (i.e., art, yoga, etc.).
Performance Objective D-Increase engagement in services following CSU discharge
and transition to next level of care. Engage individuals who are discharged from the
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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crisis units within seven (7) days.
Initiative 1-Streamline discharge and engagement process between acute,
outpatient, specialty and community-based programs.
Performance Objective E-Increase visibility and community awareness of VPH
programming. Engage partners and community in VPH initiatives and activities.
Initiative 1-Increase attractiveness of VPH services.
Initiative 2-Explore ways to use resources from partnerships, stakeholders and
community to educate, advocate, reduce stigma related to behavioral health,
etc.
Initiative 3-Expand work with local civic groups and community organizations
to engage their members in VPH activities or events.
Performance Objective F-Support the agency’s initiative of a smoke-free organization.
Initiative 1-Assess current tobacco/smoking policies, and refine them as
necessary to enable a smooth transition during this process.
Performance Objective G-Implement racial trauma screening, assessment and clinical
tools within services.
Initiative 1-Explore and identify evidence based tools (e.g. UCONN- UnRests)
for improved screening and assessment of racial trauma.
Initiative 2-Provide access to training and clinical tools to promote racial and
social justice.

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/StrategicPlan/Printoption.aspx?S=62001&PID=73
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VIEW POINT HEALTH (Formerly GRN COMMUNITY SERVICE BOARD)
Newton County Board of Commissioners- FY 2022 Request For Funding

Mental Health and Addictive Diseases
Continuation Operating Funds Level
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Funds
TOTAL NEWTON MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

FY 2010
ACTUAL
BUDGET
$ 272,473
$
(21,520)
$ 250,953

FY 2011
ACTUAL
BUDGET
$ 250,953
$
(19,567)
$ 231,386

FY 2012
ACTUAL
BUDGET
$ 231,386
$
(20,404)
$ 210,982

FY 2013 FY2016
ACTUAL
BUDGET
$ 231,282

FY 2017
ACTUAL
BUDGET
$
231,282
$
(19,962)
$
211,320

FY 2018 FY2021
ACTUAL
BUDGET
$
231,282
$
(19,962)
$
211,320

$

231,282

$

23,000

$

23,000

$

$

23,000

$

23,000

FY 2022
REQUESTED
FUNDING
$
231,282
$

231,282

23,000

$

23,000

$

23,000

$

23,000

Independent Enterprises (Developmental Disabilities Day Program)
Continuation Operating Funds Level
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Funds
TOTAL INDEPENDENT ENTERPRISES

$
$
$

49,179
(14,179)
35,000

$
$
$

35,000
(2,450)
32,550

$
$
$

32,550
(2,550)
30,000

$
$
$

29,366
(19,366)
10,000

$
$
$

10,000
(700)
9,300

$
$
$

9,300
(1,000)
8,300

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$
$
$

26,523
(16,523)
10,000

$
$
$

10,000
(700)
9,300

$
$
$

9,300
(1,000)
8,300

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$
$
$

4,900
(4,900)
-

$

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$
$
$
$
$
ANNUAL REDUCTION $
ANNUAL INCREASE
INCREASE (DECREASE) %

377,541
(71,588)
4,900
(4,900)
305,953
(76,488)

254,282

$
$

254,282
(19,962)

$
$

254,282
(19,962)

$
$

254,282
-

$
$

234,320
(19,962)

$
234,320
NO CHANGE

$

254,282

Residential Services
Continuation Operating Funds Level
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Funds
TOTAL RESIDENTIAL SERVICES

Addictive Disease Residential
Continuation Operating Funds Level
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Funds
TOTAL ADDICTIVE DISEASE RESIDENTIAL

Unified Transportation Services
Assistance funding to purchase a vehicle with a lift

Decrease in Capital Funds
TOTAL UNIFIED TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

-

$

-

TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST
Continuation Funding For Operations
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Funds
Transportation Equipment
Decrease in Capital Funds

-20%

$
$

305,953
(23,417)

$
$

282,953
(28,671)

$

$
$

282,536
(23,417)

$
$

254,282
(28,671)

$ 254,282
NO CHANGE

-8%

-10%

Fifteen (15) Year History of Funding By Newton County Board of Commissioners
to View Point Health (GRN Community Service Board)
FY 2007
FY 2008
FY 2009
FY 2010
FY 2011
FY 2012
FY 2013
FY 2014
FY 2015
FY 2016
FY 2017
FY 2018
FY 2019
FY 2020
FY 2021

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

382,441
382,441
382,441
305,953
282,536
254,282
254,282
254,282
254,282
254,282
234,320
234,320
234,320
234,320
234,320

60
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View Point Health Income Statement
SUMMARY
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

Q1 - FY2021

Amended Budget

Q2 - FY2021

Board Approved

REVENUES:

FQ1 Totals

$

Outpatient Medicaid Fees
Fees & Client Funds
Insurance, VA and Medicare
Other Local Funds

1,170,382

% of Annual
Budget

Actual

1/7/2021

County Allocations

Y-T-D Activity

Q3 - FY2021

FQ2 Totals

FQ3 Totals

1/31/2021

0.58%

682,670

58.3%

7,340,800

1,515,721

1,471,300

453,806

453,806

3,440,827

46.9%

920,280

222,253

233,397

92,633

92,633

548,283

59.6%

2,789,153

1,074,205

336,194

100,007

100,007

1,510,406

54.2%

220,647

70,707

162,867

21,337

21,337

254,911

115.5%

$

292,610

$

292,530

$

97,530

$

97,530

$

2,660,837

642,862

723,106

178,720

178,720

1,544,688

58.1%

34,068,167

7,375,018

8,154,327

2,693,214

2,693,214

18,222,559

53.5%

3,465,819

716,793

826,999

384,995

384,995

1,928,787

55.7%

Total Revenues $

52,636,085

$ 11,910,169

$ 12,200,720

4,022,242

$ 28,133,131

53.4%

$

38,642,920

$

$

Medicaid Waiver
DBHDD Contracts
Contract Fees

$

4,022,242

$

EXPENDITURES:
8,275,264

2,967,227

2,967,227

$ 19,517,698

50.5%

Total Operating Expenses

1,945,782

451,275

534,138

149,705

149,705

1,135,118

58.3%

Total Motor Vehicle Expense

1,151,793

216,684

217,780

63,167

63,167

497,631

43.2%

Total Equipment Purchases

345,397

69,629

166,709

123,007

123,007

359,345

104.0%

Total Food Expenses

179,744

20,587

63,630

11,873

11,873

96,090

53.5%

Total Travel Expenses

250,894

30,559

30,524

6,040

6,040

67,123

26.8%

3,344,602

716,682

713,384

218,198

218,198

1,648,264

49.3%

379,000

162,179

4,872

26,193

26,193

193,244

51.0%

Total Physician's Fees

2,576,175

585,747

546,823

173,597

173,597

1,306,167

50.7%

Total Facility Expenses

3,559,478

908,525

918,622

307,339

307,339

2,134,486

60.0%

Total Expenses $

52,375,785

$ 11,437,073

$ 11,471,746

$

4,046,346

51.5%

Net Revenues $

260,300

$

$

$

$ 26,955,165
$
1,177,966

Total Staff Expenses

Total Program Expenses
Total Pharmaceutical Expenses

Margin=
Rolling YTD Margin
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0.49%

8,275,207

473,096
3.97%

728,974
5.97%

4,046,346

$

(24,104) $
-0.60%

(24,104)
-0.60%

4.19%

4.89%

These financial statements have been prepared on the full accrual basis of accounting.
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View Point Health
FYTD2021

Q1 - FY2021

Amended Budget

Board Approved
1/7/2021

REVENUES:

Outpatient Medicaid Fees
Fees & Client Funds
Insurance, VA and Medicare
Other Local Funds
Medicaid Waiver
DBHDD Contracts
Contract Fees
Total Revenues $

1,170,382

Q3 - FY2021

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

7/31/2020

8/31/2020

9/30/2020

10/31/2020

11/30/2020

12/31/2020

1/31/2021

Actual

$

County Allocations

Q2 - FY2021

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Y-T-D Activity

% of Annual
Budget

0.58%

Actual

682,670

58.3%

7,340,800

595,211

510,957

409,553

539,559

454,972

476,769

453,806

3,440,827

46.9%

920,280

85,893

62,989

73,371

79,927

69,398

84,072

92,633

548,283

59.6%

2,789,153

128,193

831,999

114,013

93,127

85,189

157,878

100,007

1,510,406

54.2%

220,647

33,153

18,645

18,909

32,489

37,342

93,036

21,337

254,911

115.5%

$

97,530

$

97,530

$

97,550

$

97,510

$

97,510

$

97,510

$

97,530

$

2,660,837

234,586

174,753

233,523

258,852

216,810

247,444

178,720

1,544,688

58.1%

34,068,167

2,287,236

2,512,406

2,575,376

3,016,201

2,354,466

2,783,660

2,693,214

18,222,559

53.5%

3,465,819

256,574

244,878

215,341

450,414

190,340

186,245

384,995

1,928,787

55.7%

4,022,242

$ 28,133,131

53.4%

52,636,085

$

3,718,376

$

4,454,157

$

3,737,636

$

4,568,079

$

3,506,027

$

4,126,614

$

EXPENDITURES:
38,642,920

2,715,622

2,800,204

2,759,381

2,762,058

2,768,664

2,744,542

2,967,227

$ 19,517,698

50.5%

Total Operating Expenses

1,945,782

149,972

146,245

155,058

226,324

154,423

153,391

149,705

1,135,118

58.3%

Total Motor Vehicle Expense

1,151,793

68,641

70,555

77,488

73,868

75,649

68,263

63,167

497,631

43.2%

175,233

(102,490)

152,557

57,996

(43,844)

123,007

359,345

104.0%

Total Staff Expenses

Total Equipment Purchases

345,397

(3,114)

Total Food Expenses

179,744

5,432

6,429

8,726

28,533

18,829

16,268

11,873

96,090

53.5%

Total Travel Expenses

250,894

9,731

11,009

9,819

10,310

9,790

10,424

6,040

67,123

26.8%

3,344,602

224,569

247,743

244,370

241,803

224,147

247,434

218,198

1,648,264

49.3%

379,000

56,714

54,716

50,749

(88,330)

10,890

82,312

26,193

193,244

51.0%

Total Physician's Fees

2,576,175

211,289

202,626

171,832

194,261

161,095

191,467

173,597

1,306,167

50.7%

Total Facility Expenses

3,559,478

302,716

188,659

417,150

302,505

319,265

296,852

307,339

2,134,486

60.0%

4,046,346

$ 26,955,165
$
1,177,966

51.5%

Total Program Expenses
Total Pharmaceutical Expenses

Total Expenses $

Net Revenues
Margin=
Rolling YTD Margin
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52,375,785

$

260,300

$

0.49%

3,741,571

$

3,903,419

$

(23,195) $

550,738

$

-0.62%

3,792,083

$

3,903,889

$

(54,447) $

664,190

$

3,800,748

$

3,767,109

$

(294,721) $

359,505

$

(24,104)

12.36%

-1.46%

14.54%

-8.41%

8.71%

-0.60%

6.46%

3.97%

6.90%

4.22%

4.99%

4.89%

These financial statements have been prepared on the full accrual basis of accounting.
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4.19%

View Point Health Income Statement
DETAIL
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

C
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

D

J

Annual Budget

Amended Budget

K L

Board Approved

Board Approved

6/4/2020

1/7/2021

M

Actual

REVENUES:
County Allocations

$

Medicaid Rehab Option
Magellan/WellCare - CMO

1,170,380

$

1,170,382

N

O

P

Q

Q1 - FY2021

$

R

S

Actual

Actual

Actual

Z

Actual

Actual

22

22

20

22

19

21

19

8/31/2020

9/30/2020

10/31/2020

11/30/2020

12/31/2020

1/31/2021

$

97,530

$

97,550

$

97,510

$

97,510

$

AC

AD

% of Annual

Y-T-D Activity

Budget

Actual

7/31/2020
97,530

AB

Q3 - FY2021

Q2 - FY2021

97,510

$

0.58%

97,530

$

682,670

58.3%

3,643,647

4,137,980

234,133

217,501

203,802

257,893

226,857

223,302

214,489

1,577,977

38.1%

509,935

771,884

81,204

66,434

48,773

55,404

46,745

54,950

41,562

395,072

51.2%

Cenpatico - CMO

533,027

778,763

84,361

66,626

45,312

70,364

54,171

56,719

53,634

431,187

55.4%

Amerigroup - CMO

852,960

1,146,617

154,231

121,631

81,152

109,802

89,531

105,455

105,383

767,185

66.9%

CareSource - CMO
Total Outpatient Medicaid Fees

358,655

505,556

41,282

38,765

30,514

46,096

37,668

36,343

38,738

269,406

53.3%

5,898,224

7,340,800

595,211

510,957

409,553

539,559

454,972

476,769

453,806

3,440,827

46.9%

Private Pay Outpatient

276,842

400,264

32,351

27,866

34,068

29,623

27,202

26,194

25,734

203,038

50.7%

Client Funds - SSA Benefits

547,376

499,811

52,532

33,828

38,403

48,994

41,296

56,738

65,889

337,680

67.6%

Client Funds - Self Pay
Total Fees & Client Funds

55,138

20,205

1,010

1,295

900

1,310

900

1,140

1,010

7,565

37.4%

879,356

920,280

85,893

62,989

73,371

79,927

69,398

84,072

92,633

548,283

59.6%

Primary Insurance - Commercial

531,187

1,212,660

75,343

64,967

70,231

58,377

45,596

45,703

45,294

405,511

33.4%

Medicare Fees - Outpatient

289,809

1,041,549

11,197

734,909

12,101

14,791

25,126

48,537

11,327

857,988

82.4%

Veterans Administration
Insurance, VA and Medicare
Other Local Funds
Medicaid Waiver

22 Medicaid Waiver - SMS
23 Total Medicaid Waiver
24 DBHDD - GIA
25 DBHDD - FFS
26 DBHDD - COVID-19 Adjustment
27 DBHDD - Misc and Supplemental Funding
28 DBHDD - A/P Contracts
29 Total DBHDD Monies
30 GDCA - Shelter Plus Care Grants
33 State Contracts
34 Agency Service Contracts
36 Total Contract Fees
37
Total Revenues $
38
39

3 of 5

596,675

534,944

41,653

32,123

31,681

19,959

14,467

63,638

43,386

246,907

46.2%

1,417,671

2,789,153

128,193

831,999

114,013

93,127

85,189

157,878

100,007

1,510,406

54.2%

374,930

220,647

33,153

18,645

18,909

32,489

37,342

93,036

21,337

254,911

115.5%

3,648,088

2,660,837

234,586

174,753

233,523

258,852

216,810

247,444

178,720

1,544,688

58.1%

2,870

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.0%

3,650,958

2,660,837

234,586

174,753

233,523

258,852

216,810

247,444

178,720

1,544,688

58.1%

11,159,852

11,364,967

974,098

777,002

982,488

1,054,810

828,639

929,017

932,707

6,478,761

57.0%

5,391,004

2,024,958

348,069

382,654

387,236

438,512

295,975

405,920

490,660

2,749,026

135.8%

(19,752)

347,187

158,769

175,644

90,473

892,923

23.4%

(13,100)

2,897

26,482

44.2%

-

3,816,500

79,783

60,819

140,204

59,900

15,700

12,200

15,554,607

16,801,842

869,586

1,279,731

1,225,404

1,176,517

1,061,473

1,286,179

1,176,477

8,075,367

48.1%

32,245,667

34,068,167

2,287,236

2,512,406

2,575,376

3,016,201

2,354,466

2,783,660

2,693,214

18,222,559

53.5%

571,925

554,567

62,812

40,920

40,934

58,949

40,025

37,693

54,926

336,259

60.6%

2,506,489

813,000

36,648

56,507

49,121

58,787

41,695

34,753

38,148

315,659

38.8%

-

(825)

9,610

2,015,907

2,098,252

157,114

147,451

125,286

332,678

108,620

113,799

291,921

1,276,869

60.9%

5,094,321

3,465,819

256,574

244,878

215,341

450,414

190,340

186,245

384,995

1,928,787

55.7%

28,133,131

53.4%

50,731,507

$

52,636,085

$

3,718,376

$

4,454,157

$

3,737,636

$

4,568,079

$

These financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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3,506,027

$

4,126,614

$

4,022,242

$

View Point Health Income Statement
DETAIL
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

C
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
69
70
71
73
74
75
76

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries
Contracted Staff
Hourly Labor
Overtime

$

D

J

Annual Budget

Annual Budget

22,689,173

$

K L

26,685,830

$

M

N

O

P

Q

R

S

7/31/2020

8/31/2020

9/30/2020

10/31/2020

11/30/2020

12/31/2020

1/31/2021

1,852,118

$

1,891,245

$

1,901,499

894,178

263,845

15,703

31,166

17,795

1,860,034

408,726

60,424

64,412

755,346

664,152

47,282

54,301

$

1,924,422

$

1,880,172

$

1,903,755
22,529

$

Z

AB

AC

Y-T-D Activity

1,958,015
67,487

$

AD
0.58%

13,311,226

49.9%

192,670

73.0%

18,231

19,759

29,386

-

39,348

41,526

38,959

274,055

67.1%

42,424

54,618

70,735

49,151

46,961

365,472

55.0%

Shift Differentials

267,874

334,644

11,282

12,121

10,957

12,192

38,760

40,569

51,680

177,561

53.1%

FICA & Medicare Taxes

516,881

1,432,366

32,104

32,613

31,271

31,448

32,130

32,930

33,514

226,010

15.8%
57.8%

6,700,255

6,857,490

549,636

562,805

578,561

575,309

543,869

516,902

639,858

3,966,940

ERS - Employer Contributions

Employer Health Insurance Benefits

80,239

52,747

6,729

6,177

5,027

5,077

5,077

5,077

5,804

38,968

73.9%

Employer 401a Contributions

1,681,543

1,902,284

136,359

141,379

140,843

137,565

134,561

129,964

121,753

942,424

49.5%

Assessments by Merit System
Total Staff Expenses
Advertising & Recruiting

48,883

40,836

3,985

3,985

1,618

3,196

4,253

2,139

3,196

22,372

54.8%

35,494,406

38,642,920

2,715,622

2,800,204

2,759,381

2,762,058

2,768,664

2,744,542

2,967,227

19,517,698

50.5%

81,364

5,390

2,254

507

317

1,801

517

2,217

6,758

125.4%

Computer Software

579,097

798,306

47,009

44,878

57,371

93,549

49,139

52,851

51,946

396,743

49.7%

Dues & Subscriptions

47,403

25,538

4,687

3,031

1,752

3,592

2,625

2,549

2,490

20,726

81.2%

750,491

724,638

60,595

60,611

57,876

62,434

57,675

63,129

60,790

423,110

58.4%

29,184

17,339

3,114

13,225

86,153

191.0%

2,870

2,372

1,902

13,058

144.8%

Insurance (WC, Liability, Property, etc.)

(855)

Fees & Applications

81,171

45,112

4,631

4,418

14,242

Postage

20,434

9,019

626

2,903

2,466

Printing

2,214

26,220

-

-

500

565

9

106

-

1,180

4.5%

318,946

311,559

33,279

28,150

20,344

36,764

22,965

28,753

17,135

187,390

60.1%

Supplies & Materials

(81)

Total Operating Expenses

1,881,120

1,945,782

149,972

146,245

155,058

226,324

154,423

153,391

149,705

1,135,118

58.3%

Motor Vehicle Expense

2,851,992

1,151,793

68,641

70,555

77,488

73,868

75,649

68,263

63,167

497,631

43.2%

175,233

(102,490)

Equipment Purchases

132,118

345,397

(3,114)

152,557

57,996

(43,844)

123,007

359,345

104.0%

Food Expenses

349,468

179,744

5,432

6,429

8,726

28,533

18,829

16,268

11,873

96,090

53.5%

Travel Expenses

422,863

250,894

9,731

11,009

9,819

10,310

9,790

10,424

6,040

67,123

26.8%

Direct Benefits to Clients

282,880

563,847

25,832

30,190

25,396

26,092

28,549

24,222

23,979

184,260

32.7%

Employee Recruitment + Retention

172,541

97,795

9,557

6,238

5,954

6,633

6,405

11,517

19,254

65,558

67.0%

99,498

99,458

8,529

8,460

23,332

11,235

2,984

4,832

22,513

81,885

82.3%

1,526,140

1,383,313

98,526

103,023

96,704

103,880

95,114

104,525

47,578

649,350

46.9%

Personal Allowances
Program Contracted Services
Room & Board - Clients

1,025,878

1,200,189

82,125

99,832

92,984

93,963

91,095

102,338

104,874

667,211

55.6%

Total Program Expenses

3,106,937

3,344,602

224,569

247,743

244,370

241,803

224,147

247,434

218,198

1,648,264

49.3%

859,952

379,000

56,714

54,716

50,749

11,670

9,894

83,308

26,193

293,244

77.4%

1,921

-

-

-

-

(100,000)

996

861,873

379,000

56,714

54,716

50,749

(88,330)

10,890

Pharmaceuticals
Per Prescription Fee
Total Pharmaceutical Expenses
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(996)
82,312

26,193

(100,000)

0.0%

193,244

51.0%

View Point Health Income Statement
DETAIL
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2021
(Unaudited)

C
77 Physician's Fees
78 Building Rent
79 Utilities
80 Facility Telecommunications
81 Building Repairs & Maintenance
82 Interest Paid
83 Depreciation
84 Total Facility Expenses
86
Total Expenses $
87
88
89
Net Revenues $
90
91
92

Margin=

93
97
98
99

D

R

S

2,790,769

2,576,175

J

211,289

202,626

171,832

194,261

161,095

191,467

173,597

1,306,167

50.7%

1,394,891

1,503,713

133,111

130,770

151,457

108,712

127,916

129,793

130,015

911,774

60.6%

412,833

440,510

18,251

30,033

24,924

22,264

25,428

26,944

31,299

179,143

40.7%

761,865

745,772

62,229

60,331

44,499

66,013

63,444

63,886

56,417

416,819

55.9%

498,291

310,068

38,662

29,758

35,711

30,408

46,577

21,852

31,425

234,393

75.6%

98,999

139,415

9,945

(100,411)

120,007

9,651

9,552

9,453

9,354

67,551

48.5%

519,334

420,000

40,518

38,178

40,552

65,457

46,348

44,924

48,829

324,806

77.3%

3,686,213

3,559,478

302,716

188,659

417,150

302,505

319,265

296,852

307,339

2,134,486

60.0%

$

26,955,165

51.5%

$

1,177,966

51,577,759

K L

$

52,375,785

$

(846,252) $

260,300

$

N

3,741,571

O

$

3,903,419

$

(23,195) $

550,738

$

P

3,792,083

Q

$

3,903,889

$

(54,447) $

664,190

$

3,800,748

$

3,767,109

$

(294,721) $

359,505

$

Z

4,046,346

AB

AC

-

-1.67%

0.49%

ADJ: Total expenditures, less Depreciation:

5 of 5

M

-0.62%

3,701,052.95

12.36%

3,865,241.00

-1.46%

3,751,531.00

14.54%

3,838,432.00

These financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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-8.41%

3,754,400.00

8.71%

3,722,185.00

(24,104)
-0.60%

3,997,517.00

4.19%

AD

View Point Health
FY2021 Proposed Budget
SUMMARY
For the Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2021
FY2021
AMENDED

FY2021 OPERATING

OPERATING
Board Proposed

Board Approved

1/7/2021

6/4/2020

REVENUES:
$

County Allocations
Outpatient Medicaid Fees
Fees & Client Funds
Insurance, VA and Medicare
Other Local Funds
Medicaid Waiver
DBHDD Contracts
Contract Fees

1,170,382

$

1,170,380

7,340,800

5,898,223

920,280

879,356

2,789,153

1,417,671

220,647

374,930

2,660,837

3,650,958

34,068,167

32,245,667

3,465,819

5,094,321

Total Revenues $

52,636,085

$

50,731,506

$

38,642,920

$

35,494,406

EXPENDITURES:
Total Staff Expenses
Total Operating Expenses

1,945,782

1,881,120

Total Motor Vehicle Expense

1,151,793

2,851,992

Total Equipment Purchases

345,397

132,118

Total Food Expenses

179,744

349,468

Total Travel Expenses

250,894

422,863

3,344,602

3,106,937

379,000

861,873

Total Physician's Fees

2,576,175

2,790,769

Total Facility Expenses

3,559,478

3,686,213

Total Program Expenses
Total Pharmaceutical Expenses

Total Expenses $

Net Revenues
Margin=

1 of 4

52,375,785

$

260,300

0.49%

51,577,759
(846,254)

-1.67%

These financial statements have been prepared on the full accrual basis of accounting.
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View Point Health
FY2021 Proposed Budget
DETAIL
For the Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2021

C

S

U

T

W

V

Y

X

Z

AA

AC

AB

FY2021

1

FY2021
ADDITIONAL VARIABLES

OPERATING

OPERATING

2
Board Approved

Program and

6/4/2020

Contract Changes

MODIFIED
HHS FUNDING

DBHDD

Other

Board Presented

CONSOLIDATED

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

AMENDED

PROGRAM TO

1/7/2021

REVENUES:
County Allocations
Medicaid Rehab Option

$

1,170,380

$

2

$

1,170,382

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

1,170,382

3,643,647

494,333

4,137,980

4,137,980

Magellan/WellCare - CMO

509,935

261,949

771,884

771,884

Cenpatico - CMO

533,027

245,736

778,763

778,763

Amerigroup - CMO

852,960

293,657

1,146,617

1,146,617

CareSource - CMO

358,655

146,901

505,556

505,556

5,898,223

1,442,577

7,340,800

Private Pay Outpatient

Total Outpatient Medicaid Fees

276,842

123,422

400,264

400,264

Client Funds - SSA Benefits

547,376

(47,565)

499,811

499,811

55,138

(34,933)

20,205

Total Fees & Client Funds

879,356

40,924

920,280

Primary Insurance - Commercial

531,187

681,473

1,212,660

Medicare Fees - Outpatient

289,809

28,911

318,720

Client Funds - Self Pay

Veterans Administration
Insurance, VA and Medicare
Other Local Funds
Medicaid Waiver
Medicaid Waiver - SMS
Total Medicaid Waiver

2 of 4

596,675
1,417,671

(61,731)
648,653

-

-

-

20,205
-

-

-

1,041,549

534,944

534,944
722,829

-

-

-

-

29,167

374,930

(183,450)

191,480

(987,251)

2,660,837

2,870

(2,870)

-

3,650,958

(990,121)

2,660,837

2,789,153
220,647
2,660,837
-

-

These financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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920,280
1,212,660

722,829

2,066,324

3,648,088

7,340,800

-

-

2,660,837

View Point Health
FY2021 Proposed Budget
DETAIL
For the Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2021

C
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
34
35
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61

S

U

T

W

V

11,159,852

205,115

11,364,967

DBHDD - FFS

5,391,004

450,454

5,841,458

-

-

-

DBHDD - COVID-19 Adjustment
DBHDD - Misc and Supplemental Funding

140,204

(80,304)

Z

AA

AC

AB

11,364,967
(3,816,500)

2,024,958

3,816,500

3,816,500

59,900

59,900
16,801,842

DBHDD - A/P Contracts

15,554,607

1,247,235

16,801,842

Total DBHDD Monies

32,245,667

1,822,500

34,068,167

GDCA - Shelter Plus Care Grants

Y

X

DBHDD - GIA

571,925

(17,358)

554,567

State Contracts

2,506,489

(1,693,489)

813,000

Agency Service Contracts

2,015,907

(175,259)

1,840,648

Total Contract Fees

5,094,321

(1,886,106)

3,208,215

Total Revenues $

50,731,506

$

894,979

$

51,626,485

$

22,689,173

$

3,996,657

$

26,685,830

-

-

-

34,068,167
554,567
813,000

$

722,829

$

-

$

257,604

2,098,252

257,604

3,465,819

286,771

$

52,636,085

$

26,685,830

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries
Contracted Staff

894,178

(630,333)

263,845

263,845

1,860,034

(1,451,308)

408,726

408,726

Overtime

755,346

(91,194)

664,152

664,152

Shift Differentials

267,874

66,770

334,644

334,644

FICA & Medicare Taxes

516,881

915,485

1,432,366

1,432,366

6,700,255

157,235

6,857,490

6,857,490

Hourly Labor

Employer Health Insurance Benefits
ERS - Employer Contributions

80,239

Employer 401a Contributions

1,681,543

Assessments by Merit System
Total Staff Expenses
Advertising & Recruiting
Computer Software
Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance (WC, Liability, Property, etc.)

48,883
35,494,406

(27,492)
220,741
(8,047)
3,148,514

81,364

(75,974)

579,097

219,209

52,747

52,747

1,902,284

1,902,284

40,836
38,642,920

40,836
-

-

-

38,642,920

5,390

5,390

798,306

798,306

47,403

(21,865)

25,538

750,491

187,999

938,490

25,538
(213,852)

724,638

Fees & Applications

81,171

(36,059)

45,112

Postage

20,434

(11,415)

9,019

9,019

Printing

2,214

24,006

26,220

26,220

Supplies & Materials
Total Operating Expenses

3 of 4

318,946
1,881,120

(7,387)
278,514

45,112

311,559
2,159,634

311,559
-

These financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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-

(213,852)

1,945,782

View Point Health
FY2021 Proposed Budget
DETAIL
For the Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2021

C
62
63
64
66
67
68
71
72
73
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

S

Motor Vehicle Expense

U

T

W

V

Y

X

Z

AA

AC

AB

2,851,992

(1,700,199)

1,151,793

-

-

-

1,151,793

Equipment Purchases

132,118

(44,325)

87,793

-

-

257,604

345,397

Food Expenses

349,468

(169,724)

179,744

-

-

-

179,744

Travel Expenses

422,863

(171,969)

250,894

-

-

-

250,894

Direct Benefits to Clients

282,880

280,967

563,847

563,847

Employee Recruitment + Retention

172,541

(74,746)

97,795

97,795

99,498

(40)

99,458

99,458

Program Contracted Services

1,526,140

(142,827)

1,383,313

1,383,313

Room & Board - Clients

1,025,878

174,311

1,200,189

Total Program Expenses

3,106,937

237,665

3,344,602

Personal Allowances

Pharmaceuticals
Per Prescription Fee
Total Pharmaceutical Expenses

859,952

(371,554)

488,398

1,921

(1,921)

-

1,200,189
-

-

-

3,344,602

(109,398)

379,000
-

861,873

(373,475)

488,398

-

-

Physician's Fees

2,790,769

(214,594)

2,576,175

-

-

Building Rent

(109,398)

379,000

-

2,576,175

1,394,891

108,822

1,503,713

1,503,713

Utilities

412,833

27,677

440,510

440,510

Facility Telecommunications

761,865

(16,093)

745,772

745,772

Building Repairs & Maintenance

498,291

(188,223)

310,068

310,068
139,415

Interest Paid

98,999

40,416

139,415

Depreciation

519,334

(99,334)

420,000

3,686,213

(126,735)

3,559,478

Total Facility Expenses
Total Expenses $

Net Revenues $
Margin=

4 of 4

51,577,759

(846,254)

$

863,672

$

$

31,308

$

52,441,431

(814,946)

-1.67%

420,000
-

-

$

-

$

$

722,829

$

-1.58%

These financial statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

69

-

-

-

3,559,478

$

(65,646)

$

52,375,785

$

352,417

$

260,300
0.49%

Economic
Development

70

Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form

Agency Name:

NCIDA – Office of Economic Development

Project Name:
Contact Person:

Lanier Sims, NCIDA Chairman, Serra Hall, Economic Development

Address:

2105 Lee St, SW

Email:

skphillips@selectnewton.com

Phone Number:

770‐235‐7468

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2021: $ 400,000
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 77 %
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
NCBOC

77%

NCWSA

20%

Other (City of Covington, Snapping Shoals EMC)

3%

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past. X
If so, please
indicate how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years. FY2019 $289,850, FY2020
$289,850 and FY2021 $350,000
5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? If the funding was not provided there would be a
negative impact Newton County’s tax base due to lack of support to recruit and sustain our business
tax base. To cut or reduce funding would put at risk several highly visible State Projects, Site Selector
connections and local investment. If this request is not funded, it would limit our ability to honor
our commitment per the IGA between NCBOC and NCIDA to promote trade, commerce, industry
and employee opportunities within the county, including the marketing and sell of Stanton Grove.
[AUTHOR NAME]
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6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. The Office of Economic
Development works to implement an economic development strategic plan per the guidelines
specified in the NCBOC and NCIDA IGA section 1.2. This plan includes recruiting new and existing
industry to create new quality paying jobs to our county; to coordinate with state and local public
and private entities to develop and implement workforce development programs; to develop and
maintain strategic relationships with developers, real estate and site location companies, and
other entities for the purpose of identifying potential prospects to locate or expand operation in
the County; identify target properties for acquisition, development, lease or sale within the
County; Develop and maintain relationships with professionals to assist in the planning design and
development of projects; Develop, maintain and monitor incentive packages to support the
development of projects within the County; and Maintains current statistics and research to
support and promote economic development activities within the County.
If
7. Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place. X
so, please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
Please contact Serra Phillips for a copy of the OED”deck”
8. How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding?
Indefinitely. The partnership between the IDA and the BOC is critical to our economic future.
9. What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding?
We believe the IDA is a function of Newton County.
We will continue to ask for funding to support economic development from other agencies both
public and private such as the NCWSA, City of Covington, SSEMC, etc.
10. Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations. See attached proposed budget.
11. Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. Due to changes from COVID and
heightened volume of projects many office upgrades are requested. We need to upgrade our
internet system to fiber to provide continued service for 3 team members and the cost to set up the
office and computer for a new employee.
12. How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens? ? Recruitment
of new industries and expansion of existing industries to bring new quality jobs to our County
creates a need for local workforce. It also brings new revenue to the overall tax digest. This also
applies to commercial development through new development or re‐vitalization of existing
development to foster new economic opportunities within Newton County
13. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year.
Responded to ‐‐‐‐ a)
a) RFP’s/RFI’s in FY 2020
[AUTHOR NAME]
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Funding Request Form
b) Recruited LIDL to Newton County
c) Worked with the State of Georgia Technical Colleges to develop workforce training
opportunities to better serve existing industry based on programs designed with GPTC and
Georgia State locally in Newton County.
d) Represented Newton County at industry events to develop relationships with site
selectors, etc to market Newton County sites
e) Recruited new $42 billion industry to Stanton Springs
14. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County.
a. To lead the Nation in Economic Development
b. Become a top 2% workforce in the Nation
c. Decrease retail leakage by half.

a. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals

Below are our 5‐year goals:
1. Newton County will lead the Nation in Economic Development. This will be measured by
% job creation Department of Labor and Unemployment Rate. The unemployment rate
pre‐covid dropped to 3.9% lowest in Newton County History.
2. Newton County Workforce will be ranked in the top (2) percentile in the Nation. This will
be measured by US News rankings. (10 year goals with a 5 years goal of obtaining a
ranking)
3. Newton County and Covington will cut its retail leakage numbers in half. Measured by
Retail Coach.

[AUTHOR NAME]
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15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support?
I.
Project Development
II.
Response to RFP’s/RFI’s
III.
Workforce Development
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2021?
Implement the OED strategic plan
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives?
Strategy C found in the County Strategic Plan specifically items 3‐5

How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by Newton
County funds? Below are our 5 year goals:
1. Newton County will lead the Nation in Economic Development. This will be measured by %
job creation Department of Labor and Unemployment Rate.
2. Newton County Workforce will be ranked in the top (2) percentile in the Nation. This will be
measured by US News rankings. (10 year goals with a 5 years goal of obtaining a ranking)
3. Newton County and Covington will cut its retail leakage numbers in half. Measured by Retail
Coach.
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe
"what we do."
I. OED recruits new industry and works with existing industry to bring
new jobs to our County and improve the tax digest.
II. OED works with education providers from K‐12 to secondary
providers such as GPTC, Oxford College, and Georgia State
University local compasses and State of Georgia agencies such as to
utilize programs such as Quickstart to assist existing industry and
new industry to train their workforce.
III. OED works with developers to create and/or re‐vitalize
development within the County.
IV. Foster relationships with strategic partners to recruit jobs and a
qualified workforce in Newton County.
V. OED works on job fairs, job training opportunities.

[AUTHOR NAME]
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VI. OED provides data and content for citizens, developers – all
stakeholders.
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver."
I. Create and maintain current and factual data for Newton County
for use in recruitment of new jobs and businesses.
II. Create and maintain “Book of Sites” for reference when meeting
with Site Selectors, etc representing opportunities that fil within our
Targeted Industries and markets.
III. Update factual information and presentations regarding
opportunities to promote Newton County.
IV. Fostered relationships with the State of Georgia, Ga Power and EMC
to recruit new opportunities for Newton County. We also have
fostered relationships with other agencies, public and private real
estate entities to promote opportunities within Newton County.
3. Outcomes: the medium‐term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve."
1. 3% Unemployment
2. Recruitment of $42 Billion Project at Stanton Springs
3. Groundbreakings on 3 new hotels, mixed use developments, film
studios, 5 new expansions, etc.
4. Impacts: the results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing
poverty and creating jobs.
I. 3% Unemployment/workforce development
II. Expansion of existing industry such as Fibervisions
III. Recruitment of new industry such as $42 Billion Project at Stanton
Springs
IV. Increase tax revenue
V. Reduce sales tax leakage
VI. Work with the City of Covington and NC Planning Dept to
encourage good development within our county
VII. Support Stanton Springs JDA for FACEBOOK and Takeda and the
expansion of Stanton Springs
[AUTHOR NAME]
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OED Proposed Budget FY2022
With Increases

Total Budget
FY2021

TOTAL BUDGET

PROPOSED

PROPOSED

FY2021

Increase

Total Budget

By line item

Operating Income
Budgeted Income (contract)
7522‐33.6000 Local Gov't Income
7522‐33.6002 Newton County
7522‐33.6006 NCWSA

$
$
$

15,902.00
350,000.00
100,000.00

$
$
$

15,902.00 $
100.00 $
350,000.00 $ 50,000.00 $
100,000.00
$

16,002.00
400,000.00
100,000.00

7522‐1000 Interest Income
7522‐38.9010 Other Income
7522‐38‐9012 Reimbursments
Total budgeted Income

$

465,902.00

$

465,902.00 $ 50,000.00 $

516,002.00

$

48,202.00

Operating Expense
7522‐52.1210 Professional Marketing
7522‐52.2310 Rent
7522‐52.3200 Telephone/Internet
7522‐52.3201 Cell Phone
7522‐52.3202 Postage
7522‐52.3300 Advertising cost
7522‐52.3500 Travel
7522‐52.3600 Dues
7522‐3602 Bank Fees
7522‐52.3700 Training/Education
7522‐53.1100 General Supplies & Materials
7522‐53.1600 Copier Expense
Subtotal Operating Expense
7522.53.3900 Contract Labor
Salary/Benefits
7522‐57.1000 Intergovernmental
Subtotal Salary/Benefits
Interest
7522‐58.2300 Interest Expense
OED Prospect Development
Expenses
7523‐52.1204 Legal (prospect specific)
7523‐52.1300 Economic Studies ‐Other Technical Svcs
7523‐52.2140 Site Prep
7523‐52.3300 Advertising/Marketing
7523‐52.3500 Travel (prospect specific)
7523‐52.3700 Training/Conferences
7523‐52.3900 Program Expense
7523‐52.3902 Prospect Development
7523‐52.3904 RFP/RFI
7523‐53.1700 Meeting Expense
Subtotal Pros Dev Expenses

$
$
$
$

15,902.00 $
1,800.00 $
2,700.00
1,200.00 $
4,800.00
15,500.00
400.00
6,000.00
1,440.00
2,700.00
52,442.00
12,420.00

$

12,240.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$

214,876.00

$

$

186,000.00

100.00 $
8,500.00 $
$
500.00 $

16,002.00
10,300.00
2,700.00
1,700.00

$
5,000.00 $
$
10,000.00 $
10,000.00 $
2,100.00 $
36,200.00 $
2,940.00 $

4,800.00
20,500.00
400.00
16,000.00
11,440.00
4,800.00
88,642.00
15,360.00

214,876.00 $ 12,000.00 $

226,876.00

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

‐

$

186,000.00

30,000.00
4,000.00
25,000.00
2,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
75,000.00
25,000.00
5,000.00
186,000.00

Total Expense

$ 461,318.00

$ 465,738.00 $ 51,140.00 $ 516,878.00

Net Income

$

$

4,584.00

164.00

$

76

(876.00)
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Agency Name:

Alcovy CASA, Inc.

Project Name:

Changing a Child’s Story

Contact Person:

Lindsay Dycus

Address:

1124 Clark Street, Covington 30014

Email:

Lindsay.dycus@alcovycasa.org

Phone Number:

770.362.0659

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022: $ $15,666
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 6.8 %
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA)

62.3%

GA CASA

20.2%

Walton BOC

7.2%

Fundraising/Donations

3.5%

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past.
how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years.
FY2019‐ $15,666, plus inkind of office space
FY2020‐ $15,666, plus inkind of office space
FY2021: $15,666, plus inkind of office space

If so, please indicate

5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced?

[AUTHOR NAME]
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Alcovy CASA relies on funding from Newton County BOC to provide many of the various items in our
budget. Currently, the Newton BOC funds the ED’s FICA, training expenses for staff, Chamber of
Commerce yearly registration, and CASA recruitment that is vital to our success in helping the
children of Newton County that are in foster care. A good deal of the money given to Alcovy CASA
by Newton BOC is given back into our community.
Likewise, the availability of office space for Alcovy CASA has been priceless to our organization. The
location has allowed us to be easily present for court hearings, community gatherings, allowed us to be
a larger presence in the community which attracts more volunteers, and has allowed us to save on
funding that would have to go towards office space.
6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions.
Alcovy CASA is a Non‐Profit that recruits, screens, trains, and supervises community volunteers to
advocate for the best interest of children that are placed into the foster care system from Newton
County.
7. Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place.
If so,
please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
8. How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding?
Continual funding will be requested as Newton County continues to have children placed in Foster
Care from Newton County.
What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding?
Newton BOC is a small portion of our funding, but it is a crucial portion that provides assistance to a
stretched budget. Not only the funding, but the office space has been critical to our success in
gathering Newton County volunteers and helping more children.
9. Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations.
FICA benefits‐
$3,581.58
Quickbooks‐
$840
Office Supplies‐
$2000
Postage/supplies
$300
Travel/Training expenses
$6000
Newton Chamber
$120
Community Awareness/Recruitment
$2824.42
TOTAL=
$15,666
10. Please provide an explanation for any change in your request.
We are not requesting a change and humbly and respectfully thank the County Commissioners for
continued funding and office space.
[AUTHOR NAME]
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11. How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens?
The Court Appointed Special Advocate program offers individualized and critical advocacy to our
foster care population of Newton County. This program highlights Newton County citizens helping
other Newton County citizens who have been victimized by child abuse and/or neglect. Not only
does this program provide a necessary resource for our community’s children, it provides an avenue
for our community to help itself.
12. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year.
Funding was used to provide many resources for the CASA program. As you can see from the line
items for the BOC’s FY, the money went straight back into Newton County and to attract more
community members to help our children in foster care in Newton County.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County
Alcovy CASA’s goal is to provide consistent and high‐quality volunteer advocacy to 100% of the
children in Newton County who find themselves in foster care. National CASA statistics show that a
child in foster care with a CASA Volunteer Advocate is likely to be in foster care eight less months than
a child who does not have a CASA Volunteer. A child in foster care is also less likely to change foster
homes, creating less trauma and uncertainty for our smallest and most fragile community members.
These children are also more likely to be in a foster placement with their sibling, be in a home of a
responsible family member, and change foster homes less times. This helps in keeping children stable.
Each move in a foster home means the child then has to change schools, doctors, dentist, counselor,
foster parents, and friends. CASA children are also less likely to reenter the foster care system. The
CASA Volunteer is often the one consistent in a child in foster care’s life.
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b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals

Alcovy CASA is active in our community in recruiting community members to become advocates for
children in foster care by attending various social clubs, speaking at community events, being present
at Chamber gatherings, placing education and awareness materials around the community, as well as
a social media and online presence. While COVID has required us to be creative, we have still
continued to train volunteers virtually since the pandemic began, which is an impressive
accomplishment since per National CASA standards, a training class is 30 hours of classroom training
and 10 hours of court observation.
Every person affiliated with CASA‐ from volunteer, to staff members, to board members—is charged
with recruiting and raising awareness for children in our community who are in need of a voice in
court and in the community.

13. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support?
 Funding from Newton County will continue to support volunteer recruitment,
training, and retention. Alcovy CASA strives to provide consistent, high‐quality
advocacy for each and every child within the foster care system.
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2021?
 CASA’s goal is to increase volunteer support for foster care children within the next
FY. Every child deserves a voice.
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives?
i. Collaboration‐ Newton County funds help provide education and awareness to
Newton County residents on how to help Newton County children while they are in
the Newton County foster care system.
ii. Dependable‐ Each volunteer that is assigned to a foster care child commits to
following that child the entire time they are in the foster care system. This provides
security to those children who are in desperate need of a loving, caring adult.
iii. Energetic‐ CASA is driving by passion for the best interest of children. A volunteer
commits to 30 hours of classroom education and 10 hours of court observation just
to become a volunteer. After the pre‐service training, each year each volunteer is
required to receive 12 hours of continuing education. The Alcovy CASA Board, Staff,
and Volunteers are passionate about the work they do, the service they provide,
and the children they advocate for.
iv. Equitable‐ By definition, a Court Appointed Special Advocate is an impartial party to
a child in foster care’s dependency court hearings. Juvenile Court Judges rely on
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non‐biased information from the CASA on solely what is in the best interest of the
child in court. The CASA is the only person in the court room or in a child’s case that
does not have a vested interest in anyone but the child. Attorneys are all being paid
to represent their client, regardless of their position, but CASA is the only person
who is doing this work solely by their heart and passion.
v. Integrity‐ CASA has made themselves financially transparent. Also, in case work, the
CASA volunteer maintains the confidentiality of the child and the case that they are
working but is forthcoming to DFCS and to the Court to help provide quality and
common‐sense solutions to best help families and children.
vi. Unity‐ While a child is in foster care, the CASA Volunteer Advocate is committed to
that child permanency with a family. We hope and work towards the parent being
able to regain custody of their child after they have been able to resolve the abuse
and/or neglect in their homes. CASA always supports reunification so families can be
united safely. When this isn’t possible, and the parents are not able to regain
custody, CASA searches for relatives or fictive kin who would be a safe and
permanent home for that child to grow up. CASA invests in our most valuable
resource: our children. Without children growing up in safe and stable families, they
it is a challenge for them to become stable members of our society. CASA strives to
provide comfort and long term safety for our children.
d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds?
Success is measured by more Newton County children in foster care receiving a CASA Volunteer
Advocate to receive quality advocacy to reduce their time in the foster care system.

The Activities that CASA provides for the community is community education and awareness around the
vast needs of our children who find themselves in foster care to no fault of their own. CASA strives for
each and every member of our community to be aware of the trauma that is involved with children who
have to come into foster care. Through community education and awareness, community members
then have a chance to act—to better then lives of those around them.

The Outputs of our service is that provide consistent, long term, quality advocacy to our children who
have experienced abuse and/or neglect and now find themselves in foster care.

An example of one of our recent Outcomes: A teenage girl changed foster homes in March of 2020. She
moved the day before the pandemic shut down life as we knew it and she could not register to go to
school in her foster home. This CASA Volunteer managed to convience the previous school system to
keep her enrolled and the Volunteer took it upon herself to get the lessons from the previous school
system and deliver them without contact to the child in her new home so she would not be behind in
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school. Stories like this one are the Outcomes that CASA is striving for with all of our Newton County
children in foster care.
In a world closing down in a pandemic and tightening the ability to connect with others, our children lost
the ability to visit with their biological families. Many were not able to hug their parents for months. At
best, children were able to visit virtually with their family, if their parents had the ability for a virtual
visit. For a population who already reports feeling alone and depressed, social distancing certainly did
not help our kids. To help these kids remember their worth and value, during COVID, our volunteers
have been most creative. They have Zoomed, Facetimed, visited in lawns with masks and distance, they
have read books through closed car windows, created pen pals, and so much more! In a world loosing
connection, our CASA Volunteers stood in that gap for our children.

Impacts: Children are in foster care for less amount of time when a CASA Volunteer Advocate is
assigned—this reduces the financial burden that the state and county have to meet for providing needs
for each child. This creates better Judicial Economy with the hiring of legal representation for the parties
of each case.

Studies tell us that each time a child is moved between foster care, more and more trauma is impacting
the child. With a CASA, a child stands a better chance of being in the same home as their siblings, staying
in the same foster home, finding a relative or fictive kin who is able to care for them in this turbulent
time. Each time a child has to change foster homes, they also change schools, teachers, friends, foster
siblings, house rules, house expectations, doctors, dentists, therapists, etc. CASA plays a direct role in
keeping a child stable in their foster home to diminish the impact and trauma that comes with being in
foster care.

Families in Juvenile Court with DFCS involvement also have to work a Case Plan—a map that gives
specific direction on how a family can change to be reunited. Often this means finding sobriety from
illegal drug use, finding employment, dealing with unmet mental health needs. Helping families in these
areas directly impact the dependence each family needs from the County. With families who are
employed, functional, sober, and with their mental health needs consistently addressed, often those
families are able to come out of poverty and into a better life.
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe
"what we do."
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver."
3. Outcomes: the medium‐term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
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to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve."
4. Impacts: the results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing
poverty and creating jobs.
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Alcovy CASA
Budget vs. Actuals: CASA Budget 2021 - FY2
February 2021

Feb 2021
Actual

Budget

Income
4340 Income
4342 Newton Cty. Brd. of Comm.

Total 4340 Income

1,305.50

$

0.00

$

1,305.50

Total Income

$

0.00

$

1,305.50

Gross Profit

$

0.00

$

1,305.50

Expenses

6340 Newton County
6340-1 FICA Employers Portion

408.28

298.46

6340-3 Travel Meals for Staff

166.66

6340-4 Mileage and Parking

333.33

6340-5 Newton Chamber of Commerce

0.00

6340-7 Community Awareness

1,005.00

6340-9 Office Supplies

235.37
166.67

6345 Quickbooks

70.00

85

70.00

6346 Postage
Total 6340 Newton County

0.00
$

1,483.28

$

1,270.49

Total Expenses

$

1,483.28

$

1,270.49

Net Operating Income

-$

1,483.28

$

35.01

Net Income

-$

1,483.28

$

35.01

Thursday, Mar 04, 2021 10:56:59 AM GMT-8 - Accrual Basis
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21 P&L
Total
Actual

Budget
0.00

0.00

0.00

1,305.50

$

0.00

$

1,305.50

$

0.00

$

1,305.50

$

0.00

$

1,305.50

0.00

0.00

408.28

298.46

0.00

166.66

0.00

333.33

0.00

0.00

1,005.00

235.37

0.00

166.67

70.00

70.00
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0.00
$

1,483.28

0.00
$

1,270.49

$

1,483.28

$

1,270.49

-$

1,483.28

$

35.01

-$

1,483.28

$

35.01
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Agency Name:

McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc.

Project Name:

Head Start/Early Head Start Community Support

Contact Person:

Elaine K. Brown

Address:

25 Lovers Lane

Email:

elaine@mtecdc.org

Phone Number:

770‐775‐4293 x 107

Covington, GA 30016

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022: $ $4,500
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? .001 %
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Department of Health and Human Services for Children and
Families

80

Enter name of funding source here

% of Budget

Enter name of funding source here

% of Budget

If so, please
4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past. x
indicate how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years. $4,147 for each of the last
three fiscal years.
5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? The Office of Head Start requires that 20% of our
funding must be obtained from local community support in the form of donated services, goods,
volunteer hours, or monetary support. This requirement is in place to demonstrate that the local
community supports and values the services provided to that community’s most needy and
vulnerable children and families. If the required amount of non‐federal match is not collected, the
Head Start/Early Head Start program will be found out of compliance and possibly lose funding.
[AUTHOR NAME]
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6.

7.
8.

9.

10.

There are no other comparable comprehensive services in Newton County which prepares
preschoolers’ school readiness skills (physically, nutritionally, cognitively, emotionally, or socially) as
thoroughly as Newton County’s Head Start/Early Head Start program or serves 0‐3 special needs
children with on‐site services. If McIntosh Trail ECDC were to lose funding approximately 180
infants, toddlers, and preschool children would suffer from the loss of a safe location which ensures
they receive nutritious meals and snacks, medical and dental screenings and follow‐up as well as
services they need to be ready for school.
Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. McIntosh Trail ECDC is a
single purpose non‐profit agency that provides comprehensive early childhood educational services
to eligible low income children 0‐5 and their families. At least 10% of our enrollment must be
children with diagnosed disabilities and 90% must meet federal poverty guidelines. Each child’s
physical, mental, nutritional, and cognitive needs are assessed within 45 days of enrollment.
Individualized plans are put into place to meet those needs so each child leaves the program ready
to be successful in life. Parent involvement is an important cornerstone of the program. Each
parent’s needs are assessed and parents are encouraged to work with the program to set goals such
as GEDs, better housing, improved healthcare, financially stability, increase child development
knowledge, as well as personal goals to improve their lives and their children’s. We work closely
with the local school system and Early Intervention and currently 14% of our enrollment are children
with disabilities with more children in the referral process. We partner with community agencies
such as the health department, law enforcement, Department of Family and Children’s Services in
an effort to support their services to our families as they support our efforts. Homeless and foster
children are given priority placement.
If
Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place. x
so, please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding? The Office
of Head Start requires the 20% match with each year’s funding. This financial support helps by
providing funds to support the local center to meet federal, state, and local standards and
requirements. The Office of Head Start recognizes local support as a sign that the program is valued
by the local community and needed.
What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding? We
actively seek local volunteers to support this center with donations of reduced costs of services
needed for upkeep of the building and playground. Volunteers coming into the center are limited by
the fingerprint law. Because of COVID we are providing virtual services and the majority of
volunteer services have stopped. We approach local health care providers for free services or a
reduction of their fees. We accept donations of learning materials appropriate to the age group.
We apply to local groups such as power companies, hospitals, or other resources we identify grants
available. We collaborate with groups applying for grants that will benefit our population. When
we purchase items, we try to negotiate free shipping, set up, or a reduction in costs.
Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations. The funding provided by Newton County will help the program
meet the 20% match for non‐federal funds and must be used along Federal guidelines. The money
will be used to purchase a Bristol Oval Trike Path to provide a safe place for the children to ride their
[AUTHOR NAME]
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11.
12.

13.

14.

trikes on the playground. It is made from TPO plastic and will help protect the children from falling
injuries. It is ADA compliant and supports the playground and activities being Inclusive.
Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. The amount requested will cover the
piece of equipment, taxes, shipping, and instillation.
How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens? This program
serves your low‐income children and families. We target homeless families, foster children, disabled
children, and pregnant teens. Ninety percent of our enrollment are children that meet federal
poverty guidelines. We provide an afterschool program for 0‐3 infants and toddlers whose moms
are trying to stay in school or work. We give priority to children referred from Early Intervention,
your school system, health department, Family and Children’s Service, local medical providers, and
families in crisis such as domestic violence. At least 10% of our enrollment must be children with
diagnosed disabilities and we have already exceeded that mandate. We are the only program of this
type in Newton County. We assess the children’s needs and ensure follow‐up care takes place for
that child to be ready to transition into the school system successfully. We work with low income
parents to set goals to improve themselves and the life of their family and advocate for the needs of
this population. We have been in 100% compliance with all Federal Performance Standard reviews
for over 30 years. This center is Quality Rated Level 3 (highest level) by the Georgia Department of
Early Care and Learning. We provide employment for more than 40 residents of Newton county.
We encourage our staff and parents to continue their education.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year. A playground structure
was purchased and installed at the Newton County center. The $4,147 funded by Newton County
was used toward part of the purchase price. The structure supports the transition process from
Early Head Start to Head Start.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County
1
2

3
4

Federal and Daycare Licensing guidelines required the program provide a safe playground
environment.
Federal Performance Standards required the program include developmentally appropriate
learning experiences in language, literacy, social and emotional development, math, science,
social studies, creative arts and physical development that focused around achieving progress
outlined in the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five.
The piece of equipment was age appropriate, met ADA standards, and was maintained to be
safe and hazard free.
The program recognized physical activity as important to learning and integrated intentional
movement and physical activity into curricular activities and daily routines in ways that
supported health and learning.
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b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals

5

The playground was inspected by a certified playground specialist to identify problems and
ensure that the equipment was in good conditions and the areas safe for the ages served.
6 The facility and playground was inspected monthly by the Facilities Manager who is a certified
Playground Specialist.
7 Lesson plans ensured weekly activities were planned to meet the needs of the children
including playground activities.
8 The playground and equipment was inspected daily (morning) to ensure the playground was
free of debris, the equipment safe, and the general playground and fences in good condition.
9 The new playground structure met standards set for this age group and was installed
correctly.
10 The playground and equipment was reviewed on a regular basis by Childcare Licensing and
state Pre‐K staff.

15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support? This
funding will be used to buy a Bristol Oval Trike Path for the Newton County Head Start, Early
Head Start, and Pre‐K center and will provide a safe learning environment for gross motor
and social development for low income and disabled preschoolers.
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2021? The children enrolled in
this center will have access to an age appropriate playground structure. The Trike Path will
meet all safety standards required by Georgia Department of Early Care and Learning’s
Daycare Licensing requirements as well as the Office of Head Start. The children will have a
safe area to ride trikes in the fenced playground. The teachers will be able to easily
supervise their play. The children will wear helmets and other safety gear as necessary. The
Trike Path will be easy to maintain.
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives? This Trike Path will
strengthen and expand the center’s ability to meet the needs of low income and disabled
Newton County children enrolled in the program. It will also provide a safe and secure
environment for those children while they are learning.
d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds? All enrolled children using that playground will have access to a safe
area to ride trikes. The children will be able to improve their gross motor skills, increase
their social skills, and ability to make friends and cooperate with others. Assessment of
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skills in relation to the use of the trike path will be assessed three times a year. Teachers
will observe use of the trike path on a daily basis.
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: 100% of the preschool Head Start children will have a safe
playground structure to ride trikes on for gross motor activities.
2. Outputs: A safe and age appropriate play structure will be available for
several years (life of the equipment) for low income preschoolers.
3. Outcomes: 90% of the Head Start preschoolers will increase their
competency in relation to gross motor, social, and communication skills
verified by the three assessments using Teaching Strategies Gold
Assessment.
4. Impacts: The children will increase their school readiness skills while in
McIntosh Trail ECDC’s Head Start program and be ready to transition
successfully into public school.
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2019-20
Strategic Plan
For
McIntosh Trail Early Childhood
Development Council, Inc.
565 Recreation Drive
Jackson, Georgia 30233

________________________________________________
This document sets out a strategic plan for McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development
Council, Inc. It reviews strengths, weaknesses, threats, and opportunities; presents a
series of statements relating to McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council,
Inc.’s vision, mission, values, and objectives; and sets out its proposed strategies and
goals.
________________________________________________________________________
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Strengths, Weaknesses, Threats, & Opportunities
This strategic plan addresses the following key strengths, weaknesses, threats, and
opportunities for McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc.:
Strengths:


Management staff longevity



Staff educational plan



Active, competent Board of Directors and Policy Council



Low management staff turnover



Competent Fiscal Department



Extensive use of ChildPlus.net



Agency website



Email available to agency staff to facilitate communication



Communication: frequent management meetings



Summer Planning meeting



Received National Program of Excellence Award



Federal Review 100% compliance back to 1996



Organizational Chart



Meeting funded enrollment from day one



Program risk evaluation on-going



Technology plan in place and followed



All centers have Child Care Licensing



All centers are Quality Rated



Qualified Mental Health Consultants, component and services



Excellent relationship with Regional Office personnel



Excellent relationship with Bright from the Start



Good involvement from community which increases yearly



Funding from state Pre-K to serve 88 additional 4 year olds in three counties



Summer Transition Program in three counties to serve 80 children



Personnel Policies and Procedures and Program Procedures
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Fatherhood and Male Involvement



Agency is a Certified Drug Free Workplace



All centers are conducive to children’s learning



Early Head Start Program is funded to serve 176



Head Start is funded to serve 294



All centers have staff with ServeSafe



Collaborative agreements with all LEAs and Babies Can’t Wait



Duration program available for EHS children



Thirteen CLASS Reliable Staff



Collaborating with LEAs on school readiness



Agency wide School Readiness Goals



EHS expansion funded



Five staff are certified First Aid/CPR trainers certified by the American Heart
Association



Staff certified to provide MMCI training to teaching staff

Weaknesses:


Lack of adequate funds to support staff educational plan



Dependence on federal and state funds



Limited funds available for discretionary costs



Program Support plan undefined based upon OHS interpretation



Increasing competition from Pre-K for 4-year-old population



Family Service staff needed to work full time in summer to ensure full enrollment



Increasingly harder to meet non-federal share because of economy, state
fingerprint law, and parent’s schedules



Increasing need for program support funds

Threats:


Local Pre-K programs recruit children enrolled in agency programs



Insufficient community partners/providers in medical/dental field
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Inflation



Aging buses, vans, H/AC units, appliances



Increase in food costs and fuel



CACFP changes every year



Medicaid changes in services to eligible children



Increasing cost of oral health care



Increase in number of children with allergies including food allergies



Doctors reluctant to do lead testing on children



Dentists reluctant to treat EHS and three year olds



Distance to dentists which serve young children



Increasing number of children in EHS, HS, and Pre-K with severe behavior
problems



Increasing food allergies and cost not reimbursed by CACFP



Qualified teachers/staff moving into public school positions



Lack of physicians and dentist that accept Medicaid



Monitoring and training continue to be identified as needs on Self-Assessment

Opportunities:


To become a training and technical assistance resource in community



Expand Program Support resources



Increase staff knowledge of behavior management



Provide Train the Trainers for Administrative staff



Increase Administrative staff’s understanding of the monitoring process



Increase % of Latino children and other nationalities in enrollment



Increase number of staff qualified as bus drivers



Advance public awareness



Increase the percentage of Head Start teachers with BA



Collaboration with Henry County Board of Education and County Commissioners
for additional classroom space to expand Head Start/Early Head Start services to
other communities within the county.



Leadership development through leadership training
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Pursue collaboration with Chick-fil-A for leadership development



Increase public involvement in program services and activities



Pursue additional McIntosh Trail ECDC and higher education collaborations



Increase number of parents applying for WIC



Increase number of staff with minimum of BAs in ECE



Increase collaboration with additional LEAs on School Readiness Goals



Maintain Quality Rating and requirements for all centers

Vision
The vision of McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc.’s
accomplishments in 5-10 year’s time is: To reach eligible pregnant moms, infants,
toddlers, and preschoolers and their families in our service area and positively affect their
lives by assisting them in obtaining the skills necessary to achieve social competence,
school readiness, and be cognitively, socially, and physically ready to learn and grow.

Mission Statement
The central purpose and role of McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council,
Inc. is defined as:
McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc. is a not-for-profit
organization that provides comprehensive educational and human services to eligible
families in Butts, Lamar, Pike, Henry, Spalding, Upson, and Newton Counties. We are
dedicated to providing high quality services to children (0-5) and their families as well as
serving as a lighthouse in the community.
We are an institute of learning which implements developmental appropriate
practices and activities for children in the four domains of early childhood development
(cognitive, physical, language, and social/emotional) while emphasizing the significance
of the family’s involvement in their child’s early learning experiences.
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We are committed to embracing cultures and diversity throughout our
organization while upholding and maintaining high standards of learning. We strive to
offer excellent services as an early childhood education provider.
Finally, we believe that our children possess the fundamental rights to a high
quality early education that will be the catalyst and preparation for their lifelong learning.

Philosophy
McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc. believes that early childhood
programs should be based and implemented on the belief that all children share certain
needs, and that all children will benefit from a quality comprehensive child development
program geared to meet those needs. We believe that the potential for learning is greatest
during the early years of a child’s life. Therefore, every possible learning opportunity
should be provided to children enrolled at McIntosh Trail ECDC on a daily basis. The
implementation of our early childhood program is based on the belief that a holistic
approach will help children develop physically, socially/ emotionally, cognitively and
intellectually, and remedy many problems children may have by offering a broad range of
services. The early education-learning environment, whether in the home or classroom,
should provide a rich variety of activities. Positive teacher/parental interactions will
foster the four domains of early childhood development. Each child’s growth level
should be the basis for the extension of its learning outcomes. We believe that our staff
and parents are a valuable resource in helping us meet our goals. Finally, we are
committed to providing high quality early childhood care and services in accordance with
proven Head Start/Early Head Start philosophy, goals, and objectives.
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PHILOSOPHY

McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc.’s early
childhood programs are based and implemented on the belief that all
children share certain needs, and that children will benefit from a quality
comprehensive child development program to meet those needs.
Also, it is our desire that employees laterally with children will take
advantage of opportunities in the Head Start/Early Head Start programs to
advance their potentials as competent workforces throughout the agency.
We believe that the potential for learning is greatest during the early
years of a child’s life. Therefore, every possible learning opportunity will be
provided for children enrolled at McIntosh Trail ECDC on a daily basis.
The implementation of our early childhood programs is based on the fact
that:
We believe children can benefit most from a holistic approach, which
will help him/her develop physically, socially/emotionally, cognitively and
intellectually, and remedy any problems he/she may have by offering a
broad range of services.
We believe our children will enter public school equipped to continue
to learn by having the advantage of participating in our Head Start and Early
Head Start programs that will advance and support their school readiness
activities in a developmental and appropriate manner.
We believe that the early childhood education learning environment,
whether in the home or in our preschool classrooms should provide a rich
variety of activities and teacher’s/parental interactions that will foster the
four domains of early childhood development.
We believe that each child’s growth level should be the basis for the
extension of his/her learning outcomes.
Finally, we are committed to providing high quality early childhood
care and services in accordance with proven Head Start standards,
philosophies, goals, and objectives which will produce positive approaches
to school readiness and the health and safety for all enrolled children.
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PROGRAM GOALS
THE OVERALL GOAL OF THE HEAD START AND EARLY HEAD START PROGRAMS IS TO
BRING ABOUT A GREATER DEGREE OF SOCIAL COMPETENCE AND APPROPRIATE
SCHOOL READINESS SKILLS FOR CHILDREN OF INCOME ELIGIBLE FAMILIES. SOCIAL
COMPETENCE MEANS THE CHILD’S EVERYDAY EFFECTIVENESS IN DEALING WITH
BOTH PRESENT ENVIRONMENT AND LATER RESPONSIBILITIES IN SCHOOL AND LIFE.
SOCIAL COMPETENCE TAKES INTO ACCOUNT THE INTERRELATEDNESS OF
COGNITIVE AND INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENT, PHYSICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH,
NUTRITIONAL NEEDS, AND OTHER FACTORS THAT ENABLE A DEVELOPMENTAL
APPROACH TO HELPING CHILDREN ACHIEVE SOCIAL COMPETENCE SUCCESSFULLY.

TO THE ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THIS GOAL, MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY
CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.’S OBJECTIVES PROVIDE FOR:

Goals for children and families:
o To improve the child’s health and physical abilities, taking appropriate steps to
correct present physical and mental problems, enhancing every child’s access to
an adequate diet, and improving the family’s attitude toward future health care
and physical abilities.
o To encourage self-confidence, spontaneity, curiosity, and self-discipline, which
will assist in the development of the child’s social and emotional health.
o To enhance the child’s mental process and skills with particular attention to
conceptual and communication skills
o To respect and promote the unique identity of each child and family and refrain
from stereotyping on the basis of gender, race, culture, religion, or disability.
o To ensure the establishment of patterns and expectations of success for each
child, which will create a climate of confidence for present and future learning
efforts and overall development.
o To increase the ability of the child and the family to relate to each other and to
others.
o To advocate to parents that they are the principal influence in their child’s life
and that the whole family must be involved in the child’s growth and
development.
o To enhance the sense of dignity and self-worth within the child and his/her
family.
Goals for Agency Staff:
o To encourage employees to advance their education and job training to ensure
that staff have the required credentials, qualifications, and experience needed to
perform their assigned functions, fulfill their job responsibilities, and implement
the Head Start Performance Standards effectively.
o To foster employees’ self-confidence in their personal and professional lives.
o To be proactive in the community and more aware of available resources.
o To enhance the sense of dignity and self-worth within the child and his/her
family.
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o To be a lighthouse in the community exhibiting professional behaviors and
advocating for young children and their families.
o To follow program confidentiality policies concerning information about
children, families, and other staff members.
o To use positive methods of child guidance, not engage in corporal punishment,
emotional/physical, or humiliations, and abide by the agency’s policy on
reporting child abuse and neglect.
o To follow and adhere to all Federal, State, and Local requirements/laws and to
follow all accreditations within the agency.
o To implement School Readiness Goals and activities for children on a daily
basis.
o To ensure that good health and safety practices are upheld and maintained
throughout the day.
o

Corporate Values

The corporate values governing McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development
Council, Inc. and its development will include the following:
We respect the individual and believe that individuals who are treated with
respect and given responsibility respond by giving their best. We require complete
honesty and integrity in everything we do. We make commitments with care and then
live up to them in all things we do and what we say we are going to do. Work is an
important part of life and it should be fun. Being a good businessperson does not mean
being stuffy and boring. We are frugal. We guard and conserve the agency’s resources
with at least the same vigilance that we would use to guard and conserve our own
personal resources. We insist on giving our best effort in everything we undertake.
Furthermore, we see a huge difference between “good mistakes” (best effort, bad results)
and “bad mistakes” (sloppiness or lack of effort). Clarity in understanding our mission,
our goals, and what we expect from each other is critical to our success. We are believers
in the golden rule. In all our dealings, we will strive to be believers in the golden rule
and to be friendly, professional, and courteous, as well as fair and compassionate. We
own problems and we are responsive and customer friendly.
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Business Objectives
Long-term objectives of McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc. are
summarized as:
Centers will:


Maintain Child Care Licensing for all centers



Maintain Quality Rating System requirements



Competently follow/adhere to Head Start/Early Head Start standards as well as all
rules and regulatory statues that are relevant in the successful operation of a
quality program



Have a fully networked up-to-date technology system



Maintain a clean, safe, and pleasant building for all centers which is conducive to
learning which is energy efficient



Provide extended day/year services or after-school care for all children



Increase collaboration with community partners



Develop foundation for partnerships with daycare and family daycare providers



Apply for Early Head Start funds as available for expansion



Participate in leadership development opportunities



Meet new Affordable Health Care mandates

The Program will:


Encourage all staff to increase their educational level



Develop ways to increase visibility of agency



Strive to increase/diversify funding sources



Develop Program Support ideas and plans within the agency



Seek to provide additional services and accommodations to the children,
families, and staff



Participate in the Georgia Head Start, Region IV, and National Head Start
Associations



Collaborate with other Head Start agencies

10
104



Respond in a timely manner to the Office of Head Start, Regional Office, and
GHSA, and other partners



Apply for additional EHS funds as available



Maintain all facilities in a clean and safe manner and energy efficient



Maintain all agency vehicles to be safe and conducive for use



Balance budget annually



Ensure and increase CLASS Recertification



Ensure that all kitchens are well equipped



Increase number of staff with ServeSafe certification



Increase the number of CDL drivers

Key Strategies
McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc will pursue the following
critical strategies:


Analyze need and capability of agency to expand EHS



Increase Administrative Staff’s understanding of monitoring process



Increase Administrative Staff’s training ability



Support staff as they seek outside funding sources to increase educational level



Seek information on foundations and other possible funding sources



Conduct annual technology assessment and update technology yearly



Attend training on ChildPlus.net to stay current



Apply for funds to provide extended day/year services as available



Ensure that all Pre-K classes meet or exceed standards



Ensure a customer-driven organization



Collaborate with LEAs on School Readiness goals



Set direction through intentional planning



Organize resources to meet goals



Motivate leadership and staff to meet goals



Guide resources to meet goals



Seek additional community partners
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Develop foundation for partnerships with local childcare providers



Succession planning and leadership training



Increase male/fatherhood involvement



Support special initiative to decrease the number of referrals to LEA for behavior
issues



Seek training for staff on behavior management



Increase Succession planning and conduct leadership classes



Continue recruitment of children with disabilities



Provide technology resources for staff to facilitate on-line learning and training



Ensure appropriate number of staff are CLASS Reliable

The following important strategies should also be followed:


Agency will continue to meet new transportation regulations



Agency will follow state approved plan to verify teacher credentials through
Professional Development Registry



Increase collaboration with local community civic clubs



Maintain School Readiness Education Committee



Increase collaboration with local school systems to provide additional services to
teen parents and pregnant teen moms



Increase computer skill level of all staff



Develop and support the growth of leadership skills (succession planning)



Assess training needs of staff and provide training as needed



Pursue energy efficiency for all centers and locations

Future Strengths:


Experienced staff



Well trained Board of Directors



Well trained Policy Council members



Positive agency reputation



Continued quality program for all centers
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Long standing collaborations with local organizations



Sound technology base



Staff Individual Educational Plan



Dedicated and skilled Management Team



CLASS Reliable staff



Leadership training



Dedicated Management Team

Future Weaknesses:


Limited staff educational monies



Limited funding sources



Program Support restrictions



Lack of competitive staff benefits



Meeting Affordable Health Care requirements



Aging facilities and vehicles



Aging kitchen equipment and H/AC



Dependence on federal funds as main source of program income



Must seek additional 20% in-kind to meet program’s requirements

Future Threats:


Inflation



Reduction in federal and state funds



Unfunded mandates



Transportation regulations and costs



Several key administrators approaching retirement



Need to replace aging agency vehicles



Rising maintenance costs



Insurance cost for various areas of agency



Rising program operational costs



Fringe benefits needed to be competitive in job market
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Facilities upkeep



Upkeep of aging vehicles and equipment



Cost of utilities continue to rise



Rising cost of oral health care



Rising food costs



Increasing number of children with food allergies



Replacement of aging kitchen equipment



Parents who will not keep Medicaid recertification current



Decrease in health care providers that take Medicaid



Decrease in health care providers that will see three year olds



Lack of dentist that will see EHS children

Future Opportunities


Expand services to families



Expand services to community



Provide EHS to additional families and centers



Act as training and technical assistance provider to the preschool community



Increase collaboration with local public school systems, colleges, and universities



Increase collaboration with local community agencies and organizations



Act as resource for other Head Start/Early Head Start programs



Full day/full year services



Increase fatherhood involvement



Expand resources for families’ dental homes



Support staff in process to increase educational and skill levels



Collaborate with local day cares and Pre-K programs to facilitate enrollment



To train more staff to be CLASS Reliable



Participate in available trainings to increase knowledge and abilities
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McIntosh Trail Early Childhood Development Council, Inc. will achieve the
following key targets over the next 1-3 years:


Continue to expand Early Head Start



Increase Program Support income by a minimum of 15%



Increase staff benefits



Increase and maintain pay scale in relation to service area



Support staff as they seek funds for education



Increase male involvement by 10%



Increase number of health/dental professionals that provide services to Head Start
families



Provide leadership development for succession planning



Reduce behavior referrals by 10%



Increase parent involvement by 20%



Provide extended day services to all families



All teaching and office staff will be competent in data input for ChildPlus.net



Have several staff within agency capable of moving into key positions



Continue to revise and improve School Readiness Goals in response to needs and
recommendations of SR Committee



All teaching staff will have PDR certification on file



All teaching staff will meet educational requirements of Head Start Act 2007



Continue to work toward making all locations energy efficient


McIntosh Trail ECDC will achieve the following goals over the next 3-5 years.


Provide summer employment opportunities for 50% employees



Provide Summer Transition Program



for Head Start/Pre-K children 100%



Increase Program Support Income by a minimum of 20%



Reduce behavior referrals by 10%



Increase male involvement by 10% annually
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STRATEGIC ACTION GOALS
The following Strategic Action Short Term Goals will be implemented.


Expand Early Head Start by seeking funds for expansion of Early Head Start
classes by August, 2022



Board of Directors/Comptroller: Develop strategy to increase staff benefits by
August, 2022



Board of Directors/Comptroller: Identify new funding opportunities by Fall,
2021



Board of Directors: Develop Program Support strategy to increase Program
Support income by 10% by April, 2024



Community Engagement Administrator: Increase additional community
partners in all areas by 10% by April, 2022



Community Engagement Administrator: Increase program support from
community resources and partners by 15% by December, 2024



Board of Directors/Mental Health Administrator: Reduce behavior referrals by
10% by June, 2021



Board of Directors/Family Engagement Administrator: Increase parent
engagement by 10% by June, 2021

The following Strategic Action Long Term Goals will be implemented:


Board of Directors/Program Director: Locate resources to provide full
time summer employment for 50% staff by summer, 2124



Board of Directors/Executive Director: Increase Program Support Income
by 20% by 2021



Family Engagement Administrator: Increase male involvement by 20%
by 2021



Board of Directors/Disabilities Administrator: Reduce behavior referrals
by 10 % by December, 2021



Board of Directors/Program Director: Seek funds to provide extended
day/year services to families by September, 2022
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Month and Ten Months Ended
January 31, 2021
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
January 31, 2021

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash - Petty cash
Cash - Non-Federal
Cash - CCFP
Cash - General fund
Cash - USDA mortgage reserve
Employee advances
Prepaid expenses

$

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

518.73
239,260.89
187,250.92
3,584.24
37,652.36
15.00
1,600.00
469,882.14

OTHER ASSETS
Utility deposits

3,161.69

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Vehicles
Furniture and equipment
Buildings and improvements
Computers
Land
Total at cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

524,208.91
326,711.23
1,860,297.20
53,163.00
615,700.00
3,380,080.34
(1,328,464.94)

NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2,051,615.40

TOTAL ASSETS

$ 2,524,659.23

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement and no
assurance is provided on them. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require that changes in net assets be presented for each net asset class. The Council has not presented changes in each class of net
assets. The statements do not reflect the transactions of the Pre-K program. Substantially all of the disclosures
and the statement of cash flows required by generally accepted accounting principles are omitted.
1
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
January 31, 2021

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salary expense
GDOT project liability
Note payable - USDA
Due to (from) Pre-K program

$

30,044.10
363,661.98
3,140.00
36,433.72
43,959.02

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

477,238.82

LONGTERM LIABILITIES
Note Payable - USDA, net of current

617,265.10

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,094,503.92

NET ASSETS
With donor restrictions
Without donor restrictions

1,042,641.57
387,513.74

TOTAL NET ASSETS

1,430,155.31

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$

2,524,659.23

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
ALL DEPARTMENTS
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
EHS grant
HHS grant
EHS expansion grant
Capital contributions
USDA food reimbursement
Interest income (General fund)
Interest on savings
Non-fed in-kind contributions
Contributions and fundraising

$

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

ANNUAL
BUDGET

201,037.18
443,079.70
0.00
499.00
0.00
0.73
3.43
208,314.29
1,941.16

$ 1,724,618.30
3,789,587.23
489,041.62
4,990.00
62,296.59
18.85
33.98
1,665,656.54
10,315.41

Total public support and revenues

854,875.49

7,746,558.52

8,320,321.00

(573,762.48)

EXPENSES
Personnel
Consultants and contract services
Travel
Space costs and repairs
Utilities and telephone
Equipment lease and rentals
Consumable supplies
Other

516,850.84
3,302.50
499.16
33,909.54
23,768.35
2,554.17
74,812.24
260,586.01

4,500,491.27
42,650.22
6,605.66
408,349.05
156,271.47
23,130.80
494,012.60
2,036,686.42

6,074,431.00
79,198.00
91,151.00
446,042.00
234,946.00
61,855.00
643,774.00
688,924.00

1,573,939.73
36,547.78
84,545.34
37,692.95
78,674.53
38,724.20
149,761.40
(1,347,762.42)

916,282.81

7,668,197.49

8,320,321.00

652,123.51

10,163.28
0.00

99,436.64
4,256.12

0.00
0.00

926,446.09

7,771,890.25

8,320,321.00

Depreciation expense
Expenditures using fundraising income
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

(71,570.60)

$

$

2,708,911.00 $ (984,292.70)
4,740,410.00
(950,822.77)
871,000.00
(381,958.38)
0.00
4,990.00
0.00
62,296.59
0.00
18.85
0.00
33.98
0.00
1,665,656.54
0.00
10,315.41

0.00 $

(99,436.64)
(4,256.12)
548,430.75
(25,331.73)

1,455,487.04

NET ASSETS , beginning
NET ASSETS , ending

(25,331.73)

$

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

$ 1,430,155.31

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 20-TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
HHS grant

$

3,358.28

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

52,042.14

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

45,017.00

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

$

7,025.14

Total public support and revenues

3,358.28

52,042.14

45,017.00

7,025.14

EXPENSES
Training and tech assistance

3,358.28

52,042.14

45,017.00

(7,025.14)

Total expenses

3,358.28

52,042.14

45,017.00

(7,025.14)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

0.00

$

0.00

$

0.00

$

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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0.00

MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 21-TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
EHS grant

$

3,359.77

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

8,573.77

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

51,970.00

$ (43,396.23)

Total public support and revenues

3,359.77

8,573.77

51,970.00

(43,396.23)

EXPENSES
Training and tech assistance

3,359.77

8,573.77

51,970.00

43,396.23

Total expenses

3,359.77

8,573.77

51,970.00

43,396.23

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

0.00

$

0.00

$

0.00

$

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 22-GENERAL OPERATING
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
HHS grant
Capital contributions
Non-fed in-kind contributions
Interest income (General fund)
Total public support and revenues
EXPENSES
Salaries
HS spread salaries
P/R taxes and fringe benefits
Pension expense
Insurance expense
Medical services
Dental services
Consultant
Contractual services
In-area travel
Out of area travel
Agency travel
Rental of space
Utilities
Maintenance and repairs
Start up supplies
Office supplies
Program supplies
Food
Technology supplies
Nutrition supplies
Equipment lease/rental
Family literacy
Interest Expense
Insurance
Telephone
Postage and freight
Parents activity fund
Board policy council/emp dev

$

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

4,282,354.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

365,062.12
499.00
125,242.79
0.73

$ 3,597,216.03
4,990.00
1,099,167.65
18.85

$

(685,137.97)
4,990.00
1,099,167.65
18.85

490,804.64

4,701,392.53

4,282,354.00

419,038.53

220,643.08
37,679.92
16,743.21
3,251.22
15,425.27
0.00
0.00
1,208.13
850.00
68.60
0.00
430.56
12,248.37
6,744.02
5,711.28
9,769.13
1,660.15
35,834.30
1,721.64
22.46
0.00
1,547.47
0.00
1,920.90
14,718.80
3,862.91
0.00
0.00
0.00
392,061.42

2,366,974.22
(84,235.27)
181,219.58
23,162.82
95,957.06
82.35
0.00
10,589.12
20,262.72
233.80
0.00
5,996.95
118,793.73
35,496.30
102,815.31
135,798.99
47,291.08
139,877.30
14,579.69
11,568.67
6,592.45
14,875.56
34.00
19,607.33
73,840.08
34,776.51
500.00
(995.70)
811.00
3,376,505.65

2,771,420.00
0.00
250,985.00
63,201.00
71,310.00
2,292.00
2,200.00
13,078.00
21,020.00
13,573.00
17,627.00
18,954.00
242,096.00
158,197.00
95,179.00
254,229.00
29,838.00
54,863.00
0.00
11,000.00
10,083.00
47,987.00
0.00
0.00
86,441.00
39,165.00
5,375.00
2,241.00
0.00
4,282,354.00

404,445.78
84,235.27
69,765.42
40,038.18
(24,647.06)
2,209.65
2,200.00
2,488.88
757.28
13,339.20
17,627.00
12,957.05
123,302.27
122,700.70
(7,636.31)
118,430.01
(17,453.08)
(85,014.30)
(14,579.69)
(568.67)
3,490.55
33,111.44
(34.00)
(19,607.33)
12,600.92
4,388.49
4,875.00
3,236.70
(811.00)
905,848.35

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 22-GENERAL OPERATING
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
Depreciation expense

$

Total federal expenses

10,163.28

Y-T-D
ACTUAL
$

99,436.64

ANNUAL
BUDGET
$

0.00

ANNUAL
VARIANCE
$

(99,436.64)

402,224.70

3,475,942.29

4,282,354.00

0.00
89,244.78
35,998.01

2,214.95
728,223.24
368,729.46

0.00
0.00
0.00

(2,214.95)
(728,223.24)
(368,729.46)

Total non-federal in-kind expenses

125,242.79

1,099,167.65

0.00

(1,099,167.65)

Total expenses

527,467.49

4,575,109.94

4,282,354.00

(292,755.94)

INKIND CONTRIBUTIONS
Non-fed in-kind contribution
Non-fed in-kind volunteer
Non-fed in-kind space costs

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

(36,662.85)

$

126,282.59

$

0.00

806,411.71

$

126,282.59

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 23-COVID
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
HHS grant

$

14,248.35

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

ANNUAL
BUDGET

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

79,918.11

$ 413,039.00

$ (333,120.89)

Total public support and revenues

14,248.35

79,918.11

413,039.00

(333,120.89)

EXPENSES
Salaries
P/R taxes and fringe benefits
Office supplies
Program supplies

6,238.75
477.09
25,239.55
0.00

9,485.74
725.45
93,049.98
13,586.52

0.00
0.00
0.00
413,039.00

(9,485.74)
(725.45)
(93,049.98)
399,452.48

Total expenses

31,955.39

116,847.69

413,039.00

296,191.31

(17,707.04)

$ (36,929.58)

0.00

$ (36,929.58)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

$

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 25-EARLY HEAD START
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
EHS grant
Non-fed in-kind contributions

$

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

2,656,941.00
0.00

ANNUAL
Budget

197,677.41
58,864.84

$ 1,716,044.53
465,811.50

$

(940,896.47)
465,811.50

Total public support and revenues

256,542.25

2,181,856.03

2,656,941.00

(475,084.97)

EXPENSES
Salaries
HS spread salaries
P/R taxes and fringe benefits
Pension expense
Insurance expense
Medical services
Consultant
Contractual services
In-area travel
Out of area travel
Agency travel
Rental of space
Utilities
Maintenance and repairs
Start up supplies
Office supplies
Program supplies
Food
Technology supplies
Nutrition supplies
Equipment lease/rental
Insurance
Telephone
Postage and freight
Parents activity fund

110,352.74
18,113.73
8,409.58
1,880.00
9,414.48
0.00
1,244.37
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
13,913.56
8,047.18
2,010.60
9,769.12
93.09
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
1,006.70
9,375.72
4,046.54
0.00
0.00

1,166,825.16
(14,924.99)
88,851.32
14,168.00
46,429.13
110.00
10,811.03
795.00
0.00
0.00
224.89
148,075.11
38,438.03
21,932.70
9,769.12
3,992.75
47,456.31
27,439.06
432.00
0.00
8,255.24
63,780.93
34,179.44
0.00
(995.70)

1,919,790.00
0.00
135,107.00
16,710.00
69,167.00
0.00
12,760.00
14,048.00
5,464.00
13,863.00
13,649.00
67,397.00
15,331.00
33,702.00
170,671.00
23,210.00
64,231.00
0.00
843.00
12,117.00
11,168.00
36,393.00
11,309.00
9,388.00
623.00

752,964.84
14,924.99
46,255.68
2,542.00
22,737.87
(110.00)
1,948.97
13,253.00
5,464.00
13,863.00
13,424.11
(80,678.11)
(23,107.03)
11,769.30
160,901.88
19,217.25
16,774.69
(27,439.06)
411.00
12,117.00
2,912.76
(27,387.93)
(22,870.44)
9,388.00
1,618.70

Total federal expenses

197,677.41

1,716,044.53

2,656,941.00

940,896.47

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 25-EARLY HEAD START
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
INKIND CONTRIBUTIONS
Non-fed in-kind volunteer

$

Total non-federal in-kind expenses
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

58,864.84

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

465,811.50

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

0.00

ANNUAL
Budget

$

(465,811.50)

58,864.84

465,811.50

0.00

(465,811.50)

256,542.25

2,181,856.03

2,656,941.00

475,084.97

0.00

$

0.00

$

0.00

$

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 26-EHS CLASSROOM EXPANSION
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
HHS grant
EHS expansion grant
Non-fed in-kind contributions

$

60,410.95
0.00
24,206.66

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

60,410.95
489,041.62
100,677.39

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

0.00
871,000.00
0.00

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

$

60,410.95
(381,958.38)
100,677.39

Total public support and revenues

84,617.61

650,129.96

871,000.00

(220,870.04)

EXPENSES
Salaries
HS spread salaries
P/R taxes and fringe benefits
Pension expense
Insurance expense
Medical services
Consultant
In-area travel
Agency travel
Rental of space
Utilities
Maintenance and repairs
Start up supplies
Office supplies
Program supplies
Technology supplies
Nutrition supplies
Equipment lease/rental
Insurance
Telephone
Postage and freight
Parents activity fund
Training and tech assistance

56,537.58
4,871.31
4,287.14
1,510.00
1,015.74
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
625.46
25.73
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
442.24
0.00
0.00
0.00

564,167.89
(9,582.22)
42,788.31
2,890.00
5,589.07
0.00
0.00
10.02
140.00
14,022.50
7,174.69
2,709.70
1,946.00
1,914.02
644.14
0.00
0.00
0.00
7,155.97
6,206.50
0.00
(995.55)
157.50

699,243.00
0.00
53,348.00
12,600.00
11,550.00
12,600.00
1,200.00
2,068.00
5,953.00
6,780.00
5,520.00
888.00
0.00
4,500.00
15,000.00
2,500.00
2,550.00
2,700.00
6,276.00
5,424.00
100.00
200.00
20,000.00

135,075.11
9,582.22
10,559.69
9,710.00
5,960.93
12,600.00
1,200.00
2,057.98
5,813.00
(7,242.50)
(1,654.69)
(1,821.70)
(1,946.00)
2,585.98
14,355.86
2,500.00
2,550.00
2,700.00
(879.97)
(782.50)
100.00
1,195.55
19,842.50

Total federal expenses

69,315.20

646,938.54

871,000.00

224,061.46

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
11

122

MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 26-EHS CLASSROOM EXPANSION
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL

INKIND CONTRIBUTIONS
Non-fed in-kind volunteer

$

24,206.66

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

100,677.39

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

0.00

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

$

(100,677.39)

Total non-federal in-kind expenses

24,206.66

100,677.39

0.00

(100,677.39)

Total expenses

93,521.86

747,615.93

871,000.00

123,384.07

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

(8,904.25)

$

(97,485.97)

$

0.00

$

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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(97,485.97)

MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 28-CHILD & ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
APPLIED REVENUES
USDA food reimbursement
Interest on savings

$

Total revenues

0.00
1.41

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

62,296.59
11.13

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

0.00
0.00

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

$

62,296.59
11.13

1.41

62,307.72

0.00

62,307.72

EXPENSES
Food

10,241.05

85,588.63

0.00

(85,588.63)

Total federal expenses

10,241.05

85,588.63

0.00

(85,588.63)

(10,239.64)

$ (23,280.91)

0.00

$ (23,280.91)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

$

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
13

124

MCINTOSH TRAIL EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DEPARTMENT 29-PROGRAM SUPPORT
For the Month and Ten Months Ended January 31, 2021
THIS PERIOD
ACTUAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND SUPPORT
County commissions and city councils
Newton Center fundraising
Butts Center fundraising
Interest on savings

$

Total contributions and support

0.00
691.16
1,250.00
2.02

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

$

4,387.30
2,178.11
3,750.00
22.85

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

ANNUAL
VARIANCE

$

4,387.30
2,178.11
3,750.00
22.85

1,943.18

10,338.26

0.00

10,338.26

EXPENSES USING PROGRAM SUPPORT
Miscellaneous expenditures

0.00

4,256.12

0.00

(4,256.12)

Total expenses using program support

0.00

4,256.12

0.00

(4,256.12)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$

1,943.18

$

6,082.14

$

0.00

$

6,082.14

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation engagement
and no assurance is provided on them.
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Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form

Agency Name:

Newton County Family Connection

Project Name:

Community Capacity Building

Contact Person:

Laura M. Bertram

Address:

8134 Geiger St. NW, STE 1

Email:

laurab@nwtnfamilyconnection.org

Phone Number:

770‐786‐0807

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022: $ 18,430
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 9 %
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
GA. Family Connection Partnership ($48,000)

23%

Drug‐Free Community ($125,000)

60%

Foundation and Trust Grants ($17,053)

8%

NC Board of Commissioners ($18,430)

9%

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past.
If so, please indicate
how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years. $18430 per year, FY 2018, 2019, 2020
5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? Local funding is critical to demonstrate strong
political will and leadership investment to outside funders. State and federal funders, as well as
foundations must see local investment before they will consider any application.

[AUTHOR NAME]
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Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form
6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. NCFC is an independent
501 (c)(3) public/private partnership, charged by the state of Georgia and Newton County to serve
as the official advocacy board for children and families. NCFC is unique from other local non‐profits
as it was created through legislation by the state of Georgia in 1992 to streamline services for
families in need.
NCFC Vision: We envision a Newton County where all children, families and the community are engaged,
empowered, and successful.
NCFC Mission: NCFC fosters community through connection, service, and partnerships.
The work is two‐fold:
NCFC works with leadership to focus on planning for large‐scale change and community development.
NCFC addresses gaps in programming and facilitates teams in partnership with families, community
leaders and volunteers. Strategy teams improve access to healthcare and out‐of‐school community
supports that strengthen school success for children and build a workforce‐ready community.
7.

Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place.
If so,
please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
Attachment 1: NCFC FY2022 Annual Plan

8. How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding?
Commissioners are investing in work that no other organization or governmental department is charged
to do. It is to the advantage of both the county and the Family Connection to continue this partnership.
Every year since 1996, the County Commission has included capacity‐building funds for the Newton
County Family Connection in the county budget. NCFC is a small organization, which gives it the
flexibility to respond quickly to unanticipated emergency needs of citizens while having the non‐profit
infrastructure to ensure fiscal accountability and collaborative partnerships to sustain services. Proof of
Family Connection partnership is a required document for many grant requests submitted by county
departments: Newton’s resource courts, juvenile justice, the school system, public health, and
Department of Family and Children Services.
9. What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding? Local
collaboration facilitated by Family Connection should remain a critical component of county planning;
NCFC has the autonomy to facilitate public/private partnerships that combine resources and maximize
value for dollars invested. Commissioners are investing in work that no other organization or
governmental department is charged to do. For every dollar that Newton County invests into NCFC, over
$81 is directly returned from outside funders to strengthen Newton County’s children and families.
10. Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County for
in your program operations. 63% of the $18,430 Newton County allocation, or $11,705, supports the
salary expense for the Executive Director who oversees all administrative functions including planning
and implementation, community and public relations, grant writing, financial affairs, state and local
reporting and resource development particularly for family literacy and adult volunteer engagement.
[AUTHOR NAME]
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Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form
36% of $18,430 ($6,725) is dedicated to the Program Director who supervises the new Drug‐Free
Community grant coordinator to implement the DFC strategic planning framework and manage the
Hands On Newton youth development program.
11. Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. There is no change in the NCFC request.
12. How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens? The goal of NCFC
partnerships and collaborative planning are to increase school success and expand a qualified workforce.
Low literacy and poverty are the primary barriers to work readiness, which is critical to our county’s
economic development. Schools can’t overcome the issues associated with poverty alone. NCFC engages
every sector in Newton County to help provide for the emotional, educational, and health needs of our
children at greatest risk. The BOC, as representatives of our citizens, have the capacity to build the public
will needed to strengthen our community. NCFC and partners have the feet on the ground to support your
plan.
NCFC is a small organization with a staff of 3, but NCFC brings to the county over 1.6 million additional
state and federal dollars a year, through planning and partnerships that serve children and families.
NCFC also manages over 300 volunteers each year contributing to a thriving community. NCFC sits in a
unique vantage point. Because of our state affiliation, we can see what is happening in the big picture:




NCFC differs from other service organizations; people come to Family Connection because of its
neutral table. In Newton County, we bring what we see working in other communities and look
to local expertise and leadership to make the move from awareness to action.
NCFC leverages funding we receive from the county to provide resources addressing child
abuse prevention, family literacy, youth development and substance abuse prevention as well
as the civic engagement that demonstrates the health of a community.
NCFC serves as the fiscal agent for local funding directed to resource court initiatives, and is the
fiscal agent and facilitator of the Centers of Disease Control Drug‐Free Community grant of
$125,000 to build a coalition that works to prevent youth substance use and abuse.

13. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year. NCFC engaged
community members and student volunteers to promote participation in the 2020 Census. NCFC
created a template for application for CAREs Act funding for NPO service providers. NCFC wrote for,
and received a Drug‐Free Community grant. NCFC helped expand access to food, utility and rent
assistance, and medical care for the under‐insured due to CoVid‐19. NCFC provided low‐and no‐
touch volunteer opportunities using volunteermatch.com and engaged students at GA State
Perimeter campus to design social media for Census, research for Housing Authority, and virtual
reading buddy programs. NCFC partners with Head Start to help families and staff with emergency
needs due to CoVid, and provided over 120 books for all children at Christmas.
14. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
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a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County
For further detail, please see Attachment 2, Census Final Report, Attachment 3: NCFC Activities related
to CoVid‐19, Attachment 4: PSA for Drug‐Free Community grant
Increase overall resident participation in the 2020 Census from 77% in 2010 to 99.9% in 2020.
Expand civic engagement and sense of belonging by increasing access to community resources,
increased opportunities for volunteerism, and improved cross‐sector communication.
Formalize a Drug‐Free Coalition, currently a collaboration of partner agencies, beginning October 2020.
b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals
CENSUS: Newton County 2020 Self‐Response: From 64.6% in 2010 to 68.5%!
Of that, 53.5% was using the Internet (for the FIRST Time)
GEORGIA 2020 Self‐Response rate: 62.8%
Newton ranks 19 out of 159 counties in self‐response rates in Georgia!
Overall county response rate, which includes door‐to‐door solicitation, Newton and the state
achieved a 99.9% response rate.
Increase Civic Engagement and build Trust: The GA Family Connection Partnership and NCFC have
understood since 1996 that supporting all children and families in communities requires us to
confront racial and ethnic equity disparities. In light of current social climate and the disproportionate
impacts of COVID on persons of color, NCFC will establish a committee to ensure inclusion of REI
within the planning process itself as an ongoing check.
NCFC incorporates neighborhood voice in all planning, and works actively to include voices that may
not be heard, including the disability community, people of color, people from different cultural
backgrounds, people with differing religious or political beliefs and youth. Youth are among our
strongest volunteers, and will inform all drug‐free coalition building.
For the foreseeable future, strategy team and monthly inter‐agency meetings will continue to be
conducted via internet platforms. The virtual format has allowed for more consistent attendance,
particularly by representatives of regional organizations who normally would have to travel between
counties to make scheduled in‐person meetings. For teams with established inter‐personal
relationships, the conversion to online meetings has been very smooth and has included checking in
on the well‐being of individual colleagues and their organizations.
Drug‐Free Community Grant: awarded December 31, 2020. Year 1 will end September 29, 2021,
aligning Newton with the same calendar framework as all other DFC grantees. NCFC has hired and/or
contracted with a Project Coordinator, Evaluator, Communications Coordinator, and a Social Media
Specialist.
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15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2022: See: Attachment 1, NCFC FY 22 Annual plan for details
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support?
i. Building a youth‐driven Drug‐Free Community Coalition, beginning with a
community assessment
ii. Embedding Race, Equity and Inclusion into NCFC framework of service
iii. Birth‐Eight Strategy Team facilitates child care partnerships for improved school
readiness and literacy rates
iv. Managing Hands On Newton Volunteer service delivery to promote civic
engagement.
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2022?
1. Increase community engagement in DFC Coalition initiative, establish an active Youth Action
Team, and conduct a community assessment for substance use and abuse
2. Create online resource directory to streamline access for providers and citizens
3. Establish an advisory committee to embed race, equity, and inclusion into NCFC framework
4. Increase the number and diversity of community members engaged in volunteer activities

c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives?
NCFC’s work includes:
 Collaborative development
 Volunteer engagement
 Health and Wellness
 Family Literacy/Workforce Development
Measured by….
 Impacts – Benchmarks (long‐term) See Attachment 6‐KidsCount Indicators for Newton County
Goal 1: Culture of Trust comes from continuity of communication.






NCFC has state‐level affiliations
Facilitates 4 local coalitions, and participates in others Measured by outputs and outcomes
o Be Healthy Newton
o Drug Free Coalition
o Birth to Eight Strategy Team
o Certified Literate Community: (Newton READS)
Continue cross‐sector initiatives
Engage the community voice to guide and direct all activities

Goal 2: Sense of Belonging comes from connecting with your community

[AUTHOR NAME]
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Hands On Newton – Continue relationship with GSU Perimeter Academic Community
Engagement faculty and students. Measured by # of activities and referrals to local NPO’s
Reevaluate delivery model for MLK Day of Service

Goal 3: Economic Development comes from an educated and equipped workforce. Measured by
outcomes and impacts (see Attachment 6‐ KidsCount)
 2‐Generation Literacy programming
o Serve adults referred to GA Piedmont Technical College
o Recruit and train long‐term volunteers onsite to promote progress towards GED
Certification
o Partner with NCSS CTAE, NEGRC WIOA, and organizations for workforce placements
o Partner with Ga Piedmont Technical College to build early childhood enrollments to
strengthen Early Childhood Care and Education program delivery

Goal 4: Safe and Secure Community is one that protects its children




NCFC Community Health Improvement Plan priorities: Basic Living Needs including food
insecurity and loss of housing, Health and Wellness including physical and mental health, and
developmental disabilities, Youth and Family including the Drug‐Free Community, and Senior
Citizens.
Drug‐Free Community grant reduces youth substance use, which includes the use and abuse of
drugs in a comprehensive and long‐term manner, with a primary focus on youth in the
community as well as increased mental health and suicide prevention training.

d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds?
i. Activities, Outputs: Increase the number of new partner sectors engaged in Drug‐
Free Community Coalition from 13‐18, establish an active Youth Action Team (YAT),
and increase the number of activities and mental health trainings that promote
substance abuse prevention by August 31, 2021 DFC Progress Report
ii. Outputs, Outcomes: Create online resource portal for service providers and families
for streamlined access to help by September 1, 2021
iii. Outcomes: Establish a Race, Equity, and Inclusion advisory committee to ensure REI
values are integral to NCFC strategy team initiatives by June 1, 2021
iv. Activities: increase the number of new volunteers and placements with local NPO’s
measured by quarterly NCFC reports
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Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe,
"what we do."
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver."
3. Outcomes: the medium‐term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
achieve."
4. Impacts: the results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing
poverty and creating jobs.
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Newton County Family Connection, Inc.
Newton County
FY22 Annual Plan
July 01, 2021 ‐ June 30, 2022

Governance Type: Private non‐profit body
Collaborative Functional Type: Partner Engagement
Collaborative Description and Activities to Strengthen Effectiveness: NCFC manages two community development initiatives: Be Healthy Newton (BHN) and
Newton READS (NR). NCFC’s volunteer model of delivery ensures diverse participation and youth engagement, and maximizes funding resources. NCFC will tailor
communications to engage underrepresented sectors in the collaborative’s plan of work. BHN works to address Basic Living Needs, Adolescent Risky Behaviors,
Access to Resources, access to public and mental health, and substance abuse prevention. The Drug Free Community Coalition (DFCC) is the primary focus of
work in FY22. DFCC activities will strengthen the community’s ability to address other health and literacy issues. Planning and implementation will include
neighborhood representation with diverse perspectives. NCFC will expand a community resource directory to streamline access to services for families in need,
and will reduce health and education disparities by establishing a single point of entry for diverse services. Growth of NR programs and services is dependent on
increased funding, however NCFC continues to develop relationships that strengthen the four pillars for quality early education as defined by Get Georgia
Reading. Tobacco and alcohol use increases the chance of low‐birthweight, a key indicator for delayed language development and failure to perform on‐level in
3rd grade. Parents with less than 12 years of education are less likely to have access to quality early education experiences that prepare their children for school
success. Four benchmarks will be used to measure public health as it relates to school success: low birthweight, 30‐day past alcohol use, 3rd grade students
reading proficiently, and adults who obtain GED certification.

Newton Family Connection FY22 Annual Plan
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Desired Outcome: NCFC will use the DFCC framework to improve health outcomes and address 2-Generation literacy.
Strategy: NCFC’s Drug Free Community Coalition (DFCC) includes family and youth attitudes in surveys for the 2022 Community Assessment. NCFC’s updated
resource directory will streamline access to services and reduce health and education disparities. DFCC will reduce tobacco and alcohol use, supporting healthy
literate babies leading to 3rd grade, on‐level performance. Adult basic ed improves individual ability to provide quality early education experiences that prepare
their children for school success.

Child and Family Indicators:
Indicator

Result Area

Data Source

Low-birthweight babies [HC11]
9th grade students reporting alcohol use in the past 30 days [HC15]
3rd grade students achieving Proficient Learner or above on Milestones ELA
assessment [CS8b]

Healthy Children
Healthy Children
Children Succeeding in
School

KIDS Count Website
KIDS Count Website

Adult literacy [LD2]

Thriving Communities

Activities:
Activity Type

Activity Name

Description

Specify if
Other

KIDS Count Website
GA Piedmont Technical
College

Target Group

Systems Change Drug-Free Community Coalition

The DFC coalition will increase collaboration to
address underage and binge drinking and tobacco
use (particularly vaping) to reduce public health
problems associated with their use, including the
potential for dependency, harm related to risky
Middle and High School youth
behaviors undertaken while under the influence
(impaired driving, unplanned sexual activity,
fighting, delinquent activities, etc.), increased
likelihood of expanding experimentation to other
substances, and death.

Collaborative
Development

Educate members of NCFC Board to the work of
NCFC Board of Directors
the organization and charge them to prioritize

Board Development

Newton Family Connection FY22 Annual Plan
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organizational needs and interests in their
engagement in community activities. Continue
bi- monthly meetings and functional committees
to manage nominations, fund development,
finance, and human resources.
Coalition partners meet monthly to facilitate four
strategies addressing basic living needs,
health/wellness, youth/families, senior citizens as Coalition partners
indicated by the 2020 Community Health
Improvement Plan.

Collaborative
Development

Be Healthy Newton

Collaborative
Development

NCFC will facilitate a community assessment to
determine extent of substance use and abuse by
youth in middle and high school and attitudes of Newton County community, youth in
Drug-Free Community Assessment
Newton County leaders, community members,
middle and high school, and parents
businesses, parents and youth towards substance
abuse.
Advisory committee will evaluate current race,
equity and inclusion practices within current
strategy team work, and make recommendations NCFC Board of Directors and
for policies and procedures to ensure REI values collaborative partners
are embedded within NCFC work by January 31,
2022.

Collaborative
Development

Race, Equity, and Inclusion
Advisory Committee

Family
Engagement

Recruit and engage neighborhood leaders and
Neighborhood Voice- Race, Equity
family members in planning and implementing
and Inclusion
strategy team work.

Results
Accountability

Sustainability

Faith Community, Families living in
target communities, adult and youth
volunteers advocating for issue-driven
change

Drug-Free Community

Work with an evaluator to establish baseline data
referring to youth substance use, building a
Drug-Free Community Coalition
coalition to address it, and measuring change.

Resource Development

Partner with other organizations to write
collaborative grants as they are identified.
Partner groups in Drug-Free Community,
Provide letters of support for partner agencies
Be Healthy Newton, Family Literacy and
(ongoing).Identify existing and potential funding Civic Engagement.
streams for NCFC programming.
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Communications Community Resource Directory

Programs & Services:
Program/Service
Name

Utilize digital and print media to increase access
Community Partners and public
and use of resource guides.

Description

Target Group

Get Georgia Reading

Participate in themed reading events
including: Read Across America, Mayors'
Summer Reading Club, and Read for the
Record. NCFC will provide early literacy
programming for parents.

Parents and
caregivers, child
care providers,
libraries

Quality Early Care

Promote access to supportive services for Parents and
health, language nutrition and positive
caregivers, child
learning climates for children birth to five. care provider

In-School Mentoring

Newton Mentoring Inc. matches adult
volunteers with students in school. Adults
commit to spend one hour once a week for
the duration of the school year.

ASAP strengthens literacy and educational
development for children identified as
needing after‐school services and
After School Academic remediation during out-of-school hours.
Program (ASAP)
ASAP provides academic enrichment,
tutorial services and additional services,
programs, and activities to reinforce and
complement the regular academic program.
Two-Generation
Literacy

Lead Implementing
Collaborative Responsibility
Partner

NCFC

NCFC participates in state agency
Department of Early and GPTC advisory committees;
Care and Learning
staff facilitates quarterly peer
meetings.

Students
attending Newton Newton Mentoring,
County Public
Inc.
Schools

NCFC serves on the advisory
board, recruits mentors, compiles
evaluations, and raises funds.

Students
attending Newton Newton County
County Public
School System
Schools

NCFC sits on advisory board, and
links families to literacy and
community resources.

Adult and family literacy-focused
programs and activities coordinated along
Parents with
standards for the Certified Literate
NCFC
children birth to 5
Community through the Technical College
System of GA.

Newton Family Connection FY22 Annual Plan
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NCFC engages adults in further
education, and will focus on
caregivers of children who attend
Head Start.
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Civic Engagement

Increase public participation in activities
that support civic health and community
engagement. GSU’S ACE faculty include
student volunteerism in courses to change
the Newton County community’s
perception of the value and connectedness
of the college.

Community
volunteers

NCFC

NCFC manages volunteer activities
with a particular focus on MLK
Day of Service and college
volunteer initiatives.

Suicide Prevention
Coalition

The coalition's goal is to provide mental
health education and build awareness for
the prevention of suicide. SPC supports
alternative activities for youth and adults
raising awareness of how to prevent
suicide.

Newton County
families

View Point Health

NCFC serves with the local and
state DBHDD suicide prevention
coalitions.

To Document and Monitor Progress:
What is being measured?
BOD
Activities, Training/ Planning
Race, Equity, and Inclusion
Advisory Committee

What is the data source?
Minutes/ Committees
Meeting minutes

Notes/Event Evaluations/
Program Participation
Drug-Free Coalition Community Monthly Minutes/Activity
Assessment
log/Biannual Progress Report
Parents of children enrolled in
GPTC enrollment data
Head start completing GED
Strategy Team Activities

Who will be
responsible?
Secretary/
Chairman

How often will the data
be collected?
Monthly

NCFC

Ongoing

Strategy Team
Members

As needed/ongoing

NCFC

Ongoing/

NCFC

ongoing

How will you communicate
these results?
Review monthly for
achievements
Policy and procedure reviews
Review accomplishments and
determine next steps
Review accomplishments and
determine next steps
Review for periodic celebrations
with families/media

Benchmarks:
1. Decrease Low-birthweight babies [HC11] from 10.8 in 2019 to 9.8% in 2022
Data Source: Georgia Kids Count
Newton Family Connection FY22 Annual Plan
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2. Decrease 9th grade students reporting alcohol use in the past 30 days [HC15] from 7.9% in 2020 to 7.2% in 2022
Data Source: Georgia Kids Count
3. Maintain 3rd grade students achieving Proficient Learner or above on Milestones ELA assessment [CS8b] from 33.1% in 2019 to 33.1 in
2022
Data Source: Georgia Kids Count
4. Increase Increase number of adults whose children attend HS, to receive GED certificate from 0 in 2020 to 3 in 2022
Data Source: Georgia Piedmont Technical College

Newton Family Connection FY22 Annual Plan
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Final Report on the 2020 Census response for Newton County
Newton County 2020 Self-Response
Total: 68.5%
Internet: 53.5%
NC Final 2010 Self-Response: 64.6%

GEORGIA 2020 Self-Response rate: 62.8%

Newton ranks 19 out of 159 counties in self‐response rates in Georgia!
The Census Bureau differentiates between a self‐response rate (those who respond by internet,
phone, or mail to the initial request) and the total rate which includes Census field staff
prompting response.
At a self‐response rate of 62.8%, the state of Georgia ranks at 38 out of all states, the District of
Columbia and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. However, when you count the total response
rate, “All but one state was at or above 99.9%. The state of Louisiana and our field staff who
worked hard to complete Nonresponse Followup operations deserve our congratulations and
thanks for getting the total response rate over 99.0% complete even with the devastating
effects of hurricanes Laura and Delta.”
“While other quality measures for the 2020 Census will be produced over time, it helps to look
at self‐response rates as an initial metric. Generally, better data comes from self‐response, but
after a decade of global decline in census and survey participation along with the challenges
presented by COVID‐19, we had not expected to beat the 2010 self‐response rate. This would
not have been possible without our partners and new technologies.” This is true for Newton
County as well. This process brought new partners to the table, and expresses One Newton!
loud and clear.
See more comparisons and national stats “2020 Census Response Rate Update 99.98% Complete
Nationwide. All states top 99%, Self-response beats 2010”
https://public.tableau.com/profile/us.census.bureau#!/vizhome/2020CensusSelfResponseRankings/RankingsDashboard

Local Note: GSU Academic Community Engagement (ACE) Summer 2020 students supported the
county’s Census Complete County Committee by creating an infographic to be disseminated via social
media. Fall semester students dispersed the infographic via multiple social media platforms during the
final 30 days of the count, generating approximately 8,000 views in the 18 to 22‐year old age group. The
county’s self‐report rate increased approximately 3 percentage points during the social media campaign,
resulting being ranked 19 out of 158 counties in the state.
Activity Timeline:
Date
Activity
7/6/2019 meeting with Lloyd Kerr
8/21/2019 meeting with Chairman and US Census reps
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8/22/2019
10/11/2019
10/22/2019
1/8/2020
2/18/2020
PROMO PLAN

US Census webinar
GA Complete Count Committee workshop
NC Complete Count Committee initial meeting
GA Complete Count Committee update session
meeting with Lloyd Kerr, Tim Lawrence
GIS print posters for county admin building
social media campaigns (NCFC)
census in city/county newsletters
flyers at extended stay hotels
Chairmans letter to churches
cards at Tax/Tag office
laptops at NC Library event, Relay for Life, Family Fun Day
laptops in neighborhoods ‐ community leaders canvassing
tshirts on GSU campus
posters and flyer in local businesses, churches
powerpoint to civic groups, employee lunch‐n‐learns
3/2/2020 Sources of Strength event at Alcovy HS
3/5/2020 meeting with Relay for Life organizer
COVID ‐ QUARANTINE
4/9/2020 Counting Babies webinar ‐ Count All Kids
6/11/2020 NC 61.6% ‐ 1005.06 (F) Fairview Rd/Harold Dobbs Rd
(47.6%), 1007.01 (L) Rebecca St./Ivy St. SW (49.4%)
6/12/2020 meeting with Unidos Latin American Association
7/23/2020 Faith Leaders Panel discussion
July, Aug.
2020 flyers at food distribution events
Aug. 2020 real estate signs in county right of way
Sept. 2020 flyers to apartment complexes
Sept. 2020 Social media campaign (GSU ACE)
10/5/2020 last day of count
activities impacted by COVID‐19 ‐ not completed
census tracts identified as very high risk of undercount
greatest rate of increase in tracts at high risk of undercount
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subcommittees assigned
presentation to BoC
complete
complete
complete

permission to participate

complete
complete
complete
complete

Newton County Family Connection COVID response 2020

How has COVID affected your organization’s mission and plans for the coming year?
Our mission and work will not change; how we do it, must.
NCFC Vision: We envision a Newton County where all children, families and the
community are engaged, empowered, and successful.
NCFC Mission: NCFC fosters community through connection, service, and partnerships.
Our Work:
1. NCFC works with community leadership to focus on planning that fosters large‐
scale change and community development.
2. NCFC and partner organizations identify and address gaps in programming ‐
working with families, community leaders and volunteers to establish strategy
teams that strengthen student success for both adults and children.


For the foreseeable future, strategy team and monthly inter‐agency meetings will continue to
be conducted via internet platforms. The virtual format has allowed for more consistent
attendance, particularly by representatives of regional organizations who normally would
have to travel between counties to make scheduled in‐person meetings. For teams with
established inter‐personal relationships, the conversion to online meetings has been very
smooth and has included checking in on the well‐being of individual colleagues and their
organizations.



Strategy teams are actively working to find new ways to reach families and youth with
educational messaging and engaging them to participate in community‐level planning. The
school system social workers and individual school administrators have traditionally been key
to reaching students and parents who volunteer on strategy and event planning teams; their
lines of communication are diluted as students struggle to communicate beyond basic
classroom instruction via the virtual education platform.



With many traditional volunteers retired and immunocompromised, NCFC has developed a
list of minimal‐contact community service opportunities and promoted partner organization
needs via VolunteerMatch online.



Georgia Family Connection Partnership has maintained Race, Equity, and Inclusion (REI) as an
indicator for child and family well‐being since the organization was founded in 1992. In light
of current social climate and the disproportionate impacts of COVID on persons of color, our
strategy teams are being more deliberate in considering and documenting the inclusion of
REI in the planning process.
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What actions has your organization taken in light of COVID to meet the current needs of the
community you serve?
NCFC’s ongoing response to the impacts of COVID‐19 on the community has succeeded because
we are able to create and activate partner networks. NCFC was able to fold resource distribution
into existing contexts. Immediate activities addressed basic needs such as food, healthcare,
educational/technology supports, and PPE.
Examples:
 Public Health asked NCFC to distribute 15,000 face masks to low‐income communities. We
supplied them to partners distributing food and back‐to‐school supplies, including: Covington
First United Methodist Church, Emmanuel Community Church at Newton County High School,
Unidos Latino Association, NC Sheriff’s Office, Commissioner Demond Mason and Chairman
Banes, Salvation Army, McIntosh Trail Head Start, Newton County Boys and Girls Club, Willing
Helpers Medical Clinic, and Newton County Senior Citizen Center. Subsequently, Public
Health provided an additional 3,000 masks, distributed to Unidos Latino Association (their
food distributions continue), McIntosh Trail Head Start (for their staff and families), Newton
County Chamber of Commerce (Stewart Baptist Church food distribution), and
Representative Pam Dickerson (cemetery cleanup event).


Early in the quarantine, NCFC was contacted regarding senior citizens whose senior day care
closed leaving them at home without regular meals. Newton County Senior Center did not
have the capacity to absorb the additional clients into their meal distribution program, so
NCFC accepted donations on their behalf to fund the purchase of meals and helped find
volunteers to pick up and deliver meals prepared by the Senior Center cafeteria staff.



NCFC collaborated with partner agencies McIntosh Trail Head Start, First Steps‐Piedmont
Newton and Prevent Child Abuse Rockdale‐Newton to provide diapers, clothes, cleaning
supplies and travel money for a teacher who was called suddenly to take care of her brother’s
newborn infant, whose wife was hospitalized with COVID‐19 immediately after giving birth.



In August 2019, Chairman Banes and the county commissioners designated NCFC to Chair the
2020 Census response for hard‐to‐count populations. Staff had recruited volunteers, solicited
tablets, and established training for individuals to set up online response stations at large
community gatherings such as the Chairman’s Family Fun Day, NC School System’s Literacy
Festival, Relay for Life, and Cheerios’ Challenge, which were all cancelled due to COVID‐19.
NCFC responded by increasing Census messaging on social media, and developing maps
demonstrating current count rates to share with county leadership, which we updated bi‐
weekly until the Census closed in October 2020. Summer semester students at
GSU/Perimeter College created an infographic that was disseminated via social media by fall
semester students during the final month of counting, generating approximately 8,000 views
in the 18 to 22‐year old age group. We recruited volunteers to distribute posters, real estate
signs, and to pass out flyers at multiple food distribution events. NCFC developed a new
partnership with Unidos Latino Association (based in Rockdale County but extending services
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to Newton County), and provided yard signs, flyers, and masks to allow Unidos Latino
Association to promote the Census as they hosted food and back‐to‐school events in low‐
income/Spanish‐speaking neighborhoods including Alcovy Mobile Home Park and Riverside
Mobile Home Park. At the end of the Census process, Newton ranked 19 out of 159 Georgia
counties with 68.5% of residents self‐responding.


NCFC has begun to address the lack of computer access for many residents, especially with
the closure of the public library facilities. NCFC assisted a foster parent who requested help
when her special needs child was unable to receive a laptop from the school system and could
not choose the in‐building option for school due to health issues. By partnering with the
Chamber of Commerce and PC AfterDark, a refurbished laptop was donated to the family.
We are now seeking laptops for at least 2 adults wanting to attend GED classes at Georgia
Piedmont Technical College, which has converted completely to virtual learning.



McIntosh Trail Head Start (serving low‐income children ages 3 to 5) closed school early in the
spring and returned in the fall as virtual‐only. NCFC determined that some of the teaching
staff and about 30 families could not participate in online learning due to lack of technology
resources. NCFC submitted a grant to Facebook in September to fund laptops and internet
access, but will not know until May 2021 if the grant is awarded. In the meantime, NCFC
provided books to build at‐home family libraries and has positioned volunteers from
GSU/Perimeter College to expand the school’s lending library. Additionally, NCFC has
transitioned our Ready, Set School Club program to a virtual format; by the end of January
2021, trained volunteers will work with 15 families to implement at‐home activities
supporting Head Start learning objectives and engaging parents in post‐high school workforce
development activities.



NCFC created new VolunteerMatch postings to recruit additional volunteers for First United
Methodist Church to support the massive increase in their food distribution services and to
generate diaper donation drives.



NCFC recruited an intern from Georgia College and State University (whose senior placement
was cancelled due to COVID) to increase our social media capacity. She wrote news articles,
guided social media messaging, and updated the local food pantry list. She also helped to
build out a dedicated COVID resource page on the NCFC website and an added page
addressing race, diversity, and inequity under the heading “Kinder Community”.



NCFC staff has had an ongoing relationship with childcare providers and serves as liaison with
the state licensing agency (DECAL) through the Quality Rated Peer Support Network.
Childcare providers have been crushed by COVID; most closed during the quarantine and the
requirements for reopening involve great expense and significant changes to daily practice.
NCFC staff supported DECAL’s Community Outreach team by co‐hosting multiple Zoom
meetings to hear concerns and facilitate dialogue, and by increasing the level of direct
communication with providers via email and social media. NCFC staff helped early childhood
providers determine the procedure to establish virtual learning environments for school‐age
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children when the school system announced that it would be online‐only in the fall. Staff is
communicating with the Newton County Chamber to find ways to engage the business
community in advocating for relief funding for the childcare sector.


Chairman Banes and the Board of Commissioners commissioned NCFC to convene a strategy
team and establish a model to distribute CARES Act funds to nonprofits and families affected
by COVID. NCFC convened 2 meetings with health and human services agencies and
established a plan to disseminate capacity‐building funds to non‐profit applicants and to
equip Salvation Army to supply supports for individual applicants. 8 individual non‐profit
agency applications were received and vetted and 5 case managers were interviewed before
the process was halted due to state‐level redistribution of funding.

Incremental needs or hardships caused by COVID
The entire health and human services sector is desperate for the resources to build capacity; the
expectation is that Newton County will have a heightened level of need for the next 18 months,
as reflected by the tripling of services provided by FUMC Food Pantry and Willing Helpers Free
Clinic, and the massive increase in requests for housing and utility assistance.


For NCFC, grant funding from federal, state, and local sources is either being re‐directed,
placed on hold, or being delayed for draw down as the government decides on additional
stimulus/recovery packages. Generating local funding is challenging for 3 reasons: the
community is unable to gather for traditional fundraising activities; the slowdown of the local
economy and job loss/layoffs means less business sponsorship; and working parents who
now care for school‐age children at home have less disposable income for individual
donations.



A particular challenge to Newton County residents is a glitch between Atlanta United Way
211 and NE Ga UW 211. If someone in Newton County calls 211, they are directed to outside
the county even when services are available locally. NCFC partners have asked us to establish
and maintain an internet‐based cross‐agency communication system to streamline services
to families in need. We had hoped to use CARES Act funds (no longer available) to establish a
baseline system for data sharing between services for wrap‐around services.

NCFC’s role is to build community capacity to meet basic daily needs, and to promote health and
well‐being and school success/workforce development that improves our overall economy. In
this climate of forced isolation, NCFC seeks and finds way to meaningfully connect communities.
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PSA

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

CONTACT:
Title:
Contact Phone:
Email:

Laura Bertram
Executive Director, Newton County Family Connection
770.786.0807
laurab@nwtnfamilyconnection.org

We are excited to share that Newton County Family Connection has been awarded the Drug Free
Communities (DFC) grant of $125,000. The DFC grant provides an award of $125,000 annually for 5 years
to fund programming and community education that promotes positive supports that reduces the risk
factors leading to substance use. The White House Office of National Drug Control Policy, in cooperation
with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention awarded this grant to Newton County Family
Connection effective January 1, 2021.
Newton County Family Connection manages the Newton County Drug Free Coalition, whose goals are to
establish and strengthen community collaboration and prevent substance abuse by youth and adults.
The work is multifaceted, and includes promoting mental health & wellness; preventing suicide;
preventing alcohol, prescription, opioid, and marijuana use by youth; and preventing tobacco use by youth
and adults.
Coalition partners represent 12 community sectors including youth, parents, health and human services
agencies, schools, government agencies, the faith community, law enforcement, and nonprofit
organizations providing a wide variety of prevention, intervention, and recovery services. The Coalition
includes high school students who give a youth perspective on campaigns designed by the group.
The Coalition has an immediate need to hire a full‐time Project Coordinator and a part‐time
Communications Specialist, and is seeking youth and adult volunteers who would like to be part of
expanding the work funded by the grant.
For more information about the Newton County Drug Free Coalition or to volunteer to help with
prevention activities, contact us at connect@nwtnfamilyconnection.org or 770‐330‐7405. The Drug Free
Coalition is a strategy team of Newton County Family Connection, which provides leadership in
community planning for solutions to issues that affect families and children.

-

###
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2021 NCFC activities are Aligned with NC Government Strategic Plan 2019‐2022

Strategy A: Cultivate a culture of trust
1.NCFC provides a neutral table for forums with and without elected officials.
2. NCFC is the clearinghouse for resource sharing between non‐profit organizations, social service agencies, government
organizations and community members. NCFC cultivates a culture of two‐way conversations between community
members and the county through written accounts of regularly scheduled meetings open to the public, and shared
information through the web (nwtnfamilyconnection.org) and social media (fb, Instagram).
5. NCFC promotes accomplishments achieved within the community: NCFC uses state and local data (Georgia Kids
Count) to measure and communicate improvements for children and families. NCFC communicates between sectors of
government, social services, the education community (pre‐K, K‐12, and college), community members, neighborhood
associations, the faith community, and non‐profits. NCFC can and has promoted Newton County goals and achievements
through public meetings and planning sessions.
7. NCFC is a partner with the school system and the Northeast Georgia Regional Authority and promotes job
opportunities to the community both in person and via social media.
8. NCFC is the local resource for volunteerism through the Hands on Newton program. HON acts as a clearinghouse for
community–based organizations that require volunteers and HON works with volunteers to initiate, organize and
perform projects to improve our community. Hands on Newton uses volunteermatch.com as the web page for citizens
to identify projects that are suited to their needs, talents and interests.

Strategy B: Support Initiatives that provide a sense of belonging, security and well‐being.
1. Hands On Newton serves as part of a multi‐disciplinary approach to addressing unsafe environments (community clean‐
ups, recruitment of volunteers, provide collateral tools to support projects, organizing issue‐based civic engagement
projects).
2. NCFC conducted two community conversations addressing need for public transit in 2016, and can facilitate an updated
survey as needed.
4. Senior Services: NCFC partners with senior services; NCFC provided books and activities for grandparents raising
children, and will partner again summer 2021 to host a Mayor’s Reading Club book reading .
5. Youth Development: NCFC convened the first community meeting to address a Boys and Girls Club in 2009. NCFC
conducts research and distributes information about programs and grants providing quality out‐of‐school time for youth
and serves on NCSS 21st Century After School Advisory Board.
6. NCFC is an active partner with the Trail Network, and is the county champion for healthy children and families. NCFC
facilitates Be Healthy Newton, a cross‐sector strategy team to increase access to healthy activities and nutrition with
families.
7. NCFC is the Co‐Convener with Public Health to implement the 2020 Community Health Improvement Plan, and has
partnered with Public Health in community assessments since the 2011 hospital assessments.
8. Low literacy and poverty are the primary barriers to work readiness, which is critical to our county’s economic
development. Schools can’t overcome the issues associated with poverty alone. NCFC works within the non‐profit and
social sector to strengthen the community’s capacity to provide the emotional, educational, and health needs of our
children at greatest risk. For 2022, NCFC’s goal is to increase Kindergarten readiness for children living in low‐income
communities by increasing the number of child care providers certified as Quality Rated programs, and improving adult
1
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literacy achievement. NCFC staff serves on the state Quality Rated Advisory Committee and is Ambassador for state
Early Childhood Peer Support Network. NCFC manages the state sanctioned Certified Literate Community Program.
9. NCFC serves as a champion for Newton County activities in person and via social media.
C. Create opportunities for economic development throughout Newton County for existing and future business.
NCFC’s strategy team for adult literacy/workforce development addresses job readiness aligned with the Chamber’s plan
for development:
The Chamber of Commerce envisions a business climate that fosters innovation, entrepreneurship, and self‐sufficiency.
Success includes:
• Companies can find local workers with the skills they need for today and tomorrow.
• Residents have tools and opportunities to provide for themselves and their families.
To help the plan succeed, NCFC programs support Chamber investment related to identified Key Drivers:
• Increasing workforce preparedness.
• NCFC programs provide both community‐based and school‐based tutoring and mentoring (currently
halted due to CVD). NCFC focuses on a two‐generation approach, serving adults and children to
strengthen the birth to work pipeline.
• Improving collaboration, which includes integrated approaches to decrease barriers to accessing workforce
training and employment for underrepresented communities of color, immigrants, ex‐offenders, homeless etc.
• GPTC has policies to retain students in these populations, however NCFC’s adult literacy program
provides volunteer tutors who mentor, champion, and help students navigate through the school
programs, increasing retention in classes and increasing progress towards GED certification.
NCFC engages adult learners in building public will:
 NC Schools strengthen the school talent and leadership pipeline.
 NCFC programs empower parents, communities, and organizations to advocate for educational equity and
excellence.
 Staff serves on CTAE for Newton County School System
E. Provide for a safe and secure community
NCFC received the Drug‐Free Community Coalition grant which brings $125,000 a year for a 5‐year period. The
coalition’s principal mission is the reduction of youth substance use, which, at a minimum, includes the use and abuse of
drugs in a comprehensive and sustainable manner, with a primary focus on youth in the community. Beginning June
2021, the grant will support a comprehensive community assessment as well as free mental health training, youth
mental health training, suicide prevention training, increased drug‐awareness education, and narcan training and kits.
NCFC staff chairs the youth‐driven Drug‐Free Community Coalition, and works actively with the schools, families,
community members, and law‐enforcement to strengthen proactive activities supporting improved mental health,
suicide prevention and healthy behaviors.
 NCFC sits on state Suicide Prevention Advisory Board
 NCFC sits on the Advisory Boards for the Drug Resource Court and Mental Health Resource Court.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Newton County Family Connection, Inc. as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Peachtree Corners, Georgia
May 6, 2020
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2019

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid items

$

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets

53,315
12,500
643
66,458
90

Total assets

$

66,548

$

591
11,071

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

11,662

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated
With donor restrictions

44,997
9,889

Total net assets

54,886

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2019

With Donor
Restrictions

Without Donor
Restrictions
Operating activities:
Revenues and other support
Contractual assistance
Business and individuals
Foundations
Other

$

Net assets released from donor restrictions
Total revenue and other support
Expenses
Program services
Support services
General and administrative
Total expenses

68,430
20,351
2,123

$

Total

16,750
-

$

68,430
20,351
16,750
2,123

90,904

16,750

107,654

19,454

(19,454)

-

110,358

(2,704)

107,654

115,945

-

115,945

16,172

-

16,172

132,117

-

132,117

Change in net assets from operating activities

(21,759)

(2,704)

(24,463)

Change in net assets

(21,759)

(2,704)

(24,463)

66,756

12,593

79,349

Net assets, beginning of year, restated (Note H)

Net assets, end of year

$

44,997

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

9,889

$

54,886

NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Compensation and related expenses
Salaries
Payroll taxes

Program
Services

Support
Services

Family
Connection

General &
Administrative

$

72,250
5,527

Total compensation and related expenses
Occupancy
Property and casualty insurance
Telephone and internet
Utilities
Total occupancy expenses
Administration
Accounting fees
Bank fees
Consulting fees
Dues and subscriptions
Office expense
Postage and delivery
Registration fees
Training, conferences and meetings
Total administration expenses

$

12,750
975

Total
$

85,000
6,502

77,777

13,725

91,502

1,345
2,517
2,727

237
444
481

1,582
2,961
3,208

6,589

1,162

7,751

4,757
100
409
499
133
3,178

839
129
54
23
240
-

5,596
129
100
409
553
156
240
3,178

9,076

1,285

10,361

22,391
112

-

22,391
112

22,503

-

22,503

Programs
Client services
Community events
Total program expenses

Total functional expenses

$

115,945

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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16,172

$

132,117

NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets

$

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid items
Other assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other liabilities

(24,463)

(375)
29
(5)
591
(7,767)

Net cash used by operating activities

(31,990)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(31,990)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

85,305

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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53,315

NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE A – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Activities
Newton County Community Partnership, Inc. changed its name to Newton County Family Connection,
Inc. (the “Organization”) on March 22, 2019. The Organization is a Georgia nonprofit corporation
organized in 1990 to provide a climate for successful partnering of community groups, organizations, and
individuals working together in support of healthy children and families. Services provided by Newton
County Family Connection, Inc. include the following:
Family Connection: Providing activities serving children and their families in order to improve
school performance, including entry into school with requisite skills, reduced need for
remediation services, and increase attendance and grade progression; improve family functioning,
including family stability and reduce incidence of child abuse; and improve family economic
capacity, including community job training and employment, housing, and community economic
development;
Providing an urban health and wellness program to promote healthy children and families through
proper nutrition and exercise; substance abuse, mental health and suicide prevention; and
Providing a family literacy initiative through safe and stable environments supporting
intergenerational literate activities and parent supports.
Basis of Presentation
The Organization’s financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial statements are
presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA) “Audit and Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit Organizations” (the ‘Guide”).
(ASC) 958-205 was effective January 1, 2018.
Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues, and gains and losses are classified based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and
changes therein are classified as follows:
Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and
may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. The
Organization’s board may designate assets without restrictions for specific operational purposes from
time to time.
Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and grantors.
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where by the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE A – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Contributions
Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged and recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donorimposed restrictions. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they
depend are substantially met. Gifts of cash and other assets are reported with donor restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets
with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restrictions.
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Contributions restricted for the acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment are reported as net
assets without donor restriction upon acquisition of the assets and the assets are placed in service.
Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Measure of Operations
The Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including changes in net assets from
operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities consist of those items attributable to the
Organization’s ongoing activities. Non-operating activities are limited to resources that generate return
from investments, financing costs, and other activities considered to be of a more unusual or nonrecurring
nature. The Organization conducted no nonoperating activities for the year ended June 30, 2019.
New Accounting Pronouncement
On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and understandability of net
assets classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack
of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return. The
Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements accordingly.
Income Taxes
The Organization is a nonprofit corporation that is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no income taxes are reflected in the accompanying financial
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE A – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Income Taxes, continued
statements. The Organization does not receive any income from unrelated business activities and is not
required to file a federal Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) and therefore has
no uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements.
The Organization’s federal income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities generally for
three years after they are filed. The tax return for the year ended June 30, 2019 will be filed by the extended
due date of May 15, 2020.
Functional Expenses
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the Statement of Activities and in the Statement of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are determined by
management on an equitable basis. The expenses that are allocated include the following:
Expense
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Occupancy
Office expense
Training and meetings

Method of Allocation
Full time equivalent
Full time equivalent
Square footage
Time and effort
Time and effort

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments
available for current use with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
At June 30, 2019 the Organization’s carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents was $53,315 and bank
balance was $53,736. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC).
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consist of reimbursement due on contractual assistance grants for expenditures made
but not reimbursed as of June 30, 2019. Receivables recorded on the financial statements do not include
any amounts that would necessitate the need for an allowance for uncollectible receivables. See Note B
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE A – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Prepaid Items
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods subsequent to year end, are recorded as
prepaid items.
Restrictions on Net Assets
Contributions with donor restrictions were received and released during the year ended June 30, 2019 to
support the Organization’s Family Connection health and wellness program for the benefit of needy
individuals. See Note G
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost or fair market value at the date of the gift, if donated.
Such donations are reported as unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated assets to a
specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash
that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by
the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions at that time. Depreciation of furniture and equipment are computed over the estimated useful
life of the applicable asset using the straight-line method. See Note C
Other Assets and Accrued Liabilities
The Organization serves as fiscal agent on behalf of the Resource Courts of the Alcovy Judicial Circuit
(“the Courts”) for Newton and Walton counties. These funds are received and held on deposit for
subsequent payments as directed by the Courts. At June 30, 2019 Newton County resource payments
have exceeded receipts in the amount of $90 and reflected as other assets due from Newton resources;
Walton County resource receipts have exceeded payments in the amount of $10,268 and other resource
receipts have exceeded payments in the amount of $803; and reflected as accrued liabilities.
Contractual Assistance
The Organization’s relationship with the Newton County Board of Commissioners is evaluated each year
and if certain criteria are met, contracts are negotiated. Contracts through the Newton County Board of
Commissioners included funds received through the State of Georgia Department of Human Services
passed through the Newton County Board of Commissioners to use on the Family Connection Program
and funds received from Newton County Board of Commissioners for Organization operating
expenditures. See Note D
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE A – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Contributed Services
Members of the Board of Directors volunteer services to the Organization without compensation.
Furthermore, a substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of time in the
Organization’s program services and operating activities. The value of these contributed services has not
been recorded in the financial statements because an objective and measurable basis for determining the
value of these services is not available.
NOTE B – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable includes amounts earned on approved state and local contractual assistance grants.
The Organization’s accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019 is as follows:
Georgia Department of Human Services
Newton County Board of Commissioners
Family Connection Program

$

12,500

NOTE C – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The following is a summary of changes in the Organization’s property and equipment during the year:
Balance
June 30, 2018
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

$

Property and equipment, net

$

Additions
(Deletions)

13,404
(13,404)
-

Depreciation

Balance
June 30, 2019

$

-

$

-

$

$

-

$

-

$

13,404
(13,404)
-

NOTE D – FUNDING
The Organization received funding commitments from the Newton County Board of Commissioners of
pass through funds from the Georgia Department of Human Services for the period July 1, 2018 through
June 30, 2019 in the amount of $50,000 for the Family Connection Program; and from Newton County
Board of Commissioners in the amount of $18,430 for operating funds. See Contractual Assistance –
Note A
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE E – RISK MANAGEMENT
The Organization is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors or omissions; job related illness or injuries to employees; natural disaster; physical and
sexual abuse; discrimination and workers’ compensation. The Organization has obtained commercial
insurance for risk of loss associated with theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets and job related
illness or injuries to employees. The Organization has neither significantly reduced coverage for these
risks nor incurred losses (settlements) which exceeded the Organization’s insurance coverage in any of
the past five years. The Organization has elected to self-insure for all other losses. The Organization has
not experienced any losses related to these risks in the past five years.
NOTE F – ACCUMULATED EMPLOYEES’ LEAVE
The Organization’s full-time and part-time employees earn 5 sick leave days per year. Full-time
employees who have completed their introductory period are eligible to receive up to 3 days paid
bereavement leave due to the death or funeral of a member of the employee’s immediate family.
Unused sick leave may not be carried over to the next year and upon retirement or termination from
employment the employee will not be paid for any unused leave.
NOTE G – NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS
Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose, by the
occurrences of other events specified by contributors, or by the changes of restrictions specified by the
contributors. See Note H
Net assets with donor restrictions released for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:
Piedmont Community Benefit Grant
For health and wellness assistance

$

19,454

NOTE H – NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR, RESTATED
Beginning net assets has been restated for prior year adjustments of net assets with donor restrictions for
donor restrictions received and donor restrictions released from restrictions previously reflected within
unrestricted activity. The effect of the prior year adjustments are as follows:
With Donor
Restrictions
Net assets, beginning of year
Prior period adjustments for:
Contributions with donor restrictions
Net assets released from donor restrictions

$

Net assets, beginning of year, restated

$

-

Without Donor
Restrictions
$

15,000
(2,407)
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12,593

79,349

Total
$

(15,000)
2,407
$

66,756

79,349
-

$

79,349

NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019
NOTE I – LIQUIDITY
The Organization’s financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date for general
expenditures are as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid items

$

53,315
12,500
643

$

66,458

As part of the liquidity management, the Organization has structured its financial assets to be available as
its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.
NOTE J – CONTINGENCIES
Grants often require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the related instrument. Failure to
fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to the grantors. Although the return of funds is a
possibility, management deems the contingency unlikely, since upon accepting the grants the
Organization has agreed to comply with the provisions thereof.
NOTE K – DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 6, 2020, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued with the following item disclosed:
Subsequent Event – COVID-19
In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus was reported in Wuhan, China. The World Health
Organization has declared the outbreak to constitute a “Public Health Emergency of International
Concern.” The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through
mandated and voluntary closings of business operations causing financial hardships on individuals and
businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is considerable uncertainty
around the duration of the closings. The Organization expects this mater to negatively impact its
operating results which cannot be reasonably estimated by management at this time.
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NEWTON COUNTY FAMILY CONNECTION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF CONTRACTUAL ASSISTANCE
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Funding Agency
Program/Grant

Contract
Number

Award
In Period

2019

$ 50,000

2019

18,430

Revenues
In Period

Accounts
Receivable
June 30, 2019

Expenditures
In Period

$

$

Georgia Department of Human Services
Newton County Board of Commissioners
Children's Community Based Initiative
Family Connection Program
SFY 2019
Newton County Board of Commissioners
Operating Grant
SFY 2019

Total Contractual Assistance

$ 68,430

$

18,430

$

Notes to the Schedule of Contractual Assistance
The Organization did not provide assistance to any subrecipient.
SFY - State Fiscal Year (July 1 - June 30)

See notes to financial statements.
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50,000

68,430

12,500

-

$

12,500

50,000

18,430

$

68,430

We are excited to share that Newton County Family Connection has been awarded the Drug Free
Communities (DFC) grant of $125,000. The DFC grant provides an award of $125,000 annually for 5 years
to fund programming and community education that promote positive supports and reduce the risk
factors leading to substance use. The White House Office of National Drug Control Policy, in cooperation
with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention awarded this grant to Newton County Family
Connection effective January 1, 2021.
Newton County Family Connection manages the Newton County Drug Free Coalition, whose goals are to
establish and strengthen community collaboration and prevent substance abuse by youth and
adults. The work is multifaceted, and includes promoting mental health & wellness; preventing suicide;
preventing alcohol, prescription, opioid, and marijuana use by youth; and preventing tobacco use by youth
and adults.
Coalition partners represent 12 community sectors including youth, parents, health and human services
agencies, schools, government agencies, the faith community, law enforcement, and nonprofit
organizations providing a wide variety of prevention, intervention, and recovery services. The Coalition
includes high school students who give a youth perspective on campaigns designed by the group.

The Coalition has an immediate need to hire a full‐time Project Coordinator and a part‐time
Communications Specialist, and is seeking youth and adult volunteers who would like to be part of
expanding the work funded by the grant.
For more information about the Newton County Drug Free Coalition or to volunteer to help with
prevention activities, contact us at connect@nwtnfamilyconnection.org or 770‐786‐0807. The Drug Free
Coalition is a strategy team of Newton County Family Connection, which provides leadership in
community planning for solutions to issues that affect families and children.
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Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form

Agency Name:

Hwy 278 Community Improvement District (CID)

Project Name:

Phase 1 of Master Plan Implementation

Contact Person:

Kathy Morgan

Address:

2105 Lee St. SW

Email:

cid@selectnewton.com

Phone Number:

404‐234‐0325

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.ga.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2022: $ 30,000.00
2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent? 6 %
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Ad Valorem Real Estate Tax (Self Imposed by Owners)

88%

City of Covington

6%

Newton County

6%

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County in the past. X
If so, please
indicate how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years. We have received $30,000
per year for the last three years and $320,000 SPLOST dollars appropriated for match for Federal
Grants for Phase 1 of the Masterplan
5. How would your program or project be impacted if it did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? We would not be able to hire a professional
project manager for grants received to finalize and implement Phase 1 to ensure compliance.
6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. The Hwy 278 CID
property owners have formed a CID to self‐impose a tax on their properties to make improvements
within the HWY 278 CID to improve the values of these properties and enhance economic
development. This will be done by partnering with the City of Covington, Newton County Board of
[AUTHOR NAME]
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Funding Request Form

7.
8.
9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Commissioners and GDOT to leverage these dollars providing a match for state and federal grants
and funding.
If
Check this box if your program or project have a strategic plan or business plan in place. X
so, please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
How long do you anticipate your program or project will need Newton County funding? Until
completion of Grants to implement Master Plan (10‐15 years)
What steps are you taking to become independent and not need Newton County funding? We are
looking for additional grants and trying to increase our tax base through improved real estate
valuations and expansion of CID.
Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize the funding you receive from Newton County
for in your program operations. We will use this funding to hire a project manager GDOT certified
to work with GDOT, the CID, City of Covington, and report to Newton County to manage the PE
Grant when awarded. They will be responsible to manage the project and report to each party
involved to manage the grant and implement the project.
Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. We should receive a PE Grant and
ROW grant for Phase 1 of the Master Plan. It has been approved by the ARC and will go to GDOT
for announcement in April.
How does your organization or program benefit Newton County and its citizens? The Hwy 278 CID
is the major commercial corridor in Newton County, providing jobs, services, and sales tax to our
community. Sales tax collected within this corridor directly impacts the City and County budgets as
income. The commercial services provided create a strong economy for our community as well as
jobs from entry level to executive. It is also where the hospital is located and many medical services
are provided here for our community and regionally as well. The safety portions of the proposed
changes of Phase 1 will be complete by GDOT which includes the round abouts and medians. We
will be responsible for the sidewalk, multi‐use trail, lighting, utility relocation and landscaping.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year. The funds we received
in FY2021 and FY2022 will be used to pay the project manager to begin the implantation of the
grant and we also used those funds to amend our grant request, to generate specific information
required during the grant evaluation process and to work with GDOT to position our grant
application for consideration in a more favorable evaluation.
If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific goals set by
your organization.
a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County

We will hire a qualified project manager to work with GDOT, the CID, the City to manage the grant‐ to
bid and complete the final PE (redline plans) to complete the street on the Phase 1 site of the Hwy
278 CID Masterplan. Funding is coming from several sources, the CID, the City, the County, GDOT and
Federal grant sources, we want to assure the project manager to report to each party showing
compliance per the federal guidelines and work with the City LAP certified engineer to verify the work

[AUTHOR NAME]
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b. Please provide details regarding your organization’s performance in achieving those goals

1.The PE Grant should be awarded in the amount of $435,750 . with a match of $145, 250 for a
project total of $581,000. The award has been recommended and should be announced by April 15th,
2021. This grant is to be funded with 2021 dollars and should begin in this fiscal year to be completed
in FY2022.
2.The ROW Grant should be awarded the amount of $548,000 with a match of $137,000 for a project
total of $685,000 to be announced by April 15, 2021. This grant is to be funded in 2023 and should be
completed in 2023‐2024 depending on the amount of ROW and parcel owners to be purchased.
3. Created branding plan with newsletter and updated website .We worked with the businesses

15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support?Ensure
compliance for Grants for Phase 1 where SPLOST dollars are appropriated for matching
funds. STBG Grant for PE to develop final redline plans. STBG Grant for ROW acquisition.
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish during fiscal year 2021? FY2021 our goal was to
receive grants to implement Phase 1 of the Hwy 278 CID Masterplan. Our goals for FY2022
are to hire a project manager to manage the grant process assuring compliance for the STBG
PE Grant to provide final redline plans for Phase 1.
c. How do your goals promote the County’s Strategic Objectives? Strengthen infrastructure
to meet the needs of the public. Implement Phase 1 of the CID Master Plan making
improvements between Exit 90 and Emory St including a sidewalk and multi‐use trail,
landscaping and lighting to improve safe alternate transportation along the corridor.
Enhance economic development opportunities to increase the tax base and income.
d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by
Newton County funds? Describe performance measures here
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following:
1. Activities: The CID has created a Master Plan to enhance economic
development within the CID. We work with the stakeholders t encourage
revitalization of their properties to enhance their return on investment. We
work with the Economic Development staff to recruit development within
the CID. Our goal is to increase the tax base within the CID making us
competitive within the marketplace. We also worked with the businesses
during the COVID pandemic to help businesses remain open and continue to
[AUTHOR NAME]
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provide services to our community. Only 1 business closed and others met
customers by appointment only but stayed opened and kept their
employees. Reduction in sales tax and gas tax was one of the lowest in the
NE Georgia region per the Atlanta Regional Commission.
2. Outputs: .We expect to receive two grants in April for PE (final redline
plans) and ROW acquisition of Phase 1 of the Master Plan. We have
updated our website and created a quarterly newsletter. We helped the
businesses within the CID to remain open and retain their employees. We
supported and assisted the property owners to recruit new businesses such
as Smoothie King, Starbucks, and Eylelab as well as the relocation of Chick‐
Fil‐A. We have recruited a new hotel (permitting now).
3. Outcomes: Our goals of revitalization of the CID is best measured by
increased tax valuations and enhanced vitality. We have maintained our tax
valuations (12% increase) during the COVID Pandemic and only had 1
business close for COVID. They are rehabbing their building now to reopen
later this year. We expect to receive two grants in April. One for PE (final
redline plans) of Phase 1 of the Master Plan and the second for ROW of
purchase to begin the implementation process for Phase 1 construction of
the Master Plan.
4. Impacts: GDOT planned safety improvements for Phase 1 of the Master Plan
will impact our community by creating a safer entrance to our most
commercial district. The grants we are to receive will begin the
implementation of safe alternative transportation options to connect
pedestrians and businesses. Enhanced economic development and
recruiting new businesses will create new jobs from entry level to executive
positions. This will reduce poverty and offer opportunities within our
county. More business opportunities will increase sales tax revenue as well.
Property improvements and new developments will add to our tax base.

[AUTHOR NAME]
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the construction portion of the proj ect. We will re-apply for that grant funding at the
next TIP solicitation call later this year.

We feel it is important to hire a project manager to work with GDOT, the City of Covington, the
Hwy 278 CID and Newton County to ensure these grants are implemented in compliance with
the Grant requirements and are reported back to each entity to ensure transparency and bu ild
confidence in the completion of the project.
The proposed budget and Appropriation form attached were approved by the Hwy 278 CID
board at our last meeting on March 13,2021.
Thanking you in advance for your consideration,

Kathy Morgan,
Hwy 278 CID Administrator

2105 Lee Street SW

I

Covingt on, Georgia 30014
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Chairman Marcello Banes
ll'5.Yd Kerr, County Manager
~ Clark Street
Covington, Georgia 30014

HWY 278 CID

March 22, 2021

Re: Appropriation Request FY2022
Chairman Banes and County Manager Kerr,
We respectfully submit this request for an appropriation of funds from the FY2022 budget. The
Highway 278 CID has been successful to increase the ad valorem tax values by 12% since our
inception. We have also strengthened the quality of business within the Hwy 278 CID to retain
sales tax revenue for our county. We were able to continue to serve the public during the
COVID 19 pandemic keeping all businesses open except for one closing. They have re-opened
this spring. We are an important corridor to the County providing jobs, ad valorem taxes and
sales taxes that directly impact the Newton County BOC budget.
We were recommended for two grants to begin Phase 1 of the Hwy 278 CID Master Plan.
1. PE (final redline plans) . The grant is to be funded 2021. It is in the amount of
$435,750 with a match of $145,250 for a total project estimate of $581,000. The
estimated portion of the City of Covington and NCBOC match is $36,312.50 each and
the Hwy 278 CID is $72,625.00.
2. ROW aquisition . The grant is to be funded in 2023. It is in the amount of $548,000
with a match of $137,000 for a total project estimate of $685,000. The estimated
City of Covington and NCBOC portion of the match is $34,350 each and the Hwy 278
CID portion is $68,500.
Both of these grants should be announced in April 2021.
We have two requests from the Newton County Board of Commissioners FY2022 budget.
1. We request an appropriation of $30,000 to hire a project manager to manage the PE
Grant we were recommended for and should be announced in April. This person will
work with the City of Covington, NCBOC and Hwy 278 CID to manage the grant and to
ensure that we are in compliance. They will also report to all entities to keep them
informed of the progress.
2. We also request that the NCBOC match portion of this grant be funded from the
appropriated SPLOST dollars approved by the NCBOC last year in the amount of
$320,000. We will request draws from this funding for each of the match amounts for
the grants described above. We will also need the balance to provide match dollars for

2105 Lee Street SW

I

Covington, Georgia 30014
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Hwy 278 CID PROPOSED BUDGET
Estimated Budget 7/1/2018‐6/30/2019
Anticipated Tax Income
1 MIL
Balance Forwarded

PROPOSED 2020‐21 FY2021
$ 36,928.94
EXPENSE

INCOME

ACTUAL TO DATE

Tax Income

City Cov

In Kind

Income Ad Valoren Tax
Less 1% fee Tax Commissioner
Appropriations

Mileage
Grant/Match
$ 164,644.70
$ (1,846.45)

COORDINATOR

Adminstrator

$

30,000.00

Attorney
Accountant
Other

$
$

5,000.00
500.00

OFFICE:RENT/MTG
UTILITIES
PHONE/INTERNET
MAINTENANCE/JANITORIAL

Office:Rent
Utilities
Phone/Internet
Maintenance/Janitor

$
$
$
$

5,400.00
1,800.00
1,800.00
1,575.00

EQUIPMENT/Laptop
WEBSITE MGMT
POSTAGE/PRINTING
OTHER SUPPLIES/MTGS
LEGAL ADVERTISING
Insurance
Training/Meetings
GRANT APPLICATION

Equipment
WEBSITE Mgmt
Postag/Printing
Supplies/Mtg
Legal Advertising
Taxes & Insurance
Training/Mtgs
Grant Application

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,200.00
1,000.00
1,200.00
4,800.00
1,000.00
3,000.00
1,200.00
10,000.00

Subtotal:

Subtotal:

$

69,475.00

Planning/Design
Master Plan Impementation
Planning/Design
Studies Requirements/TAP

Project Mgr for Grant
Project Mgr for Grant
Project Mgr for Grant

$
$
$

30,000.00
30,000.00
30,000.00

NCBOC

IN KIND

EXPENSES

1 MIL

OED

To Date
28‐Feb‐21

Balance Forwarded

GDOT Gra Source
$

125,387.70
$

ATTORNEY
ACCOUNTANT
OTHER

PROPOSED 2021‐2022 FY 2022

INCOME

Balance Forwarded
Budget

Income RE Advalorem Tax/ CID
less 1% fee tax commissioner
Appropriations:
TOTAL Projected Income

Acutal 2020‐Feb 28, 2021

Income Ad Valorem TAX
Less 1% Fee Tax Comm.
Appropriations
FY2022 Projected Income
Total Projected Income
Administrator

12,500.00 $ 12,500.00

$

$
$
$
$

5,400.00
1,800.00
1,800.00
1,575.00

OED
OED
OED
OED

$
$
$
$

$
$
$

30,000.00
30,000.00

125,387.70 $

493.00

5,400.00
1,800.00
1,800.00
1,575.00

562.99
590.00
2,595.00

$

8,760.20

12,500.00 $ 12,500.00 $ 10,575.00 $

13,001.19

$

2,858.00

$

25,000.00 $ 25,000.00

60,000.00
243,785.70
735,785.70
30,000.00

$
$

5,000.00
500.00

Equipment
WEBSITE Mgmt
Postage/Printing
Supplies/Mtg
Legal Advertising
Taxes/Insurance
Trainings/Mtgs
Grant Application
Branding:
Subtotal:

COV
COV/NC

estimated

$

45,000.00

Work Construction
Maintenance
Project Const/Mgr

$

60,859.19

TOTAL:

INCOME
Grant/Match

$

$
$
$
$

GDOT Grant

60,000.00

1,200.00
1,000.00
1,200.00
4,800.00
1,200.00
3,000.00
1,200.00
10,000.00

$

59,100.00 $ 10,575.00

CITY/BOC Request $30,000 each

72,625.00

$72,625.00 CID, $36,312.50 CITY, $36312.50
$68,500 CID due 2023, $34,250 CITY, $34,25

$ 25,000.00
$

$

Matching dollars effective 2/28/2021
Source

5,400.00
1,800.00
1,800.00
1,575.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Master Plan Implementation:
Project Design
PEGrant Match CID
$
ROW Grant Match CID

Work
Maintenance/Cleanup

$
$
$
$

Office: Rent
Utilities
Phone/Internet
Maintenance/Janitor

$
$
$

CITY
NCBOC
COV/NC

Attorney
Accountant
Other

$
36,757.14
EXPENSE
$ 492,000.00
Budget
InKind
$ 183,785.70

City Cov pick up litter
Split between CID, City, NCBOC per appropr

90,000.00

Contingency
Subtotal:

SUBTOTAL
Contingency
TAP Grant Phase 1
TAP Grant Matching
Matching Grant
TAP Grant Matchig CID

TOTAL
* Part time position ‐ 3 days per weekTotal

$ 184,475.00

$ 7,070,000.00

$ 5,656,000.00
$ 640,000.00
$ 524,000.00
$ 250,000.00

Grant
City/BOC
CID
GTIB grant

$ 7,070,000.00

*** Preliminary estimations to be specified along with grant application due Oct 2019
GDOT Safety Improvements $ 8,788,500.00

Phase 1

221,725.00 $ 35,575.00

AMT GRANT
Master Plan Implementatio YR FUNDED
PE Grant Awarded
TAP Grant Phase 1
$ 8,540,000.00
ROW Grant Awarded STBG Grant PE:
FY2021
$ 435,750.00
STBG Grant ROW:
FY2023
$ 548,000.00
TAP Grant Phase 1 ‐ Apply Const Phase 1
$ 8,540,000.00
GDOT SAFETY PROJECT PHASE 1
updated estimates

GDOT increased project estimates

239

MATCH REQ
$ 1,220,000.00
$ 145,250.00
$ 137,000.00

TOTAL
$ 1,220,000.00
$ 581,000.00
$ 685,000.00
$ 7,274,000.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED MATCH CID/CITY/BOC
TOTAL ESTIMATED MATCH CID/CITY/BOC
TOTAL ESTIMATED MATCH CID/CITY/BOC
14‐17,000,000

Based on verbal discussions/not GDOT estim

Nelson
Heights
Community
Center
240
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Newton County
Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form

The NC\ son Hei5t) bS (Ot'Y'lMvni
Project Name: NOr'\ - prof it
ContactPerson:An 6hl)n* Hendcrwn
Address: 1 200 LCl se :tc r St cov, ·n 8 ton
1
1
Email: Or) t\'")end Cv'5Cn 3@. j'(Y)O il ,cOrr)

Agency Name:

Phone Number:L)70

c,efl-te(

wo 14

-221 - J700

Please provide the information requested below and return via email to
blwhite@co.newton.qa.us no later than Friday, March 24, 2021. If you have additional
information you would like the County to consider, please feel free to attach.
1. Amount requested for fiscal year 2021: $

3Gf I Q(X)

b5

2. What percentage of your overall budget does the requested amount represent?
%
3. Please list your primary funding sources other than the County and the percentage of your budget
they represent:
% of Budget the
Source Represents

Funding Source
Enter name offunding source here

flertbl,t

JD% of Budget

+ibr)

Enter name of funding source here
Enter name of funding source here

%of Budget

(;.

r C{ n

t,

5

%ofBudget

4. Check this box if you received funding from Newton County In the past. ~ s o , please indicate
how much funding each year for the past three fiscal years. Enter amount for past three fiscal

201'6", 20 ,a1 202D

years
How would your progran<or profect be impacted if It did not receive funding from Newton County
or if funding from Newton County were reduced? Please describe the potential impact in detail
6. Please provide a brief description of your operational/business functions. Please describe your.
business here w'C'
C(
1; f{,(OMt"'Vn,tt"
7. Check this box If your program or project have a strategic plan or business pl.min place.
If soAt'ld
please provide a copy electronically as an attachment to the email submission of this form.
vtf S hi P•
How long do you anticipate your progra'!' or project will need Newton Cou~ty funding?. Enter
durationofneedhere
WI\\
S.

opc(ai-c ClS

s.

we

fCC\

lCWnin

fc,c;

,n 5 ljC{,,{6 '1vC.
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Fiscal Year 2022
Funding Request Form
•.I' C..1

9. What steps ate you taking to become Independent and not need Newton County funding?

'5runl5

Describestepsherewl hove C.CPPiiCC -lfv
Mor( Cine h~VC' Y), C
10. Please provide in detail what you specifically utilize.the funding you receive from Newton County f1(Wl (;
for in your program operations. Please be specificI.~eove6 br-C
rerCtt;U'))
11. Please provide an explanation for any change in your request. Please be specific
U
C:C.
12. How does your organlzjtlon or program benefit Newton Count, and its citizens? Desqibe benefits
eJ
here WC. er~ tC ovr>v rh,/1"\;,c~ C,vCC\-tt' C.., OVt "{;) and P
50v rC •
13. If you received funds from Newton County in fiscal year 2021 please provide specific examples of lw-r. J.PJ.
how those funds were used to benefit our community during the past year. Please be specific
lv-1. ll.,(..,
14. If you received fun~m Newtori ,Counr, i!! Jilcal y~ 2021 ~I!\"~ provide specific goals set by r(sc,.,(,e')J
yourorganization.
W tc 011<-n OV feel, 1 TJ C,r~\-C ~rc:""S. he6¼(c M'1.l\
a. Please provide all goals relevant to funds provided by Newton County pr()
C( nl C(

SCiCrff) O

wntcr,
~ttn~

roviae tc

,..c..

..-.-c-re_u_\e_tv\(J_rc---=p-r0_1_r!1_r"l_5_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
• con .\-in ve o<A r-eue,h
• ~--l{)c,t"c Af .\;cf 5lnOOI pr01rccl'V"'I
• eon -\-ir'1 ve -to iMfrOV( Ar"en +;c5
• 1-l, r-C C( r('.(re" t•o----ct I IJ1 r-C (.t{./

• ~,.-,n 9

r"()tC "OJ

,a ,e

Men-b-•

b. Please provide details regarding your organization's performance In achieving those goals

I

no~ con-¼i nv-cc iO

Gr( CdC wQ'j.S lhCC"f!Y)j O()f

are

\')C.4r-!rcr,n-' w1lr,
Cv01t.S Coord;;"\td(IY.J -\0 PIOvid~ 0. vecriCl-t' Of
cpevr b-JVlttrc.s. lh trc ~,, o(: b~.5 ~car we have
Pro!>rc. MS sc-\- und rcadt-(OMrx.>n:-t} ·11'1vOl\rec•

',..I(

1
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15. Please review the Newton County Strategic Objectives (attached) and respond to the following for
fiscal year 2021:
a. What specific projects or programs will Newton County funds be used to support? Please
Of~(
-lt'.S.
be specific SoC,,tt \ ec! U(CthCX"~ I\) 4v'\C,
b. What goals do you hope to accomplish durfng fiscal year 2021? Describe goals here'¥,,( nO{JC l-0
c. How do your goals promote the County's Strategic Objectives? Please be specific (DO.\-i l"l\,{ l,YCCi·H nf'
d. How will you measure your success relative to the projects or programs supported by OPPVf-k,h; ~~CS•
Newton County funds? Describe performance measures here '"t"hc:
4nd event 5 V[Y)
i. Please provide goal measures in terms of one of the following: h4l,l PC n.l\,,r, &:J:P/0
1. Activities: the processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce thJ
\c
desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe
"what we do."- SCr'YC ¾~ (OP\Mon;~ \f"l al\' Cf>fCC.t$'
2. Outputs: the final products, or goods and services produced for delivery.
Outputsmaybedefinedas"whatweproduceordeliver."K, wi\l Jc\:vt'(
, .
3. Outcomes: the medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the
consequence of achieving ~peclfic outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly
' to your strategic goals and objectives. Outcomes are "what we wish to
\
achieve."W( Wif,\';i -\0 UVla-\CJ
Jc,rld
ct

w~:

er1,a" A

J

Pro ,ru'-".S

d({>Cndli b

OPP\.J~•+•tS

Slnc

dee, rca

rover '"A-

ovt e,b.

t>ClO'""e

4. Impacts: the 'results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing J
poverty and creating jobs. 'w'(
~c
a() c-

.

•

S-t-

Q 551

fuf"' i \iC.S {n rov1h0v+ -lnc '1<:"/. we ~-trivC 0!')
bci"5 Ct ne:, rir\~ hOhd• we aft'. -t~,n:1 40
,c-t over COVic
'#C C.ctv"l bceo)'""\c tro eJ/1>
Dpc rCt +1MCt I.

243

